Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Registered number 06433768
For the year ended 31 March 2022

*ABCINBWW*

AZ0 14/09/2022 #27
COMPANIES HOUSE

WEDNESDAY



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Annual Report and Financial Statements
for the year ended 3! March 2022

Contents

Strategic Repart

Corporote Governance Report for the year ended 31 March 2022

Directors’ Report for the year ended 3i March 2022

Statement of directors’ responsibilities for the year ended 31 March 2022

Financial statements

Consolidated statement of profit or loss

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Consolidated statement of financial position

Consclidated statement of changes in equity

Consolidated statement of cash flows

Notes to the consclidated Financial Statements

Company balance sheet

Company statement of changes in equity

Notes to the company financiol statements

Independent Auditer's Report to the Members of Kelda Eurchond Co Limited

Glossary

B5

59

64

66

68

67

68

70

72

73

147

148

149

153

164



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Our Business

Kelda Eurobond Co Limited (the company) and its subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates (the
group) is made up of several businesses:

Yorkshire Water Services Limited (Yorkshire Water)

vorkshire Water is the principal UK subsidiary of the group, providing water and wastewater services
to more than five million people and 110,000 businesses, Every day, Yorkshire Water supplies around
1.3 billion iitres of drinking water to homes and businesses in Yorkshire. Through the efficient
operation of its extensive wastewater network and treatment facilities, it also ensures that the
region's domestic and industrial waste is returned safely ta the environment.

Yorkshire Water results are presented as the ‘UK Regulated Water Services’ segment.

Business strategy: Yorkshire Water provide some of life's most essential services to the people and
businesses of Yorkshire, playing a key role in the region's health, wellbeing, ond prosperity. We do
this by supplying water and wastewater services and being custodians of essential infrastructure
and the natural environment.

Whilst Yorkshire Water is a highly regulated business, the strategy is also to go beyond compliance
and further support Yorkshire by working in partnership to champioen healthy, thriving livelihoods
and sustainable economic growth.

Further details of Yorkshire Water's business strategy are detailed within this Strategic Report.

Loop Customer Management Limited (Loop)
Loop specialises in cost effective customer relationship management. Loop's main contract is to
provide customer service support to Yorkshire Water.

Business strategy: Focus on the key competency of providing customer service solutions to
Yorkshire wWater.

Keyland Developments Limited (Keyliand)

Keyland adds value to the group’s surplus property assets, usually by obtaining planning
permission for the most beneficial use and selling into the market or undertaking development in
partnership with othets. Keyland is also progressing a number of Planning Promotion Agreements
with third parties. The results of Keyland include the group's share of its associates and joint
ventures.

Business strategy: To add value to land with development potenticl and to maximise proceeds from
the sale of that land.

Three Sixty Water Limited (TSW) and its subsidiaries (collectively TSWG)

TSWG has specialised in services to the non-household retail (NHHR) sector either by directly
providing NHHR water and wastewater services or providing support services to entities which in
turn offer NHHR water and wastewater services. These services were historically provided to
Yorkshire Water.

As part of the group’s strategy to focus on wholesale and household retail activities, the sale of the
Yorkshire water NHHR customer base took place on the 30 September 2019 to Scottish Water
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Business Stream Limited (Business Stream), Scotland‘s largest non-domestic water supplier. under
the Transitional Services Agreement {TsA) Business Stream had retained TSWG to continue to
support the defivery of NHHR services to their Yorkshire customers until 30 September 2021, at which
point a six-month migration period to 31 March 2022 came into effect which transferred all customer
support services to Business Stream operations. After 31 March 2022, oll TSWG operations ceased,
ond the Kelda group will look to wind-up these entities in due course.

Kelda Transport Management (KTM)

As per the reguirement of KTM's ogperating licence, all legal and statutory documentation for
Yorkshire Water are held in KTM. KTM can demonstrate independence of Yorkshire Water. Three
appointed transport managers are in place with two appointed Board directors supported by a
Company Secretary.

Business strategy: To comply with the Goods Vehicles (licencing of operators) Act 1995, to
demonstrate continuous and effective manogement of two operating licences (Yorkshire and
North-West England) for Large Goods Vehicles (LGV) dilowing Yerkshire Water to operate LGV whilst
promoting operating efficiencies.

Statement on non-financial information

Kelda Eurcbond Co Umited has complied with the requirements of S414CB of the Compcanies Act
2006 by inctuding certain non-financial information within the Strategic Report. This can be foeund
as follows:

Qur business model is shown iater in the Strategic Report.

Information regarding the following matters, including a description of relevant policies, the due
diligence process implernented in pursuance of the policies and outcomes of those policies, can
be found as follows:

Environmental matters in our Love our Environment section;
Employees in our Putting People First section;

Social matters in Our business strategy for Yorkshire Water section;
Respect for human rights in our Putting People First section; and
Anti-corruption and anti-bribery matters Putting People First section.

Where principal risks have been identified in relation to any of the matters listed above, these can
be found in our principal risks section, including a description of the business relationships, products
and services which are likely to cause adverse impacts in those areas of risk, and a description of
how the principal risks are managed.

All gur key performance indicaters (KPIs), including those non-financial indicators, are reported and
discussed within the Strategic Report.

The Financial Performance section includes, where appropriate, references to, and additional
explanations of, amounts included in the entity’s annual accounts.
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Our business strategy for Yorkshire Water

We provide some of life’s most essential services to the people and businesses of Yorkshire, playing
a key role in the region’s health, wellbeing, and prosperity. We do this by supplying water and
wastewater services and being custodians of essential infrastructure and the natural environment.
Water companies dre unique institutions, and the history of water and sewage services has seen a
number of hybrid structures sitting between the public and private sectors. Although ownership
structures have varied over time, the use of private capital te fund investment has been a constant.
Yorkshire Water sees itself as a public service provider tirst and foremost. Public service ethos runs
deep in our culture and is matched by environmental commitment. We have an over 30-year track
record of delivering privately financed investment for public and environmental good. A
commercial focus means that investment is delivered efficiently and effectively and provides best
vaolue for customers.

The bills customers pay do more than just cover the cost of the direct service they receive in their
homes and businesses. They contribute to Yorkshire's resilience from flooding, and they help to
improve the quality of our rivers and coasts. They medn that large parts of our upland landscapes
can be managed sustainably, and over time they will help us invest to combat the impact of climate
change. The impact of climate change is considered further in our Love our environment section.

Asset management period (AMPs)

Yorkshire Water, along with the other water companies in England and Wales, operates in five-year
cycles known as AMPs. For each AMP we agree and work to a plan that is developed through
extensive assessment, planning and customer engagement. The planning process is known as the
‘Price Review’. These five-year plans are setin the long-term context of a 25-year strategic direction,
our fong-term strategy’, which we are in the process of reviewing. The current reporting period
covers 2020-2025 and is known as AMP7.

Within our five-year plan is the setting and agreeing with Ofwat and customers the performance
standards that they expect of us. These form the basis of our performance commitments (PCs).
Some of these PCs are so important to service standards that they attract a penalty for lower than
expected performances, or a reward for higher than expected performance. These are the Outcome
Delivery Incentives {ODIs).

Our long-term strategy

Our long-term strategy sets out our purpose and how we intend to deliver it through our strategic
goals - the five Big Godis; the behaviours that we value; and the approach to governance. Our
strategy is summarised in the diagram following.

Our purpose is clear, 'we're proud to play water’s role in making Yorkshire a brilliant place to be -
now and always. Being proud to play water's role means that we provide essential water,
wastewater and customer services to the people and businesses of Yorkshire, refiably and to a high
standard. Making Yorkshire a briliiant place to be means that we strive to improve the region’s
health, wellbeing, and prosperity by supporting communities, protecting, and enhancing the
environment, creating an amazing place to work, and ensuring our services are affordable. We carry
this out in a way that meets the needs of everyone, of our customers, colleagues, and stakeholders,
for today and for the future. We make sustainable choices that seek to bailance the needs of today
with the needs of future generations.
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Water is one of life’s essentials and we are concerned about taking care of it in the right way for
evetyone, all the time. How we do this really matters: our services rely on the natura! resources we
take from and return to the environment; therefore, we need to protect and enhance Yorkshire's
environment. How we transport and recycle water that has been used by our customers, the way
we look after our land, our broader support to local cormmunities and the partnerships we develop,
will make a ditference to Yorkshire.

Customers continue to prioritise high quality, uninterrupted services, meaning that service
resilience is a pricrity. We need to plan carefully to ensure that we ¢an not only deliver resilient
services today, but that we can continue to do this in the future, despite the increasing pressures
frorn climate change, population growth and increasing pressures on the environment, further
information con be found in our Love our environment section. Our services impact and are
impacted by environmental and community resilience and we look to enhance these in how we
deliver our gervices, Our broader organisational resilience Is critical to our ability to deliver our
services into the future, and we continue our focus on financial resilience, cyber security and
emergency planning.

As o result of the fast-changing external landscape, and increasing stakeholder expectations, we
continue to evolve our fong-term strategy. Over the iast year there have been several significant
chonges in some of the external foctors that impact on our organisation, our customers,
stakeholder and partners. The impact of these changes is acutely felt by customers and
communities in respect of the cost-of-fiving crisis and by businesses in increasing costs to deliver
services. The need to maintain affordable services to customers and to deliver thase services safaely
and efficiently is the focus of business-as-usual activities, our transformation pregramme and our
AMP? perfermance improvement plan.

Increasing political, reguiatory and stakehoider expectations, particularly in respect of the
environment have been seen through amendments to the Envirenment Act, resulting in stretching
Environment Bill targets for the water industry and in the Environmental Audit Committee’s ingquiry
into water gquality in rivers and coasts. Our strategic response is to continue to develop our pians to
do more to benefit the environment, including our ambitious net zero operational carbon plans,
commitment to monitor and provide transparent data on the operational of all our storm overflows
and our plans to impreve Yorkshire's rivers and coasts.

We have started preparing our pians for the next Price Review, which takes place in 2024 and covers
the perioti 2025-2030 (AMPB). As part of this process, we will set out our plans for AMPS in the context
of a 25-year pian. Our strategic goals are under review and will be updated taking account of
changing externalities and customer and stakeholder priotities. These will set the context for our
rafreshed long-term strategy and AMPS8 delivery plan,
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Purpose led decision making

At the heart of our strategy is the recognition that our core business fundamentally relies on
financial, natural, and social resources. Whilst there are major challenges to the resilience of our
essential water and wastewoter services, we know how important it is that we maintain the trust of
our customers and stakeholders by aclways acting with integrity and being open about our
performance. To help us Mmake sure that our decision-making fully considers with these matters, we
are using the concept of the Six Capitals to embed purpose-ied decision making at the core of our
business,

Our Six Capitals approach is designed to help us become more sustainable and resilient by
considering value in the broadest sense. Capital is often thought of only as money, but in fact
describes any resource or asset that stores or provides value to people. The Six Capitals, as
summarised in the diogram below, are impottant to us as they help us measure the total volue we
deliver to Yorkshire through cur work,
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The Six Capitals approach helps us measure progress towords our strategic goals, ensures that
purpese is of the heart of our doy-to-day decision making, and provides o framework in which we
can ¢learly cammunicate the impact we have on Yorkshire with customers ond stakeholders. wWe
have instigated a range of projects to examine our impacts and dependencles across the capitals,
assessing ¢ range of economis, environmental, and social attributes associated with our activities.
These consider both our negative and positive impdacts on society and the environment, and
strengthen the evidence base that supports our decislon making. Some examples of our latest
progress developing and deploying the Six Capitals approach include:

«  Conducting an annual assessment of our total impact and value, which is published in a
report called ‘Our Contribution to Yorkshire' and reviews the 2021 reporting year. This is our
third report of this type and builds on the previous versions using new techniques and data.
The report shows the strong net positive contribution Yorkshire Water delivers for society,
and it highlights further areas where we have risk and opportunity needing further attention.
The report is avaitable at www.yorkshirewatercom/about-us/capitals/. The fourth report,
reviewing the 2022 reporting year, will be published in October 2022.

« Continuing to apply the Sustainable Finance Framework (SFF), which we introduced in
January 2019, applying the Six Capitals approach to monitor the impact of our operations
and investments. We have raised to date £1,200m of debt through the framework, which we
discuss further in the financial section of this Strategic Report. You can find more details
about our SFF ot www yorkshirewater.com/medig/dbreobjolinvestor-impact-report

» Applying and embedding the Six Capitals ossessment functionality that is integroted in our
planning and optimisation system, the Decision-Making Framework (DMF). We used the too)
to optimise and report the impoct and value of our five-year business plan from 2020 to
2025, and we aré now working hard tc embaed this across our business to help shape the
design of evary assaet managemaent solution.

+ Using our DMF 8ix Capitals tool to enhance our understanding of the risk we face from
climate change, including economic valuation of this risk. We explore this work in more
detail in our Love our environment section.

» Developing a Six Capitals land planning toof that will support our new land strategy. This will
ensure we reaiise the maximum valde from our 28,000 hectares of iund holdings across
Yorkshire by protecting sources of water while delivering other benefits such as ficod
management, recreation, farming, wildlife, and carbon storage.
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We also support the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and are ensuring our strategy and
activities grow our contribution to them. Through the United Nations (UN), the gltobal community
has formally adopted a set of 17 Goals which define and drive towards sustainable development.

The 17 SDGs are underpinned by 168 targets. You can find oul maore about the SDGs at sdgs.un.org.
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Our Five Big Goals

Putting
people first

Being great
with water

Love our
environment

Putting peoplefirst

We'te proud to be o people business. We need the most
engaged and capable coileagues to ensure we deliver a positive
impact on cur customers and stakeholders every day. we'li
develop a deep understanding of both our customers and
colleagues to ensure we design bestin class experiences.

Being great with water

We want to play an active role in helping everyene in Yorkshire
work together to look after our water. Our customers rely on us
to provide safe water, take away and recycle wastewater, work
smart to minimise the amount lost through lecks and reduce
pollution and flood risk.

Love our environment

Wwe want to protect the environment in whatever we do. Our
customers trust us to look after and sustainabiy manage the
land we own, and we want to open it up for everyone to enjoy.
We'lt lead by example in Yorkshire on big environmentat issues
like committing to net zera carbon emyissions by 203G,

Being a great partner

We want to lead by example in Yorkshire and we'll use the best
from around the globe to do that. we'll be open about what we
do, work in collaboration with customers and in partnership with
others to help our region, and our business, to grow. We'l
celebrate the diversity we have in  Yorkshire, opening
opportunities for as many people as possible.

Keeping services affordable

We want our services and bil's to be affordable for everyone, so
no-one heed worry about having to pay. To do this we drive high
quality and operational excellence through having a cutture that
champions customer and colleague needs, continuous
improvement, and innovation.
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Our business model
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Yorkshire Water
The following sections cover the Five Big Goals used to measure Yorkshire Water's financial and
non-financial performance criteria.

Our Five Big Goals - Putting people first

Health & Safety

when putting peopte first, nothing is more important than the safety, health and wellbeing of our
colleagues, partners, and customers. Qur geal is Zero Harm, not as a statisticai target, but as a
moral imperative, and as such we are cormmmitted to driving a proactive safety culture that is
addressed through people, plant, and process.

Ourkey measures

Measure 200 2022 2023
Actual Target Actun) Target

Lost time injury rate (LTIR) No.J10,000 hours | 0.21 0.27 024 03 |
[ sickness absence rate % 3.08 7 3.53 3.5 1

Process safety Incidents 5 <12 Q <5

- — -
Leadership safety activities (69: |\ ctivities 7057 | 6885 | 6632 | 6672
site visits)

Last year, following an external assessment of our safety culture we implemented a revised heaith,
safety, security and environment (HSSE) strategy based on people, plant and process, which has
driven an improvement in our safety culture that is reflected in our HSSE performance.

Occupational safety

This year we have achieved our LTIR target, this is a slight incregse on the previous ysar's
performance ond is represented by o majority of incidents being the result of slip, trip and falls. in
order to maintain focus on the prevention of injury we olso look to our near-miss incidents and
those with high potentiat outcame to drive learning and improvement. in line with this, we have
established incident Review Paneis and tearning Review Boards, that assess the quatity of
investigations and captures broader lessans to drive continual improvernent.

Health and wellbeing

The sickness absence rate was ahead of the target for the year. Covid-18 has been effectively
managed through the Covid-18 management group that has continually monitored and
responded to the changes in guidance. It is still very difficult to estimate what is now ‘normal, but
given the easing of Cavid-18 restrictions and the fact it is still endemic we have increased sickness
absence forecasts to account for this. we have observed the direct and indirect impuact of Covid-
19 on colleagues’ wellbeing, with the majority of cccupational referrdls being related to mental and
emotiona! wellbeing. In order to support our colleagues, we have continued to train mentat health
first aiders and provide specialist counselling support services to those colleagues whe have
required support. In addition, health campaigns and specialist support groups have been
established to promote health lifestyles in line with public health agenda.
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Process safety

The maturing of our approach to process safety continues ond is reflected in our performance of
zero process safety tier one and tier two incidents. Last year we established a five-point plan
covering the (i) control and assessment of major process safety risks, (i) competence of operators,
(iii) implementation of leading process safety indicators and (iv) implementation of process safety
management framework and (v} delivering a program process hazards review for legacy assets.
Collectively this controls process safety risks throughout the lifecycle of the asset. This is overseen
by the Process Safety Strategy Group chaired by the HSSE Director, who in turn reports annually to
the Safety, Health and Environment {SHE) Committee,

Safety leadership

Safety is set by the tone from the top and one of the areas that is measured closely by the
leadership team. Outside the measurable performance in this areq, reflected in the table above, we
have delivered a Board and executive level workshop on safety culture and have established
executive level committee for HSSE, chaired by the CEC to ensure that issues can be raised and
resolved at a senior level. This complimenting the work of the SHE Committee.

Public safety

At the forefront of our mind is public safety, a wide area of activity which spans from when a
customer calls one of our contact centres, when our colleagues are operating on public highways,
and to when visitors attend one of our scenic reservoirs. In the past year we have established a
Public Safety Strategy Committee that consists of senior leaders within the business to ensure that
we are doing all we practically can to safeguard the public. As such, the group looks at topics such
as safeguarding vulherable customers, ensuring our facilities have the necessary protective
measures, as well as education and campaigns to inform the public of potential hazards. We
currently are looking at developing leading performance indicators to measure and ensure that we
are continuing to deliver.

Contractor safety

We have made great strides in our vision of ‘One Yorkshire Water', with increased engagement with
our contract partners both with our capital and service delivery world. We have established a
regular cadence of meetings with our partners so they can share best practices with other parts of
the business. in the last year we have made a focus on reporting and learning from incidents, so as
to prevent future incident from recurring. We placed a specific lens creating clarity in relation to
contract and vendor management to ensure that our partners understand our expectations in
respect to safety and that our Yorkshire Water colleagues understand their commitments to
ensuring that our partners operate safely.

Our approach to safety

In line with our safety strategy each year, we review our safety improvement plan so make sure we
are driving centinuous improvement through learning. The plan set out key milestone deliverables
for focus areas such contractor sofety, process safety, occupational health, occupational safety
and security. This year we delivered all major milestones of the plan that in turn has contributed to
our strong performance. In the coming year we will continue to focus on process safety and
contractor safety and embed the work that has been done, whilst placing a greater focus on
engagement with our colleagues to learn from them.
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Our Colleagues

Ourkey measures
Measure I Units 202 2022 2023

l Actual Target Actual Target

Staff turnover — voluntary leavers % 502 <10.00 10.2 <10.00

Competency and progression - internal
_promotions and moves

Diversity & Inclusion — Proportion of

warkforce who are female

% 15.31 18 i8.48 16

% 3216 36 3223 36

Working ethically and respecting human rights
Qur human rights policy recognises international human rights, as set outin the Biil of Human Rights
and the principles described in the UN Giobal Compact. The policy can be found on our website at:
hi -Tj ~poligy. It is a fundamental policy of
Yorkshire Water to conduct its business with honesty and integrity and in accordance with the
highest standards of ethics, equity and fair dealing. Our Code of Ethics was relaunched in the year
and includes our policies on anti-corruption and anti-bribery. This has been accompanied by
mandatory online training for all of our colleagues to ensure everyone understands the ethical
standards that we expect of our people. We have taken steps to assure there is ne slavery or human
trafficking occurring within our organisotion or its supply chalns. Our tiving Wage accreditation
ensures all employees are paid over and above stotutory wage levels. We also embed controctual
requirements throughout our supply chain activities and check compliance through o range of
assurance controls, including the requirement that all suppliers will abide by our Living Wage
commitment. in compliance with the Modern Stavery Act 2015 we publish an annuat statement on
our commitment to the issue. Our [atest statement can be found on our website at:
hitps://www . yorkshirewater.com/fabout-us/our-policies/modern-sigvery-

Ensuring responsibility throughout our supply chain

We are committed to promoting a supply chain that delivers the long-term provision of great value
and highly resilient services to our customers. Our ambition is to work in collaboration with our
suppliers to responsibly address current and emerging social, economic, and environmental
challenges, both locally ond globally. Poor labour practices have the potential to exist in all supply
chains, both overseas and within the UK. All new supply contracts and purchase order terms oblige
our suppliers to comply with the Modern Slavery Act 2015, including the abaolition of human rights
abuse in all its forms. We will continue ta work with our supply chain to ensure complionce with
relevont legisiation ond seek to improve labour practices. We partner with externol experts to help
us to understond the parts of our supply chain that represent the greatest risk, and work with them
to gain assurance that poor practices are nat in place. Our Sustainable Procurement Strategy sets
out our abjectives in full and is aligned to the wider Water ingustry Public interest Commitment:

ww . yorkshirewater.com/attachments/sustainable-procurement-strate




Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Attracting great pecple and maintaining the skilis we need

We recognise that our people are our most important assets and it is key to attract, retain and
engage top talent with the skills we need to make our workforce resilient, to ensure our success,
both now and in the future. It is noted in the key metrics table that 2021 saw a lower turnover of staff
which was largely due to the uncertainty around Covid-19, as restrictions have eased and with
external economic pressures, we have seen an increase in employee turnover levels this year.
However, the 2022 levels are more reflective of pre-pandemic rates. Our people strategy and
supporting programme of change will transform the way we develop our people through a range
of initiatives, developing talent programmes andd rewarding our colleagues with great and flexible
working environments, fair wage, and reward package.

In 2022 we have:

« 164 apprentices, 31 who have been brought in externally and the remaining 133 existing
colleagues;

» 24 graduates over two cohorts currently in our programeme;

+ Taken the opportunity from the Government's Kickstart’ scheme which provides funding to
employers to create jobs for 16-25 year olds on Universal Credit. We currentty have 26
individuals on this programme;

= Seven colleagues in our T-level programme. The ‘T-level' programme is similar to an
apprenticeship, however, they spend most of their time in the classroom as opposed to learning
on the job;

« Continued investment in social recruitment channels, utilising social media tools to attract a
wider and more diverse talent pool, allowing us to reach condidates more readily and enabile
talent to understand our culture. This improves our candidate pools and expands our talent
pipelines;

* Continued use of online tools to assess and interview colleagues virtually;

» Continued on-the-job assessments for operational colleagues, which are aligned to the
technical competency framework allowing us to develop, retain, recruit a skilled workforce;

*+ Continued operational front line and management onboarding and induction plans that
provides critical skills and knowledge to help new colieagues succeed in their role. This has
meant we can integrate new employees and help them to understand the systems and
procedures followed by the organisation. New employees settle down guickly in the new work
environment and the support enabies them to flourish in their role; and

» Continued with our commitment to diversity and inclusion with investment in various
programmes, more detail of this is given in the Equaility, diversity and inclusion section below.

Equality, diversity and inclusion

We are committed to providing an equitable, diverse, and inclusive (ED&I) working environment.
This is integral to delivering our Five Big Geals and our vision of ‘Putting people at the heart of
everything we do’. We know that an effective ED&| approach is imperative in maintaining successful
performance and ensuring equity of cpportunity amongst all existing and future employees.
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Below we provide diversity statistics for the current and prior period:

7 S 3 2 atuta 10 1 0 [ 0 o
70.0% 81.8% 30% 18.2% directo 100% | 100% 0% | 0.0% | 0.0% 0.0%
30 27 14 13 enio 27 29 2 2 15 S
68.2% 67.5% 31.8% 32,5% anage B1.4% | 72.5% | 45% | 5.0% | 341% 22.5%
2,856 2,879 1,012 985 Rema ¢ 2274 | 2,501 187 | 206 | 1,407 1167
73.8% 74.3% 28.2% 25.7% employe 58.8% | 64.6% | 48% | 5.3% | 36.4% 30.1%

in note 7 ta the Fnancial Statements we disclose figures refating to a total of 3.931 employees, for
the UK regulated water services, who were employed based on monthly averages throughout the
financial year. The figures stated in the tables above relates to the number of emplayees at 31
March 2022. Both approaches are accurate and are provided in the format stated by the relevant
regulatory requirements.

Like many companies in the water sector, historically we have had a predominantly white male
workfarce. We continue our focus on impraving our diversity across genders, LGBT+, race, disability,
social background and more, ta better reflect the communities we serve. We are currently reviewing
our targeted data-led approach, that underpins our strategy to better inform us on where we need
to move the dial on ED&I Examples of activities we are doing in this area are:

*+  We have recently appointed an experienced ED& manager;

*  We are reviewing our ED& strategy and lock to ensure ED&I s embedded in everything we do
across our bysiness;

+  We have worked to integrate the improvements identitied in the last review of our recruitment
process to ensure it is supportive of difference and inclusion;

+ Continuing to publish Our workforce Diversity Report, as well as the Ethnicity and Gender Pay
Gap reports. Together they capture in detail our data and the activities we have taken geared
towards £0&I in our businass;

* Our business disability forum has launched, and a clearer centralised process has been
credted to enable our pecple to quickly receive dny support they need;

* We monitor progress, using quantitative and qualitative data to highlight where barriers exist,
show the impact of our interventions, and make appropriate adjustments where needed. We
also use employee surveys to evaluate initiatives, to assess if policies are working for everyone,
and to provide a plattorm for feedback and improvements;

»  We have continued our investment in our Leadership programmes and a commitment to ED&J
education. We ensure that our leaders are upskilled on mental health and have mandated
elearning courses covering issues across ED&l including Unconscious Bias and Trans
Awareness; and

+  We racently introduced an auto-signature tempiate which includes preferred pronouns, and
four employees participated in a ten-week training program covering LGBT+ issues in the
workplace.

Qur programmes
»  Our Woman in Leadership programme, for those future leaders looking to progress to senior
leadership or operationdl roles - ten more women entered the programme in September last
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year. There is o strong network between the alurmni, and 80% of attendees since 2017 have either
moved up, sideways or improved their career prospects within the business.

«  Our Black, Asian and minority ethnic {BAME) Leadership programme, for those future leaders
tooking to progress to a band three management role or above. We have had three cohorts
completing the course so far since 2019, and 60% of our people from the 2018 cohort have either
moved up or sideways within the business. These cohorts also form a strong network within the
business.

»  We work with the Trode Union Congress (TUC) and trade unions, to provide career support and
employment to young people (age 16-25 on Universal Credit} as part of the Government's
Kickstart’ programme.

External relationships
These activities look to improve the attraction, recruitment, development, and promotion across all
areas of diversity in Yorkshire Water and further drive inclusion:

+ Business Disability Forum membership - which gives all our people access te an advice service
with support for any matters arcund disability and provides managers with a range of support
and guides to assist their teams with disability.

« lighthouse Futures Trust Partner - which supports children and young adults on the autistic
spectrum. We run supported internships for students with an autistic spectrum condition. In the
first year, five out of the seven secured further opportunities within Yorkshire Water. We currently
have eight people from the Lighthouse Trust who joined us in 2021 as interns and continue to
enjay their roles with us.

= We are a part of an employer's forum supporting internships and employment for students with
autism across the region.

+ Yorkshire Diversity Forum - with approximately 70 members, businesses from across Yorkshire
come together on a quarterly basis to discuss best practice around ED&IL This allows us to
benchmark progress against other organisations and explore what others are doing to adopt
and adapt ideas where appropriate.

+ We continue to participate and share in partnership learning within the Energy Utility Skills
partnership and, together with other members, we are part of the wider inclusion commitment.

=  We play a key role in the Leeds Anchor Institutions network and are part of the Social Mobility
Business Partnership.

We will continue to proactively monitor and report on all this work. Our aim is to put people ct the
heart of everything we do, to create an environment that appreciates difference, is inclusive and
where everyone can feel free to be their authentic selves.

Gender pay gap

We started reporting information on the gender pay gap in 2015. Since then, we have seen the
development and implementation of The Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Infermation)
Regulations 2017 and we have published our gender pay gap data, in line with the Regulations, as
summoarised below. The most recently published data is for the 5 April 2021 and is included for
information below. Data for 5 Aprit 2022 is expected to be published later in 2022. Further information
about our gender pay gap and the action we are taking to address it can be found on our website
at: www.yorkshirewater.com/careers{working—for-yorkshire-water/diversity-inclusion.
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Pay and bonus gap
ed Slalls EC e0id
0 4% 5.7% 3.4%) 0.0%
020 (0.5%) (0.3%) (6.3%) 0.0%

ey 0

Receiving bonus

Females Males

Pay quartiles

tower middle
guartile

Upper middie

Top quarti
P quartile quartile

Lower quartile

67.0%

74.0%

*Published figures are ta 5 April for each year in ling with Regulations.

Both the mean and the median pay gaps in 2021 have seen an increase from the respective 2020
figures. A change in the demographics of sorme specific ports of Yorkshire Water, and the impact of
the Covid-18 pandemic on payments included in the April 2020 data, are largely behind this
increase in the gap. Although they have increased very slightly from 2020, they remain lower than
those seen in most of the previous reporting years, and well below the naticnal average.

Ethnicity pay gop
Our ethnicity pay gap data for 2021 is summarised below:
Mean hourly Median hourly
pay pay
2021 2020 200 2020

General
pay gap

in 2021, the mean ethnicity pay gap has narrowed towards equality of 0%, down from (8.8%) to 3.6%,
but the median ethnicity pay gap has increased from 21% to 9.6%, with both the pay gaps
favourable for white colieagues. Relative to the total number of colleagues across the population
covered by the 202! data and, who disclose their ethnicity, there is a propertionately greater
representation of BAME colleagues in our most senior pay band and our most junior pay band.
Conversely, this pattern of representation is reversed for the pay bands in between which covers
the majority of the professional and senior management population. As a result of this, there is o
difference between the mean and median pay gap figures for 2021,

There has been an increase in proportion of colleagues who have not disclosed their ethnicity and
hence are not included in the pay gap calculations. This is predominantly due to a change in
process for cuapturing diversity dota for new storters. With the development of the broader
approach to ED&I, this must help focus the business on reducing this gap based on o greater
disclosure rate.
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Further information about our ethnicity pay gap and the action we dre taking to address it can be
found on our website through our workforce diversity report at:

https:/ fwww vorkshirewater.com/attachments{41349-Yyw-Workplace-Diversity-Report-Web-Jan-
2021

Our customers

We've continued to deliver on our Customer Experience strategy with the intent to become “one of
Yorkshire's most customer and colieague valued organisations”. This recognises that our household
customers are unable to choose other water companies, and so should really value the experience
when comparing us with other organisations they do choose to deal with. The strategy also helps
us deliver on Qfwat's measure of service, the Customer Measure of Experience (CMEX), which is an
industry comparability measure of performance. This measure not only assesses ¢ customer’s
service experience but is equadlly weighted with a broader survey of their overall perception of
Yorkshire Water as u brand. This makes it even more imperative that we're living up to our customer
expectations every day. Our final CMEX score has fallen compared with prior year and was one
place behind our target. We are preparing a detailed insight review to understand how our
performance can be improved.

As well as working to improve the overall experience we deliver to customers, we dre also targeting
a reduced cost to serve, ultimately making bills more affordable. The delivery of the strategy is a
balance between in-year agile change to ‘fix the basics’ and longer-terrm change investing in our
strategic capabilities to enable a more digitaliy enhanced customer experience.

This year we've focused on equipping colleagues across the business with the support they need
to deliver on our promise to customers. This has included many improvements delivered through
our agile change framewerk such as enhanced online payment, metering and account
rmanagement journeys and developing our online incident map to show customers bursts and
leaks that have aiready been reported to us. We have completed the redesign of the website to
better help customers to find the information they need, and the work was awarded ‘best use of
digital in energy and utilities’ at the Digital Impact Awards 2021

We've also been investing in colleague capabilities by equipping them with the right skills and
knowledge through our new promise training frarmework and by introducing a new operating mode!|
in our customer management centre aimed at being set up to recover customers when customer
experience is not at the ievel we aspire to be at. Our billing centre (Loop) were awarded the 'gold’
standard for investors in People in 2021

We have experienced higher than normai volurnes of customer contacts in billing as customers are
anxious about the cost of their bills in relation to increased consumption during the pandemic, as
well as the rising costs of living. We've also seen high volumes of water and wastewater calls
particularly cround weather events such as the winter storms. This increase has put pressure on
both colleagues and our existing digital channels and reinforces the need for future investment in
our digital customer experience to better manage the customer demand.

We have been unable to grow our Priority Services Register at the rate originally hoped due to issues
with data sharing and General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR). Despite this, the Priority Services
Register satisfaction score has outperformed its target, demonstrating that we are meeting the
needs of those customers in vulnerability.



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Developer Services have made significant progress with the performance transtormation reguired
to improve the Developer Services Measure of Experience (DMEX} score and provide a better
platform for development growth in Yorkshire. whilst our DMEX ranking has dropped to i7th, we are
in a strong position to improve on this in 2023 and are working towards a target of 14th in the next
financial year. in addition, our gap sites perfermonce has improved to a position where we ore on

target for the PC.

For next year the focus continues to be on equipping the business with the required skills, tools and
capabilities to further improve the vaiue customers experience from Yorkshire Water. Change

activity will focus on:

»  Delivering simpler customer journeys by introducing new standards as part of our business
transformation programme and ossurance framework, driving digital transformation with
improved channel capabilities, and implementing ¢ stronger incident response policy that
prioritises vuinerable customer needs.

+« Making a difference to customers through a new operating model in the customer
management centre and embedding a perfarmance excellence culture to drive focus on

performance and efficiency.

+ Supporting collfeagues with the skilis needed to deiiver for customers through the next
phase of our Pramise Academy training plan.
»  Being a strong odvocaote of ocur customers’ needs, working closely with Consumer Council
for Water (CCW), Water UK and our partners to collaborate on affordability, vulnerability

and service issues.

Ourkey measures

2021
Actual

2022

Target

Actual

Customer Voice Score 467 4.7 453 4.5
CMEX Ranking g g 10 gth
DMEX Ranking gt 16" 17 14"
; . . No. of customers on
Priarity Services Register . 77,385 | »90,00Q0 | 88,702 169,725
the register
tisfaction
Priority Services Register ;}ustomer sonistactio 81 84 80 a8
o
Gap sites % 60 >83 828 >86

Communities

supporting communities through education and volunteering
Our education programme supports delivery of our core business strategy, through provision of
diverse content drawn from the breadth of services we provide. The programme provides key
oppaortunities for us to engage with our customers from an early age, heiping them to understand
the value of what we do, learning about safety around water, and exposing them to new

opportunitias for their own futures.

As well as creating social value through education, these early interactions with our customers also
give us muiltiple business benefits. These include helping us te build trusted reiationships with
students and their families, and to benefit from water efficiency and ‘what not to flush’ behavioural
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change. Sessions can aiso inspire them to forge careers, either directly in our workforce, or in roles
that help to address skills shortages in the industry more broadly.

The programme has continued to evolve during the Covid-18 pandemic, and we now offer arange
of fuace-to-face, virtual and online programmes to both primary and secondary audiences. We run
rmany of our face-to-face sessions from our dedicated education centres at our treatment works
and at our nature reserve at Tophill Low, giving students the cpportunity to benefit from learning
outside the classroom. Our treatment works programmes include learning about the value of water,
the water cycle and our water and sewage treatinent processes. Those at Tophill Low focus on the
importance of water to wildlife and nature with our ‘Life on the water’ and ‘Life underwater sessions.
Since September 202], our education team have also been working in partnership with Living with
Water to build understanding across Huli and the East Riding abeout the threats and opportunities
water brings to the region. The Living with Water Community Hub is a one-of-a-kind factlity
providing an inspiring and interactive space for schools, students and the wider community. This
‘wet lab’ is a hands-on space designed to educate people on water cycles and flood risk in the
area. Qur education sessions here include showcasing sustainable drainage solutions (SuDS),
learning how to register for flooding alerts and staying safe during flooding events.

During 2022, our education programme reached o total of 21,354 students and adults and deiivered
25,446 hours of education. Under the requirements for our education PC, where feedback was
required from attendees, we reached 18,667 students and adults and delivered 22,576 hours of
education. One highlight of the year was our virtual water safety day, where we delivered live virtual
assemblies to over 8,000 young people and teachers. Water Safety live events are now embedded
throughout cur educational calendar alongside our popular ‘Ask the Operator events.

This year, we have also continued to expand our careers offering, providing live assemblies to
schools across the region. October 2021 also saw the return of our Industrial Cadets work experience
programme, which this year focused on leakage and water conservation.

As part of our Big Ambition to put people at the heart of everything we do, our 'Give Back Bring Back'
pelicy allows colleagues up to four working days per annum to get involved in community-boased
volunteering. Our programrmaes fogus on four main themes which are directly linked to our business:
education, environment, customers in vulnerability and employability. This volunteering benefits not
only the erganisations and people we support, but alse our colleagues as they get the chance to
use their experience in new situations, develop new skills and learn about the communities we serve
across the region.

Supporting WaterAid - Our long-standing charity partner

We continue to support WaterAid to help bring clean water, decent toilets, and hygiene to
communities in Ethiopid. This year we have supported their 20 Towns Capacity Building Project
which focuses on strengthening urban water, sanitation and hygiene capacity, Now entering its
second phase, WaterAid Ethiopia continues to build on their foundations, currently reaching 44
small and medium-sized towns across four regions of the country. In January 2022, we were
delighted to learn that our coileague, David Rose, who was instrumental in our work with the 20
Towns project, has been awarded the President’s Award for Outstanding Contribution to WaterAid.,
Over the past 12 months, whilst the majority of our fundraising activities have been curtailed due to
the Covid-19 pandemic, we have taken the opportunity to explore new options for fundraising and
linking our work to our Six Capitals reporting structure. This year, our WaterAid payroll giving
programmes raised over £39,900 through the charitable giving of colleagues and past employees.
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Our Five Big Goals - Being great with water

Clean Water

Our water business collects and treats over a billion itres of water every day, treating the product
to a food grade, and distributing to five million consumers daily. That volume of water is collected
in 120 impounding reserveirs and abstracted frem over 20 groundwater and river sources. It is
treated to the highest standards at 50 water treatrments works, distributed through 35,000 km of
pipe work, and stored at optimum conditions to meet the demand 365 days o year when our
custorners want it.

The key measures for our water service are noted in the table below. In 2022, the water business
has been impacted by seven named storms, with Starm Arwen having o particularly signiticant
impact, on water supply interruptions. Underlying performonce remains strong with the drive for o
15% reduction in leakage successfully completed. CRi was impacted by a few high scoring sample
failures, whilst unplanned outages (UPOs) were also higher than planned but maintained the trend
towards upper guartile performance. Qur performance against mains repairs benefitted from
improvernents in process under the new Water Services Partnership which has performed well in
its first year. Achieving reward on our supply pipe replacement commitment brought benefits to
custermers and leckage during difficult post Covid-19 operating conditions. The improved
performance comes from the increased levels of investment in capital maintenance and
maintenance Qctivities of the water treatment and distribution assets, as well as improved
processes for response and resilience.

Qur key moasures
Measure 200 2022 2023

Actual Target Actual Target

AsseF hea'lth - Mains No ?f repairs per 1,000 km 25 9836 189.8 18]
repairs mains

Asset health - UPO % 3.87 <4.42 3.82 373
Leckage % reduction 35 >7.4 7.9 >9.4
Drinking water contacts No./10,000 properties 10.5 <10.6 10.9 <9.7
Drinking water guality (CRI) | score 2.34 0 483 0
water supply interruptions | Mins:secs 0714 <6:08 10:38 <5:45

The forward plan has tight regulatory targets for all six measures. We are looking to meet the upper
quartile threshold far performance set by Ofwat for UPC and CR) and continue the improvement in
leckage ocross the reraining years of this five-year regulotory period. Significant effort has gone
Into impraving cur repair and maintenance performance on the distribution network as our current
Water Service Agreement enters its final year. A successful tender process has created conditions
for the new Water Services Partnership te further improve service and reduce cost of these
activities, which are a significant part of our everyday operational respense. Management of our
water resources saw supplies maintained ot o healthy position throughout 2022, and also providing
the ability to support local flood resilience activities in the Calder Valiey.
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Wastewater

Our wastewater business receives approximately a billion litres of wastewater every day and
collects everything from the sinks, toilets, and baths from our domestic customers. We also receive
industriat effluents from business customers across the region and via our combined sewers we
collect water that runs from roads and other spaces which feed them. That volurme of wastewater
is collected, pumped, and treated through 52,315 km of sewer, 2,385 sewage pumping statiens and
608 wastewater treatment works before safely returning to the environment. The key measures for
our wastewater service focus on pollution incidents and sewer flooding (internal and external to a
custormer’s property}. These measures target reducing the potential for envirecnmental and societal
harm which can happen from operating such an expansive asset base.

A number of improvements have been made in reiation to wastewater performance, which is
reflected in most of the measures reported below. Pollution incident numbers are, however, showing
an increase, as a result of a change in methodology from the Environment Agency (EA) associated
with third party power failures, and with incidents that are being now classed as “polluting” despite
being permitted by the EA to discharge. YW has been discussing these changes with the £A for some
time and recommends that greater consistency and clarity be introduced to pollution incident
categorisation. The EA have committed to review the position and have written to the sector with
potential changes for 2023, Underiying performance with pollution incidents remains unchanged
from 2021, and management are reviewing the poliution incident reduction plan (PIRP) to deliver
further improvements in AMP7,

Sewer flooding has improved in Yorkshire in 2022, although it has fallen short of the annual target.
This was a result of the three named storms that Yorkshire experienced in February, without which
medasures would be met. External sewer flooding remains ahead the regulatory target, whilst
internal sewer flooding performance despite still improving is still an industry outlier and significant
focus is being placed on improving performadnce to the industry average. The sewer network
department has been restructured to allow greater focus on performance in 2023.

Along with other water and sewerage companies, the performance of our wastewater assets has
come under significant scrutiny in the course of the year. At the beginning of March 2022, we
received notification of a request for information from Ofwat, made under section 203 of the Water
Industry Act. This request has been made as part of the regulator's industry-wide investigation into
flow to full treatment (FFT} at wastewater treatment works. FFT is the measure of the amount of flow
which our works have Lo treat before use of storm discharge. We have complied fully with the
request and will continue to cooperate with Ofwat in the conduct of its investigation. Compliance
with FFT has already been the subject of considerable management attention and we have set up
a task force within the wastewater team to ensure that we manage the risks effectively.

Our key measures
Measure 2022 2023

Target Actual Target

No. of incidents per
10,000 km sewer
External sewer flooding No. of incidents 5,038 <6,809 4,578 <6431
No. of incidents per
10,000 km sewer

Pollution incidents 24 <2374 27.36 <23

Internal sewer flooding 3.34 <1.63 283 <1.58
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Our forward plan has tighter regutatory targets for all three measures again. Our wastewater ared
is looking to meet the upper guartile threshold for performance set by Ofwat for pollution incidents
and continue the improvement across the remaining years of this five-year period. The new PIRP,
coupled with greater incident fearning and management focus should deliver improved
performance. We are investing significantly in sewer flooding through our transformation
progromrne, the benefits of this investment will begin to Jand in 2023 and will deliver longer term
step change improvements. This investment inciudes 40,000 network loggers to monitor remotely
the performance of the sewer network to allow proactive interventions.

Our Five Big Goals — Love our environment

Catchment manogement

Our estate covers around 28,000ha of land across Yorkshire, the majority of which surrounds our
reservoirs in the west of the region. We manage this land primarily to ensure a reliable and clean
supply of water for our customers, but also work with our farm tenants and other partners to provide
further benefits for flood mancgement, recreation, farming, wildlife, and carbon storage.

Examples of ongoing work in this area include expanding our woodland estate through an
ambitious tree planting programme, restoring substantial areas of pectland, creating poilinater
superhighways to improve wildlife diversity, and introducing biosecurity facilities at our reservairs
to counter the spread of non-native invasive species.

Nature-based solutions
Traditional hard engineering solutions are often associated with negative environmental impacts
due to their high use of energy and raw materials. To ensure we are able to achieve our goal of net
zero by 2030, we have begun to trial the use of nature-based solutions to treat wastewater and
reduce the risk of flocding.

This year saw the opening of our first integrated constructed wetland at Clifton in South Yorkshire,
which uses more than 24,000 plants to create an innovative, low-carbon approach to treat
wastewater to o high standard before returning it to the environment. in contrast to a traditional
treatment site, the wetland requires no onsite chemicals and has extremely low operational energy
and carbon costs, in oddition to delivering a net increase in biodiversity. We anticipate that this site
will act as a template for similar nature-based seclutions in future, with a further six treatment
wetland projects now underway across the region.

We are alsc working to trial the use of nature-based solutions to reduce flood risk to downstream
homes and businesses. For example, in collaberation with the National Trust and other
arganisations we have installed hundreds of ‘leaky dams’ in the Calder Valley in West Yorkshire.
These small wooden structures act to slow the flow of water during storm events, which reduces
downstream flood risk and carn also help alleviote pressure on our wastewater network and the
operation of storm overflows into watercourses.

Energy & Carbon

Reducing our energy use and associated greenhouse gas (GHG) emissicns continues ta be a
priority for us as we work towards our target of net zero operational emissions by 2030, Our energy
and carbon reduction efforts span all areas of our business, from increasing our own renewable

eneargy generation capacity to encouraging a shift towards electric and more efficient company
cars.
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Our energy efficiency measures are focused on improving site efficiency for our major treatment
processes and on improving pumping efficiency throughout the business. Pumping currently
makes up a significant proportion of our electricity consumption and projects are underway to
introduce newer technologies and optimise our control philosophies. The majority of our sites have
smart meters allowing us to coliate, analyse and optimise our electricity usage across the day and
to circulate daily consumption reports targeted for specific sites. To complement our energy
efficiency work, we aim to reduce the amount of electricity imported into our sites by maximising
our self-generation capacity, particularly from cur anaerobic digestion and combined heat and
power (CHP) plant, with a multi-site soiar programme under development. Qur sclar programme
will start later this calendar year and we plan to have 28 sites in place by 2025,

Tablel:energy performance

Grid electricity 536 530
Renewable electricity* generated and 81 03
consumed
Diesel 72 60
Gas Oi} 30 34
Kerosene** - -
Natural gas g 12
Petrol 2 2
Total 730 731
Intgnsiw ;Vphpﬁz; rmegalitre of water 593 208
rotios kWh per megalitre of wastewater

605 830

treated

*We are not currently able to report the amount of renewable heat that we generate and consume.
**Only trace armounts of kerosene are used.

‘Prior year nurmibers have been restated to disclose renewable electricity generated and consumed
seporately, and to reflect our revised intensity ratio methodology.

We are continuing to work with academia and industry to grow our scientific understanding of
emissions in the water industry and develop ways to improve our asset operations to minimise
their emissions. Ongoing work over the past year on sludge digester optimisation with the
University of York and on methane and nitrous oxide emissions with our strategic partners,
Stantec, have been particularly promising. Another area we feel has great potential to reduce
carbon emissions is the use of smart networks. These are interconnected devices such as smart
customer meters, flow meters and acoustic meoniters that together can improve our service to
custormners by reducing leakage and bursts and improving overall operational efficiency. In 2021
we finished ¢ 12-month pilot scheme acress Sheffield that involved approximately 3,500 srnart
meters. Over the duration of the trial, we reduced visible leaks in the triol area by 57% and reduced
mains bursts by 28% compared to the year before the trial. Being able to pre-empt and target
repair jobs also resulted in a 41% reduction in vehicle movements, leading to a saving of
approximately 1,200 kgCOze. We are now planning to expand the smart networks concept to other
areas of Yorkshire and expect this to lead to further energy and emissions savings as o result,

You can read more gbout cur net zero strategy on our website here:

https./ [www.yorkshirewater. com/environment/climate-change-and-carbon/our-carbon-
strategy.
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The key areas of our net zero approach are:

Carbon resillence;

Carbon reduction through efficiency;

Carbon reduction through renewables and green fuels;
Improving carbon storage; and

Forming key partnerships.

ooswN

We are continuing to work towards achieving our regulatory PC for operational carbon emissions
set by Ofwat, which you can read more about in cur APR for this year. This commitrment requires a
reduction in our operational emigsions by a minimum of 12% by 2026 from a 2020 baseline. in order
to ensure comparatbility with other organisations within the water sector, we use the water industry
standard tool, the Carbon Accounting Workbook, to calculate our emissions. We expect this
workbook to be made publicly available in due course. We also obtain external verification over our
input data to the workbook, aligned with the 1SO14064 greenhouse gas reporting standard. Our
reporting approach uses both ‘location-based’ and 'morket-based’ methodologies. Under a
location-based approach, we use standard emission factors published by the UK Government or
other bodies. Under a market-based approach, we use supplier-specific emission values which
reflect our procurement decisions. We purchase all our gric electricity on a certitied zero-carbon
tariff, which means under o market-based approach these emissions do not contribute to our
carbon footprint as they are bucked by renewable sources. For the first time this year, we also
purchased green gas certificates, equivalent te our natural gas use, backed by certified UK-based
renewable sources.

Scope 1 emissions are those we directly release to the atmosphere, for example from buening fossil
fuels on our sites, driving fossil fuel powered company vehicles, and reieasing guses during
treatment processes. In line with the Carbon Accounting Workbook, this does not currently include
ernissions from our land.

Scope 2 emissions are those indirectly released to the atmosphere through our purchase of
electricity, primarily to pump and treat water and wastewater.

Scope 3 emissions are other indirect emissions. In line with the Carbon Accounting Workbook we
include business travel on public transport and in private vehicles, activities from outsourced
operators and emissions from the transmission and distribution of the grid electricity that we
purchase.

Our GHG emissions and energy performance for the 2022 financial year are detailed in the tables
below, as well as last year's performance data for comparison,

Table 2: GHG amission performance

Scope | kt COze 87 87 86 88
Scope 2 kt COaze - 125 - 13
Scope 3 kt COze 10 21 8 18
Total GHG emissions kt CO2e 97 233 94 18
kg CO lit
g CO2e per rnfagc: itre 6 183 9 m
. . of water supplied
Intensity ratios o CO "
g 028 per megeire ng 216 123 22

of wastewater treated
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‘erior year numbers have been restated to {i) reflect the iotest version of the water sector Carbon Accounting
Workbook; (ii) reflect our revised intensily rotio sludge measurement methodologies; and (i) to refiect
transmission and distribution losses under the terms of our certified zero-carbon tariff.

Note that the figures listed above are calculated using the relevant emission factors for the
corresponding year. For our regulatory PC target of 12% reduction between 2020 and 2025, we use
fixed emission factors and methodologies to show the reduction against our baseline attributable
to performance gains, rather than as a result of changes to the carbon intensity of the underlying
grid. Further dotails of our PC can be found in uur APR, at https:/ /www.yorkshirewater.com/gbout-
us{reports/. Greenhouse gas emissions from combustion of biomass and biomass-derived
products for the year are 64 kt COze (2021 44 kt COze).

Disclosing our climate change risks and strategy

As early adopters of the Fingncial Stability Board's Taskforce on Climate-related Financial
Disclosures (TCFD) recommendations, we recognise the scale of the climate emergency and its
current and future impact on our ability to maintain our services. Our disclosures set out how
Yorkshire Water assesses and manages its priority climate risks and oppoertunities, ond how these
are governed and reported.

Our most significant climate risks arise from drought, flooding and transitioning our business to net
zero. Addressing these risks are a challenge for any business, but as we provide a life critical service
to more than five million customers, the regulatory environment in which we operate presents
additional complexity. We need to deliver significant infrostructure investment into our long-life
osset-based, high energy-use business at a price Ofwat determines our custorners can afford —
and we need to do this whilst also responding to rising drinking water quality and environmental
standards, many of which have significant carbon impacts.

Govermance

Climate-related risks are included in our principai and corporate risk register (see Managing risks
and uncertainties) which is reviewed regularly by the Board. A risk appetite has been set specifically
for climate and the Board monitor risk against this using agreed key risk indicaters. As climate is so
significant to Yorkshire Water, the Board's oversight of climate-related risks and opportunities spans
several Board committees as well as featuring on the agenda of the main Board. Climate risks are
also incorporated into our loeng-term viability analysis, which is assessed every year by the Board.

The Public Value Committee has primary responsibility for our climate strategy, including our
adaptation response and our transition to net zero. This includes consideration of the short, medium
and long-term risks and opportunities that we face in relation to climate, given the significant
impact of climate change on our services to the public as our key stakeholders. For example, its
consideration of the risk of drought and flooding includes oversight of cur Water Resource
Management Plan {WRMP) and our Drainage and Wastewater Management Plan (DWMP),

The Audit and Risk Committee oversee our risk appetite, tolerance, and strategy, as set out in the
Managing risks and uncertainties section. This has identified ‘climate change and carbon transition’
as a principal risk for Yorkshire Water and noted its interconnectivity with several other principal
risks. The Committee also oversees adherence to our SFF, which has specific use of proceeds
categories for investment in renewable energy, energy efficiency, clean transportation, and climate
change adaptation.
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The Safety, Health and Environment Committee and its remit over all our environmental impacts,
includes consideration of Yorkshire Water's cultural approach to the environment and embedding
the desired culture into decision making across the business. It also advises the Board on tone at
the top on all environmental matters. Greenhouse gas emissions by their very nature are inherently
a part of this, but so are the changing climate’s impact on extreme weather and its contribution to
pollution incidents, and internal and external sewer flooding events,

The Nomination Committee oversees the adequacy of the Board and leadership team skill set,
leads the process of Board recruitment, and makes recommendations on Board appointments.
Guring the financial year, this has included appeintments of Vanda Murray, Russ Houlden and Nicolo
Shaw all of whom bring experience, knowledge, and skills in relation to climate change.

The People and Remuneration Committee determine the policy for directors’ and senior leaders’
remuneration. They are responsible for the rules and application of the Executive Incentive Plan
(£1P), as a discretionary benefit for all directors and senior eaders. Operational carbon performance
constitutes one of the 11 key performance measures upen which reward under the EIP is based.

Alongside this, Yorkshire Water management's role in assessing and managing climate-related
risks and opportunities includes embedding climate into our core business strategy. risk
management processes and business plan. This year this has led to us:

» Developing our carbon strategy, setting out our plans to meet net zero operational
emissions by 2030.

+ Improving our land carbon model to increase our understanding of greenhouse gases
emitted and sequestered by our land.

« Updating our corporate flood risk assessment, creating a new visual database to held ali
our information about above ground asset flood risk.

« Carrying out a baseline assessment of our customers attitudes towards and knowledge
around climate change.

+ Embedding climate at the heart of our PR24 planning.

The overarching risk of *climate change and carbon transition’ is owned at executive ievel by Chris
Offer, Director of Strategy and Regulation. Ownership of achieving our net zero targets has
transferred to Nicola Shaw from May 2022

Strategy
Physical risks

As a water company we are highly dependent on weather and the natural environment for our core
services 8o we have a long track-record of working to understand, in detail, what our weather and
climate-related risks are and aligning our strategy accordingly. We have undertcken detailed
climate change modelling assessing the risks to our ability to supply drinking water since the 1980s
and have over ten years history of research inte the impacts of climate change on the rest of the
business. Our most recent climate change risk assessment has informed our third Adaptation
Report to Detra. This report, published in October 202, contains detailed information about how we
assess and manage the following:

s  Risks to public water supply from droughts and low river flows;
» Risk of sewer flooding in a storm;

» Risks to public health from poor water quality;
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»  Risks to infrastructure from river, surface or groundwater flooding;

*  Risks to infrastructure from coastal floeding and erosion;

+ Risks to bridges and pipelines from high river flows, bank erosion or subsidence;
+« Risks to natural capital; and

+  Risks from cascading impacts,

Our risk assessment considers different time horizons depending on the risk and the availability of
risk data. For example, we have modelled our risk of drought and sewer flooding now, in the 2050s
und the 2080s. Our Adaptation Report is available online here:
www.yorkshirewater.com/media/Sifczixe/adaptation-report-summar

we have cartied out detailed modelling to understand our risk to our two core services {drinking
water and sanitation} using the latest available climate change datasets. Our current WRMP
{WRMP19) was published in 2019 and covers in detail the investment we wilk make in the current
business planning period from 2020-2025, placing this investment in a 256-year context looking ot
to 2045. The diagram below shows the baseline supply demand forecast for 2015-2045 from
WRMP19 which this investment plan responds to.
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Water resource plans take a balanced approach to risk, and, in line with the methodolegy published
by our regulator, use the high emissions scenario from UK Climate Projections 2009 (UKCP0OS) along
with population forecasts and predicted changes to our economy to model future water supply
and demand. WRMP19 is based on o smart sample of 23 of the 10,000 climate model runs available
from UKCPOS covering a temperature rise of between 1.6 and 5.3 degrees by the 2080s and predicts
a supply deficit volume range, allowing us to adjust our strategy and planning accordingly. Our
current WRMP provides our customers with resilience to a one in 500 year drought.

We are also developing a regional pan-company water resource plan in collaboration with
Northumbrian Water and Hartlepool Water. This plan will be published in 2023 and locks out to 2085,
assessing the risks to future water supply up to a one in 500 year drought.

On the wastewater side, we welcome the industry-led change to place wastewater and drainage
planning on the same leng-term planning basis as water resources. DWMPs are being developed
by all water companies, ours was published on our website in June 2022 These plans model the
impacts of climate change, population growth and urban changes such as the increasing trend to
pave over front gardens, reducing the amount of permeable surface area and increasing the
pressure on our sewer network.
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Our sewer network has historically been designed to cope with everyday rainfall up to a1in 30 year
event. However, increasing urbanisation; climate change; and customers flushing wipes, fats, oils,
and greases into our sewers means that the risk of our network flooding is growing. DWMPS dim to
understand and manage thase challenges over a 25-year timeframe. Our plans for investment to
manage the risks identified in our DWMPs will be set out in our next business plan in 2025, Across
the 335 wastewater treatment works’ catchments assessed, our model predicts a 47% increase in
the number of residential properties at risk of internal sewer flooding between 2020 and 2050, This
is driven by the impact of tuture climate change on rainfall along with poputation growth and urban
creep.

As part of our strategic response to flood risk, our Living with Water partnership in Hull and East
Riding has progressed well. During the year we have alsc launched a similar partnership, Connected
by Water, focusing on the Don catchment in South Yorkshire. More details can be found in the Being
a good partner section.

We focus our response to physical climate risks to understand and manage aur short, medium, and
long-term risks, embed resilience into how we cperate, and gnsure strong emergency planning and
incident management capabilities. We regularly practice for disasters and civil contingencies with
local, regional, and national stakeholders including those relating tc widespread flooding and
power cuts. We are also introducing BS65000 (organisationcl resilience) compliant policies and
procedures, A key indicator of our supply resilience is our abifity to maintain services despite these
events. This year we have managed services through several major storms including Storms Arwen,
Barra, Malik, Corrie, Dudley, Eunice, and Franklin — all of which caused severe power disruption and
extensive fiooding across the region.

Transition risks

Alongside other members of Water UK, we set out our ambition in 2019 to meet net zero operationa!
emissions by 2030. Our principal transition risk is that we maoy not be able to transition to a net zero
operating model at the pace required at a cost the business can afford. Key contributory and
associated financial risks we have identitied are:

+ Failure to deliver our operational carion and capital carbon PCs;

«  Failure to account for ‘locked in’ carbon in investment decisions;

« Downward cost pressures leading to insufficient or delayed investment in climate
mitigation {and adaptation);

« Business decisions being made for financial, commercial and/or operational reasons
without due consideration of carbon impact;

» Evolving sclence for process emissions creating measurement and performance
uncertainty which could lead to failure to meet cur operational carbon PC and/or net zero
ambitions;

« Fallure to accumulate sufficient greenhouse gas sequestration assets by 2030 to ‘offset’
our residual emissions; and

+ Exposure to market price for REGOs and RGGOs {and offsets should we be unable to
accumuiate sufficient sequestration assets internally).

We have taken steps towards managing these risks including setting out a strategy to achieve net
zero operational emissions, embedding climate at the heart of our PR24 planning, accounting for
carbon in our investment decision making and developing carbon training. However, our ability to
finance our transition ot the pace required is highly dependent on Ofwat’s response to the climate
crisis in future price reviews.
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Our net zero strategy focuses on aligning the target with core business decision making; choaosing
renewable energy and low carbon fuels; electrifying our fleet vans and cars; supporting innovation
and new technology; and extending our tree planting and peatland restoraticn. You can read more
about our carbon ambitions and emissions here:

h LIwww ygrkshirewater. com/environment/climate-change-and-carbgn/,

Risk management

Our long-term plans for identifying, assessing and managing climate-related risks to our core
services of providing drinking waler and safely removing and treating wastewater are described
above. We also carry out a significant ameount of other risk assessment activity which feeds into our
various corporate risk control processes, which is described in detail in the Managing risks and
uncertainties section in this report. Our principal risk register contains 11 risks, many of which are
related to weather and climate. For example, risks arising from drought and sewer flooding both
feature in our principai risk profile.

In addition to oversight by the Boord, these risks are each owned by a member of our executive
team and are reported against on a quarterly basis, with action plans put in place if risks stray
outside of the corporate appetite.

For more detail about our risk and assurance procedures please see Our Principal risks section.
Further details on the processes for assessing and managing our physicol climate risks are
disclosed in our Adaplation Report at the link above.

Metrics and targets

The key metrics we use to manage our climate-related risks ond opportunities are primarily those
prescribed by Ofwat. The majority of these have a financial incentive or penaity associated with
them,

We have a suite of PCs with associated ODIs that are closely linked to our resilience to physical
climate risks relating to both water and wastewater services. These metrics help show how we are
managing the impact of weather and climate on customers and the environment and therefore
how well we are managing our physical climate risk. Incentive and penalty exposure for 2021 and
2022 (actual) and remainder of AMP7 {maximum) for the PCs most closely linked to physical risks
are as follows:

Incentives* Penalties*
1 2022 2023 2024 2025 207 2023
£m £m £m £m 3 £m

Water supply

interruptions

UPO

Internct sewer
flooding

Pollution
incidents

Treatment
waQrks
compliance
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Sighificant

water supply - 17 1.7 17 | (100) | (74) (7.8) (7.5) (7.5)
cvents

ptarnal sewer 76 | 230 | 222 | 25 | - - | me) | (09 | (02)
flooding

Bathing watar - los|os |os ]| - | @8 | (584) | (54) | (59)
quality

surtace wator _ _ . ol _ _ ~ B (o)
managermont

Living with _ _ _ - _ . _ ~ (21_4)
water

Total . 17.6 | 41.8 | 401 | 38.3 | (19.8) | (28.0) | (136.4) | (141.8) | (165B.1)

*Some ODIs are uncapped. Thersfore, we have modslled our incentive and penalty expasure using the Monte Carlo method. For
consistancy, we have reported the PIC and P90 values for incantives and penalties respectively, across all ODIs, unless more
refiable information exists to indicate actual outcomes may lie outside of these parameters. Note: the above metrics reprasent
a subset of the full suite of PCs and hence the actuals penaity/reward figures above will not reconcile 1@ the overall OD;
pearformance figure.

Another notable measure of our resilience to climate change is g long-standing absence of major
interruptions to water and wastewater services. Custormers in Yorkshire have had no restrictions to
their public water service since the drought in 1995. However, the widespread power outages during
Storm Arwen led to some customer outages which olso offected several of our water pumping
stations. This is discussed further in our Being great with water section.

As well as our ambition to achieve net zero operational emissions by 2030, we also have several
ODis closely linked to our transition performance. This includes those where successful performance
would have a pasitive impact oh the amount of greenhcuse gases, we emit from energy use and/or
water treatment. Incentive and pendity exposure for the current year (cctual) and remainder of
AMP7 (moximum} are as follows:

Incentives Penaltics
202 2022 023 2024 2025 200 playy) 2023
£m £m £rm £m £m Y &m £m
Operational
carbon

Leakage*®

Repairing or
replacing
customer

owned pipes®

Per capita

consumption®*
Water
recychng®

lotal

* Thesa ODIs are also a response to physical risk, linked to the risk of drought highlighted by our WRMP. Note: the above maetrics
rapresent @ subset of the full suite of PCs and hence the actuals penalty/reward figures above will not raconcile to the overall
ODI pertormancs figure.
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This trend of climate related ODIs is also expected to continue in future AMPs, though details of
commitments, measurement methodologies and levels of ambition may change.

we have also paid a climate change levy of £4.0m (2021; £4.2m) in the year.
Further detaiis on our energy and greenhouse gas metrics, targets and performance can be found
in our Energy and carbon section.

Our Five Big Goals — Being a good partner

Partnership working with Yorkshire's institutions and communities is a central part of our strategy.
Throughout the pandemic we have worked pdrticularly closely with local authorities, and we regard
ourselves as a public service which happens to be privately owned. As an anchor institution we
recognise that collaboration with other anchors of the region's economy and social fabric means
that we can maximise our impact and contribute to the inciusive growth of the region. If the region
grows, by extension, this creates opportunity for Yorkshire Water to grow. At a strategic level we
have engaged with the Yorkshire Leaders Board to ensure it plays a significant role in the delivery
of our business plan for the next price review. The Leaders Board brings together the leaders and
chief executives of Yorkshire's local and mayoral authaorities, so this engagement delivers on the .
aspiration of the National Infrastructure Strategy for regionai elected bodies to heip set the priorities
for water utilities. The early stages of this process have been very positive, and it has quickly become
clear that investment in our network is on important enabler for the growth ambitions of local
authorities, particularly with regards to house building. As work on the plan develops further, we
expect this engagement to continue and to deepen.

Living with Water

At a sub-regional level, our most mature partnership, Living with Water, in Hull and East Riding, has
now been in place for four years and has provided tangible benefits in improving flooding resilience
and incident response. On a tactical level, the four partners, Yorkshire Water, the EA, Hull City Council
and East Riding of Yorkshire Council, now coliaborate very effectively in planning for and responding
to extreme weather incidents. This coordination and the deployment of new blue-green assets
{water retention areas) have helped to ensure that Hull has not flooded during the numerous
named storms of recent years. On a more strategic level, the Living with water partners have
developed q city water resilience approach and a joint blue-green vision for the city which will be
the framework within which future flood resilience investment will be delivered.

Connected by water

In 2021, we worked with four local authorities: Barnsley, Sheffield, Rotherham, and Doncaster, as well
as the South Yorkshire Mayoral Combined Authority and EA, to form Connected by Water. This is a
South Yorkshire alliance which draws on our experience of collaboration in Hull and gims to build
flood resilience in the River Don catchment and respond to the climate emergency. The drive for
the creation of the aliionce came from the impact of the 2019 floods in the catchment and from a
clear realisation that resilience needed to be managed on a catchrment wide basis, with a single
strategic plan and aligned investment from all the partners. Connected by Water opened a
consultation on its action plan in January 2022. This plan is built around four themes: responding to
the climate emergency; smart investment; technology and operational management; and
community engagement and resilience. The consultation received o very positive response, and
the final version of the pian will be published |ater this year. Discussions are underway with the West
Yorkshire Mayor ~ Tracy Brabin, and other local authorities to replicate this model in the Aire and
Calder catchments.
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Land anchor network

Yorkshire Water is the second biggest landowner in Yorkshire, and we have known for some time
that the management of our landholdings has ¢ significant part to play in waoter quality, climate
response and adaptation and nature recovery. Realising that anything we can achieve on our own
will be magnified by collaboration with other institutional landowners, we convened the Yorkshire
Land Network to facilitate collabaration in all these areos. The Netwerk has been supported by the
large private estates such as Devonshive, Wentworth and Fitzwilliom, and the Duchy of Lancoster as
well as Crown Estates, Church Commissioners, the National Trust and Forestry England. The network
has already made good progress in collaborative projects on recreation and is looking to tocus on
joint land use projects over the next 12 months.

Other partnerships

As partof our Working With Others PC, over the past year we have invested £267,000 in nine prejects in partnership
with other organisations to tackle our shared chaflenges. This has uniocked a further £1im of external funding,
Examples of projects we have been invoived in include:

«  Muli-milion-pound fiood fisk management schemes in Otley and Sheffield, which have removed
surface water from our network and created new wildiife and public amenity spaces, including
daylighting a previousty culverted section of watercourse.

«  Instaliation of a new flood education centre at Witberforce College in Huil through our Living with Water
portnership.

«  Coloborating with other water companies to support national drought resflience by assessing the
bicsecurity risks of transferring water across England.

Our Five Big Gouls - Keeping services affordable

We are committed to eradicating water paverty in Yorkshire. The 'Direct Suppart to Customers’ PC
aims to provide bill support to our most financiotly vuinerable customers. We have continued to
overperform this measure by exceeding our targeted support on Water Support, our social tariff
designed for customers on low incomes, and Resofve, our payment matching scheme far
customers in arrears. The voids measure dims to maximise the number of properties billed and is
designed to ensure billed income is maximised resulting in lower bills for all customers in future
years,

The weighted average voids performance for the full year significantly exceeded target because of
changes implementad on identification of occupied properties, this allowed Yorkshire Water to
identify and charge more customers. Our performance is now at the 2025 Ofwat-targeted level and
ahead of plan.

Qurkey measures®

Voids % 473 <4.33 3.78 <415
Direct Suppoart ta Customers No. custamers 51,408 268,000 80,778 275,000 ]
Customers agreeing we
are “value for money” in an o 8o a) 79 83
independent survey by the

CCW J_
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*In the pricr year Gap sites was reported as o key measura within this section. Last year's APR process resulted in revised
reporting definitions of this measure and it no longar being o medasure of customer affordability and one of Developer services
petfarmance. We have therefore removed this measure from our key measures.

In the coming year our customers are anticipated to face growing affordability issues through
higher energy bills, rises in National Insurance contributions and rising interest rates. We will
continue to offer meaningful financial support to our most financially vulnerable customers.
Support will continue to come from our established heip schemes through increases in the number
of financially vulnerable customers’ bills reduced through social tariffs ar water meters.

Households across the country have been impacted by rising costs of living, with double digit
headline inflation and annual foed bills set to increase this year. Yorkshire Water has responded to
the cost of living increase, with an additional £15m from the company's shareholders available for
support with bills through to 2025. It brings total support for customers to £115m across the five-year
AMP. Building on improvements to our voids services, we plan to again exceed the targeted level
within the FD next year. Performance at this anticipated level will continue to ensure billed income
is maximised, resulting in lower bills for all custorners in future years.

Loop Customer Management

Loop's principal business is the provision of customer management services to Yorkshire Water,
which are primarily billing and collections of household revenue. The changing economic climate
can, therefore, have a major impact on Loop's activities and may impact on Yorkshire Waoter
perfermance in Ofwat's PCs for customer service as detailed in the Yorkshire Water section of this
Strategic Report.

Loop also contributes to the delivery of Yorkshire Water customer experience strategy, the customer
promise and making Yorkshire Water one of Yorkshire's most customer and colleague valued
organisations.

Engaging colledagues has been a key initigtive through embedding our ambition to put people at
the heart of everything we do and ensuring our new behaviours are aligned with perfermance
management. This has been recognised by the award of “Outstanding” status in the Great Place to
Work accreditation from Best Companies, which was based on colieague feedback and the
improvement of the Investors in Peopie award to Gold standard. The accreditation was awarded in
2021 but lasts two years until the next assessment.

Whilst Covid-19 continued to impact some activities in 2022 through hybrid working, Loop has
successfully delivered household billing services to Yorkshire Water. A focus for the coming year will
be responding to the challenges the cost-of-living crisis will bring to customers by ensuring
colleagues have the skills to support and our service responds to their needs.

Keyland

During the year, Keyland's activities centred on promoting residential and industrial sites through
the statutory planning system to meet market demand.

The Keyland business continued to focus on maximising the value of property assets released by
Yorkshire Water, with the current year's results being derived primarily from the sale of land for
residential development. In addition, Keyland has continued to secure further opportunities by
working with third-party landowners seeking to bring forward potential development sites.
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Keyland continued to make progress on a number of joint venture projects, which control strategic
devejopment sites around Leeds.

The main risks to Keyiand were:
+ the quantity and type of sites becoming available for transfer from Yorkshire Water;
« the fluctuating market conditions, which affect the value of tand; and
« changes, unpredictability and delays in the planning system.

Looking forward, Keyland will continue to concentrate on securing an adequate supply of sites from
vorkshire Water, whilst also promoting sites on behaif of third~party landowners.

KTM

The principal activity of KTM is to comply with the Goods Vehicles (licencing of operdtors) Act 1995
to demonstrate continuous and effective management of two operating licences (vorkshire and
North-West England) for Large Goods Vehicles (LGV) allowing Yorkshire Water to operate LGV whilst
promoting operating efficiencies.

As per the undertakings of KTM's aperating licence, ail legai and statutory documentation have
transferred from Yorkshire Wwater. KTM can demonstrate independence of Yorkshire Water. Three
appointed transport managers are in place with two appointed Board directors supperted by o
Compahy Secretary.

Both operating licences are recording blue statuses (full compliance) within the Traffic
Commissioners Office OCRS (Operators Compliance Record $core). in January 2018 KTM achieved
the DVSA (Driver Vehicle Standard Agency) Earn Recognition Accreditation and the FTA (Freight
Transport Association] Truck Excellence for compliance and management of its operating ficences.

TSWG

The UK Water Act 2014 (UKWA) established the framework to create a markst that allows 1.2 million
businesses and other non-household customers of providers based mainly or wholly in England to
choose their supplier of water and wastewater services from April 2017. Non-household retail (NHHR)
services include services such as billing and customer services. The sale of the Yorkshire water
NHHR custorner base teok place on the 3¢ September 2019 to Scottish Water Business Stream Ltd.
(scotlond's largest non-domestic water supplier). On the 31 March 2022, the TSA ended with all
activity having transferred to Business Stream. The operations of TSWG have now cedased.
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Section 172(1) statement

In 2018 the Companies (Miscelianeous Reporting) Regulations introduced d requirement for large
companies to publish a statement describing how the directors have had regard to the matters set
out in section 172(1){a) to (f) of the Companies Act 2006, The statement here relates predominantly
to Yorkshire Water, as the largest subsidiary within the group.

Yorkshire Water
company providing an essenticl public
service. We live and work in the
communities in which we operate, and the
vast majority of our employees are also

is a privately owned
Focus on the environment = the River Wharfe

The environment is central to all we do at Yorkshire Water.
Our approach to the environment affects not just the
quality of our water and the amount of water that we may

Yorkshire Water customers, as are their
neighbours their extended
families. This creates an even greater

and often

have in the future, but alse the pecple in our communities
who want to enjoy the water outdoors as part of their daily

lives.

respensibility not only to have ‘regard’ to
our key stakeholders, as required by section
172 of the Companies Act 2008, but to
always be aware of how our actions impact
upon them, both now and in the long-term.

As detalled earli
in lkley is the first designated inland bathing
England
Yorkshire Water to work with stakeholders to deliver

in this strategic Report, the River Wharfe
vater in
and presents a

significant  opportunity  for

improvements  to  river traditional
investment, deployment of nature and community-based
mnology. The Board has

heard a lot about the work cngoing in lkkley during the yeor

quality, through

This is reflected in Yorkshire Water's purpose
- ‘we're proud to play water's role in making
Yorkshire a brilliant place to be - now and
always’ and our ambition “to put people at
the heart of everything we do”.

solutions and the use of smart tec

and o number of Board members have visited the site
learn tirst-hand about the proposed
approach. the Board
discussion and the approval of the reguired investment

themselves to

Yorkshire Water's purpose makes us think of This has influenced much of
the long-term and our impact on the
communities we  serve  throughout
Yorkshire. Gur ambition makes us consider
people in all of our decision-making,
including not just our colleagues but our

customers and the communities around us.

with a view to learning from this scheme te thenroll out the

same approach in other areas of Yorkshire to ensure more

of cur communities can benefit from this work.

Our use of the Six Capitals to measure our performance also helps in the consideration of
stakeholders by the Board, as it means the impact of decisions on human, manufactured,
intellectual, natural, and social capital is considered aiongside any financial impact. More
information on our Six Capitals approach can be found in the Yorkshire Water ARFS.

How does the Board consider the long-termin its decisions?

We are committed to thinking about the long-term in our decision-making and our impact on
Yorkshire, now and always. The decisions we make now wiill have long-term implications for
Yorkshire, particularly in relation to the long-term availability of water which is clearly impacted by
the environment, climate change and the demographics and usage habits of the communities we
serve.

At least twice a year the Yorkshire Water Board considers leng-term trends, risks, and opportunities
through a ‘horizon scan’ which is presented 10 and discussed by the Board. The Board alsc receives
other updates on long-term trends through various Board workshops and deep dives and has
considered the long-term strategies for both carbon and energy during the year at the Public Value
Committee.
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within the business, the work on horizon scanning feeds into the longer-term strategy for the
business, which in turn informs the annual business plan and key decisions being made day~to-
day in the business. We publish o WRMP at reguiar intervals which sets out how we plan to maintain
o secure supply of water to all of our custormers over the next 25 years. The Board has oversight of
the drafting of this plan. The lotest version of this plan can be found at

. i - SQUI! - rces- nt-plan/. The
Board has also considered long-term risks and opportunities as part of the scenario planning for
our iong-term viability (LTV) statement. Eqch year the Board receives information on the different
scenarios considered and challenges the assumptions made to ensure that the scenarios are
appropriate and comprehensive.

How does the Board consider stakeholders in its decisions?

Colleagues
Focus on our people

Engugement Forum

= The Colleague
The Yorkshire water Board receives regular

insight into the views of colleagues from the
Colleague Engagement Forum, which meets a
few weeks prior to each Board meeting. There
is on open invitation to oll Board members to
attend any of the meetings, with nine of the 13
directors who were members of the Yorkshire
Water Board during the year attending at least
one Forum meeting in the year under review.
The Forum is made up of colleagues from
across the business, representing all areas of
the organisation, and the agenda is set based

Yhe Yorkshire Worter lleague Engagement

Forum has me s during the year and
with  an
attending t

» purnose of the Forum is to provide a direct

voice for colleagues to the Board. Board

] a get to hear directly
from the Forum, plus the discussions are

carefully minuted and the minutes circutated
Booard with a ¢
rad mecting to conside
from the Forum

During the year a ‘fix the basics’ programme

ran which was a direct ponse to fecdback
from the Forum, and sought to remove the red
tape’ that can prevent improvements befng
mades guickly aeress the business to improve
prov better

afficioncy  and customer

sarvice,

post Covid-1g
the approach gdopted ac

the ronirn tn the nffica

Customers and communities

on key items due to be discussed at the Board
or topics suggested by the Forum members.
Forum members are encouraged to be as
open and candid as possible and the minutes
are made available on aur intranet after each
meaeting.

We also carry out a colleague engagement
survey which seeks to understand how our
colleagues are teeling about multiple topics.
This includes the opportunity to comment on
any of the questions being asked. Our surveyin
late 2021 had 3,280 tesponses, including many
comments which were summarised and
shared with the Board for inforrmation. This
information has fed into Board discussions on
a number of diffarent topics.

The Yorkshire Water Board receives monthly performance updates on custormer metrics and
receives updates from their Director of Customer Experience at each Board meeting. Customer
experience and community engagement have alse been considered in more depth at Yorkshire
Water's Public Vaolue Committee, which has spent time in the year focusing specifically on our
ongoing werk in llkley in relation to the River wharfe as o designated bathing water, as wel) os the

37



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

reporting of *Cur Contribution to Yorkshire’ which will be published in the autumn. 'Our Contribution
to Yorkshire' provides customers with insights into how we are contributing to the local economy,

the environment, and the community.
Suppliers and partners

The Yorkshire Water Board is reguiarly asked to approve
procurernent decisions, and as part of that considers the
impact of Yorkshire Water on its suppliers and strategic
partners.

A new approach to vendor management within Yorkshire
Water was discussed in detail at the Yorkshire Water SHE
Committee. The Commiittee challenged the accountability
and responsibility in relation to this and spoke directly to
some vendor managers to ensure the new approach was
fully understood and operating effectively.

Two partners alse attended Committee meetings during
the year to enable the Committee members to hear first-
hand the experience of working with Yorkshire water from
a health and safety perspective, and how Yorkshire water
might improve its approach to better support suppliers
and partners in their work.

Other stakeholders

As a water and sewerage company and an anchor
institution in Yorkshire, we have a broad range of
stakeholders from a variety of backgrounds, inciuding
authorities, customer bodies, landowners,
government depdrtrments, environmental bodies,
regulators, trade unions and cther utility companies.

local

Yorkshire Water has a Corporate Affairs team within the
business which is responsible for handling relationships
with key stakeholders, and which reports regularly to the
YWLT and Yorkshire Water Board on these relationships
and the key messages being received from the different
stakeholder groups. This enabies the YWLT and Board to
consider stakeholder interests when making decisions,
both on a day-to-day basis and at a more strategic level,

Focus on our suppliers and partners -
Partnership for Yorkshire

In November 2020 Yorkshire Water launched
‘Partnership for Yorkshire' which signified a
new delivery model for our capital delivery
programme. This approach has continued
and gathered momentum during the year
under review.

The model adopts the "Project 13" approach
and 153 designed to drive quality, safety,
sustainability, innovation, and efficiency whilst
putting people at the heart of everything we
do. We are deing this by moving away from o
transacticnal model for our infrastructure

jects, and instead working with partners,

and suppliers In a mere integrated
and collaborative y, focusing on the needs
of the ultimate user und emphasising the

delivery of outcomes rather than cutputs.

To do this we have had to think longer-term to

defing the outcomes we want from our
infrastructure projects and make changes
within our business to ensurc we have the
right operating model, and

capabilities in place to support this approach.

governance,

The Yorkshire Waoater Board has been fully
supportive of this change since its initial
proposal and continues to receive updates on
how this is progressing, including directly from
others within the Partnership for Yorkshire.

A number of the YWLT members, including the executive directors, are directly involved in the
relationships with key stakeholders and are therefore able to bring first-hand knowledge of the
thoughts and concerns of these stakeholders back to discussions at both the YWLT and Board.

Our shareholders

We have four ultimate shareholders and all are represented on the Board of Eurobond. In addition,
the three largest shareholders are represented on the YWS Board, with the fourth shareholder
entitled to appoint an observer to attend the Board meetings. In this way, we ensure that we treat
ali of our shareholiders fairly and that their views are fairly represented in key decisions. This is
further ensured by a Shareholder Agreement, which was signed in 2010 and which sets out the rights
of each of the shareholders in relation to the company and the matters which require specific
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investor consent. Further information on how our Board operates can be found in the Directors’

focus on the environment - Connected by
Water -

Oong of the

ion to the
cnvironmaent is the impact ot flooding on our

oy considerations in re
communiti to this,
‘Connec
South v

during the year, in re
d by Water was launched, which is o

of Yo
rorking together to huild

hire alianc
and the kA,
flood : follows on

hire Water, local
councils
from our
d allic in Hull and
Haltemprice called living with Water'. The Board

ca Living with We

interrationally recognis

in 2019 and the lcarnings
in the decision to soc

vithin our ragion.

The plan for the alliance began oftor floods
: 2009 and
1ated from their homaes

Yorkshire in

structuro we

around t}

Mergency,

toct . >rational man
and

yment;

The partnership plan s open to  public

consultation until N March 2022, as we wanted aur

customers to provide feedback on the plon, Woe
shops for colleagues acro
tt u

3 the plan and we
continue  to

provide  updates to coll
through our Intranet.

report.

How does the Board consider the
reputation of Yorkshire Water for high
standards of business conduct?

Trust is extremely important for aill
businesses, but particularly when
operating in a monopoly as we do in our
household business. It is critical that our
stakeholders trust us, and so we believe it is
very important that we maintain high
standards of business conduct in alf that
we do. This forms part of ocur Customer
Promise, which aims to ensure that our
customers can rely on us.

Yorkshire water seeks to be open and
transparent in the data that we share and
rgport openly on our performance. The
Board receives assurance on  the
information it uses to make decisions
through various means, including internal
audit reports, external assurance reports or
from the  Yorkshire Wwater Beard
Committees, which have the capacity to
scrutinise information more closely before
it is discussed by the Board.

A reputation dashboard is shared with the
Board on a gquorterly basis which sets out
stakeheolder sentiment and customer
perception. We have a Code of Ethics which
sets out the ethical standards which are
expected of all those working on behalf of
Yorkshire Water. This was relaunched
during the year following approval from the
Yorkshire Water Board and is accompanied
by an e-learning module which is
mandatory for all colleagues every year.
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Our corporate structure

The diagram below shows a summary of the active companies within the Kelda group. All
companies are wholly owned unless stated otherwise. Details of the group's shareholders and
capital structure are also published on the group’s website, found at this link: www .keidagroup.com.

Kelda group corporate structure at 31 March 2022

Kelda Holdings

- GiC 33.56% « Gateway Infrastructure HK Limited, Gateway HK water
Umited and Gateway HK Water Il Limited, (managed by

« Wharfedale Hong Kong Limited A N
Corsair Infrastructure Management LP), 20.32%

(managed by DWS) 23.37%
+ SAS Trustee Corporation 12.75%

Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Other Kelda Businesses Kelda Group Limited
Kelda Finance (No.1) Limited

KeldaFinance (No.2) Limited KeldaFinance (No.3) Plc

Whole Business

i . Yorkshire Water Services Holdings Limited
Securitisation

group Yorkshire Water Services Limited

Yorkshire Water Services Finance Limited Yorkshire Water Finance Pic

Summary of active group company activities

The details and activities of the companies within the group structure chart above are as follows:

Kealda Holdings Limited — the ultimate parent undertaking for the group. Whilst the company is
incorporated in Jersey, it is wholly and exclusively resident for tax in the UK.

Kelda Eurobond Co Limited — the company is incorporated in England and Wales and wholly and
exclusively resident for tax in the UK. It was incorporated for the purposes of issuing bonds as part
of the acquisition of the shares of Kelda Group Limited (formerly Kelda Group PLC) by the
shareholders in 2008. This bond debt meets the eligibility requirements of the “quoted Eurobond
exemption”. All bond debt issued by the company is held by the shareholders of Kelda Holdings
Limited.

The bonds issued by Kelda Eurobond Co Limited are listed on the International Stock Exchange in
the Channel Islands (TISE). TISE is regarded by the UK's HMRC as a recognised stock exchange for
the purposes of the quoted Eurobond exemption. Listing on TISE was chosen rather than the London
Stock Exchange (LSE) for ease of administration; since the bonds in question are not traded the
greater administrative requirements imposed by the LSE are not necessary.
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Kelda Group Limited — originally the ultimate holding company in the group and formerly a public
listed company. It was incorporated in Englond ond Wales and is wholly and exclusively resident for
tax in the UK. The shares were acquired and the company de-listed in February 2008.

TSWG - offered water and wastewoter retail and added value services o non-household
customers across the UK up to 1 October 2018, The non-household retail business was sold to
Business Stream on this date and operations have now ceased with effect from 31 March 2022.

Other active Kelda businesses

The following group companies operate in the UK and are wholly and exclusively resident for tax in
the UK:

+  Keyland -~ manages the group’s surplus property assets, either on its own or in partnarship with
outside organisations.

-+ Loop Customer Management - delivers customer service support to Yorkshire Water that
includes billing and debt recovery.

« KTM — provides vehicle operating licence compliance and promotes safe and efficient
practices for Yorkshire Water's fleet of Large Gooeds Vehicles,

Kelda Finance (No.l) Limited, Kelda Finance (No.2) Limited, Kelda Finance (No.3) PLC - these
cormpanies were incorporated to issue debt and raise loan financing facilities outside of the Whole
Business Securitisation (WBS) Group, described below. They are all incorporated in England and
wales and are wholly and exclusively resident for tax in the UK.

Yorkshire Water Services Holdings Limited — incorporated in England and Wales and wholly and
exclusively resident for tax in the UK. The company is the immediate holding company of Yorkshire
Water.

Yorkshire Water - incorporated in England and Wales and wholly and exclusively resident for tax in
the UK. This is the main company in Kelda group, providing water and wastewater services to the
Yorkshire region, This is the company to which this Annual Report and Financial Statement (ARFS)
publicaticn refers to.

Yorkshire Water Finance Ple, Yorkshire Water Services Finance Limited — companies within the
Whole Business Securitisation described below.

Whole Business Securitisation

Yorkshire Water has had a weli-established financing structure, known as a WBS, since 2009. The
WBS enhances the creditworthiness of Yorkshire Water by setting strict rules that demonstrate to
lenders the company is @ safe and reliable business in which to invest. Lenders are therefore more
prepared to lend to Yorkshire Water at [ower rates which is in the long-term interest of customers,

This WBS works by placing a protective ring-fence around Yorkshire Water's business which
includes the way it operates, the woy it trades with other group compunies outside the WBS and
the way it finances itself. The protections include limits on borrowings, dividends, and the ability to
lend money to other Keldo companies. The protections alse require profits to moere than cover the
amount of interest that Yorkshire Water pays.

Yorkshire Water Finance Plc is the principal financing vehicle for the WBS group. Yorkshire Water
Services Finance Limited remains part of the WBS as a legacy finance company for debt issued
prior to the introduction of the WBS. Both companies are incorporated in England and wales and
are wholly and exclusively resident for tax in the UK.

41



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Delivering and governing our investment programmes

Our Business Investment Committee {BIC) governs the delivery of our investment programmes.
Capital additions for 2022 were £446.8m (2021: £448.3m) (see note 11 to the Financial Statements).
Qur investment programmes help us maintain and enhance our operational efficiency and the
resilience of Yorkshire Water's infrastructure. We are increasingly focused on how we ensure the
most sustainable investment choices.

Qur Programme of investment supports the delivery of service level performance improvements
required to meet our stretching targets. Our single largest programme which will deliver our water
Industry National Environment Plan (WINEP) commitments is underway and early benefits have
been realised.

Managing and governing our borrowing requirements

Our financing strategy is designed to manage exposure to fluctuations in interest rates, to rule out
speculation, and to source and structure the group's borrowing to meet projected funding
requirements. Our treasury operations are controlled by a centrol team on behalf of the Kelda
Eurobond Co Limited group (Kelda group).

Our operations and investments are financed through a combination of retained profits, long-term
debt instruments, finance leases and bank facilities. Any new funding is raised in the name of the
appropriate group company and subject to relevant debt covenants. Within the conditions of the
Whoie Business Securitisation (WBS), explained in Qur corporate structure above, funds raised may
be lent to or from Yorkshire Water on an arm's length basis.

Any cash surplus to operating requirements is invested in short-term instruments with institutions
having a long-term rating of at least A-{/A-/A3 and a short-term rating of at least Al/F1/P] issued,
respectively, by $&P Global Ratings (S&P), Fitch Ratings (Fitch} and Moody's Investors Service
(Moody's).

During the year, we:

*» Repaid £145m of US private piacement notes, £95m of bank facilities and £40m of finance
leases;

* Renewed a liquidity facility in March 2022 at £90m with six banks, which Is required as a
standby facility to cover Yorkshire Water's operating and maintenance cost obligations;
and

+ Replaced an existing liquidity facility provided by banks, required to cover Yorkshire Water's
debt service obligations, with a £170m rolling five-year evergreen debt service reserve
guarantee issued by Assured Guaranty UK Limited.

« Raised new debt totalling £77.0m cutside of the WEBS in Kelda Finance {No.2) Ltd in the form
of £48.1m 5.09% fixed rate notes and a £28.9m floating rate loon (4.50% margin). Both have
o tenor of seven years. The company used the funds raised to repay £80.0rm bridging debt
entered into in February 2020 and which was due in August 2021,

On 20 April 2021, Yorkshire Water Finance Plc agreed terms for the issue of £350.0m of sustainable
bonds with a tenor of Tl and haif years and at a coupon of 1.75%. The net proceeds from the issue of
these bonds were loaned to Yorkshire Water and used to repay a £320.0m drawdown on its £560.0m
revolving credit facility.
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To date, £1,200m of debt financing has been raised in accordance with our $FF, which aligns the
group’s financing with its long-term strategy and values as discussed earlier in this Strategic Report.
The majority of Yorkshire Water's debt will continue to be issued in accordance with this framework,
with reperting aligned to our innovative Six Capitals approach to give stakeholders an insight into
the impacts of the group and its investments.

On 7 April 2022, Kelda Finance (No.2) Ltd successfully raised £65.0m new borrowings in the form of
a secured bank loan (SONIA + 3.00% rnorgin) with a tenor of seven years. Proceeds were used to
refinance an existing loan that was otherwise due for repayment in December 2022,

Total borrowings, including amounts owed to other group companies, were £7,569.8m as at 31
March 2022 (2021 £7,461.2m) and net debt was £7,517.9m ot 31 March 2022 (2021: £7,225.2m). The
maturity profile of our borrowings and further detaii on net debt are set out in notes 13 and 20 of the
Financial Statements.

senicr net indebtedness to Regulatory Capital Value (RCV) (Senior RAR or gearing) is o key
covenanted gearing ratio within Yorkshire Water's financing arrangements, and gearing levels are
monitored and forecasted on a regular basis. On a covenanted basis at 31 March 2022, Yorkshire
Water Financing Group's (YWFG) (being Yorkshire Water Finance Fic, Yorkshire Water and Yorkshire
water Services Finance Umited) Senior RAR was 73.40% (2021: 77.66%). These metrics are
fundamental to discussions with investors and is our covenant number, therefore o key
performance indicator for the business. A reconciliation of this percentage to the closest statutery
measure can be found in the Alternative Performance Measures section of the Yorkshire Water
Services ARFS.

Managing financial risk

Treasury operations are governed by guidelines for the management of interest rate risk, foreign
exchange risk, exposure to fluctuations in the rate of inflation and the use of financial instruments.
A broad portfofio of debt is maintained, diversified by source and maturity, designed to ensure there
are sufficient funds available for operations. Treasury poticies and procedures are incorporated
within our financial control pracedures.

The long-term sustainability of the group’s financing is of primary importance. Levels of debt and
associated measures, such as gearing and interest cover, are monitored frequently and forecast
against levels defined in financing documents and those needed to protect the group’s credit
ratings. These forecasts toke account of future expectations and stress-case scenatios relating to
future business performance, future regulatory price determinations, economic conditions, and
market conditions. We have provided more information about credit ratings later in this section,

Our teadership team receives reguiar reports from all areas of the business to enable prompt
identification of financial and other risks so that appropriate actions can be taken.

Our operations expose Yorkshire Water to o variety of financial risks that include the effects of
changes in debt and toan market prices, inflation, liquidity, interest rates and exchange rates.
Derivative financial instruments, including cross-currency swaps, interest rate swaps, and forward
currency contracts, are employed to manage the interest rate and currency risk arising from the
debtinstruments used to finance our activities.

Yorkshire Water's revenues are partly linked to the underlying rate of inflation measured by the retail
price index (RPI) and partly linked to the rate of inflation measured by the consumer price index
inciuding owner-occupiers’ housing costs {CPIH) and is therefore subject to fluctuations in fine with
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changes in both RPI and CPIH. In the absence of any management action, negative inflation could
potentially lead to o breach of gearing limits, however this risk is mitigated by Yorkshire Water
maintaining levels of inflation linked debt and being a counterparty to inflation linked swaps.

For inflation linked swaps, following cessation of the London Interbank Offered Rate {(LIBOR), receipts
are now based on the historical Sterling Overnight Index Average (SONIA) for an interest period, and
interest is paid at fixed amounts plus RPl. Movernents in RPI are also applied to the nominal value of
inflation linked debt and swaps to determine additional amounts 1o be paid either at maturity or
during the life of some inflation linked swaps. Theielere, the impact of RPI and CPIH reductions on
income and RCV is mitigated by reduced interest charges and lower value of inflation linked debt
used in calculating gearing as a percentage of RCV.

The maturity dates of the group’s portfolic of inflation linked swaps ranges from 2026 to 2063. The
swaps held by the company gave rise to a negative fair value at 31 March 2022 of £2,482.1m (2021
£2189.7m), this is reflective of expectations that long-term interest rates will continue to rise. See
note 20 of the Financial Statements for more details on the financial derivatives held by the group.
The transition of swaps referring to LIBOR for interest receipts or payments were transitioned to
SONIA before the cessation of LIBOR in January 2022,

Another financial risk includes the exposure to commoaodity price risk, especially energy prices. The
aim is to manage this risk by fixing contract prices where possible and cperating within an energy
purchasing policy that is designed to manage price volatility risk. As at 31 March 2022, Yorkshire
Wwater had fixed over 70% of its wholesale energy costs for AMP7, including 100% for the 2022 year,
through a combination of forward contracts and energy swap transactions.

In addition te the above financial management measures, our Insurance team also works to ensure

thot we manage and mitigate our exposure to costs from public liobilities and damage to our
assets.

Creditratings

Yorkshire Water and its financing subsidiaries have credit ratings assigned by three rating agencies.
These provide an external view on creditworthiness for our debt investors. The latest published
ratings are as follows:

Creditrating Class Arating Class Brating Outlook Date of
agency publication
(latest
available)
Fitch A- BBB- Stable June 2021
Moody's Baa2 Bal Stable September 2021
S&P A- BBB Stable April 2021

Qn 14 April 2021, S&P published an update and affirmed its ratings whilst changing its outiook to
stable from negative.

On ¢ June 2021, Fitch published an update and affirmed its ratings with an unchanged stable
outlook.

On 12 May 202], Moody's withdrew its Baa2 corporate family rating for its own business reasons.

44



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

On 18 November 2021, Moody's published an update and affirmed its ratings whilst changing its
outlook to stable from negative.

The most recent credit rating reports for all three of the rating agencies that assign credit ratings
to Yorkshire Water and the other companigs within the YWFG can be found on our group website at
www keldagroup.com/investorg/creditor-considergtions/ratings-r rts.

Corporation and other taxes

We are committed to acting with integrity and transparency in all tax matters. Our tax strategy and
pelicies require that we:

s Comply with both the letter of UK tax law and its application as it was intended;

*» Do not make interpretations of tax law considered to be opposed to the original published
intention of the specific law;

+« Do notenter inte transactions that have a main purpose of gaining a tax advantage; and

+  Mcke timely and accurate tax returns that reflect our fiscal obligations to the government,

Wwe do not use artiticial tax avoidance schemes or tax havens to reduce our tax tiabilities. All active
companies in the Kelda group are wholly and exclusively resident for tax purposes in the UK.

We work openly and proactively with HMRC to mointain an effective working relationship. Each yeor
we provide our tax returns to HMRC and they review cur position. In cases which are complex or
open to interpretation we work proactively with HMRC to determine the appropriate tax position.

A copy of the tox strategy adopted by the Board is publicly available at

https://www.yorkshirewater.com/about-us/tax/. it provides further detait on our approach to tax

risk management and governance drrangements.
Corporation tax

The accounting tax charge included in these statements of £33.8m (2021: £7.5m credit) is mainly
due to the non-cash movementin the group's deferred tax provision,

The deferred tax provision represents the temporary differences between the carrying value of
assets/liabilities in the graup accounts and their tax carrying value in tax returns. This is calculated
at the prevailing rate of corporation tax. Temporary differences will reverse in the future so the
provision becomes taxotion poyable. Other differences between accounts and tox returns are
permanent differences as they represent costs or revenue that are not subject to cerporation tax.

The 2021 and 2022 movements in deferred tax are due to the effects of:

» Timing differences between when capital assets are depreciated for accounts purposes
versus tax depreciation; and

« The effects of changes in the fair value liability of the group's inflation linked swap portfolio
{explained below}. Increases of reductions in the fair value licbility of the group’s inflation
linked swap portfolio represent an increase or reduction in the net interest the financia!
markets expect will be payable on those inflation linked swaps in future years. Changes to
the fair value of the liability are not tax deductible under UK tax regulations as tax
deductions are only available as and when the future interest payments are actually paid.
The increase in the fair value of the inflation linked swap portfelio will theretore create an
accounting cost which is not subject to taxation until the interest is poid ond therefore
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creates a timing difference. The fair value of the inflation linked swap portfolio can fluctuate
significantly and there wili be a consequential impact on the deferred tax provision.

e« For 2022 only, o significant part of the deferred tax charge relates to the increased
corporation tax rate of 25% from April 2023. Deferred tax balances must be recognised at
this higher rate compared to the current rate of 19%.

A full reconciliation of the group tax charge for the year is contained in note 9 to the Financial
Statements. The group continues to believe that it has made adequate provision for current tax and
defarrad tay llabilities. The ultimate lubility for such matters may vary from the amounts provided
and is dependent upon HM Revenue & Custom's agreement of the basis on which the group's tax
returns are filed. in assessing these tax uncertainties, management is required to make judgements,
evaoiuating the circumstances, facts and other relevant information in respect of the tax position
taken together with estimates of amounts that will be necessary to provide. The nature of the
group’s uncertain tox positions can relate to complex tax legislation that can be open to
interpretation. Original estimates are always refined as additional information becomes known. Any
uncertain tex positions are assessed using internal expertise, experience and judgement together
with assistance and opinions from professional advisors. There are no current material
uncertainties.

46



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 3! March 2022

Our financial performance

2022 2021

performance performance
Revenue
Incame receivable for services £1135.7m £1.118.8m
provided
Operating profi £254.0m £2537m
Revenue less operating expenses
Adjusted EBITDA
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation, amortisation, and £60L0m £610.2m

exceptional items
- Reconciied to Operating Profit
fater in this section

Net liabilities (£683.0m) (£814.4m)
Net debt®'

See note 20 of the Financial £7.517.9m £7,2252m
Statements

" Nat debt shown above is os repertad in the Financial Statements, which includes accounting adjustrments such as fair valuation and
discounted cashflow - please see note 20 and 21 of the Financial Statements for more details.

Below we explain the highlights of cur financial performance:

« Theincrease in revenue to £1135.7m (2021: £1,116.8m) is largely due to allowed inflationary price increases and
changes in consumption. Whilst there were variations for household and business customers caused by
ongoing home-~working and restrictions due to Covid-18 impacting consumption, the net impact of these
varigtions overali was smaill.

= Operating costs continue to be tightly manoged with total costs, excluding exceptional items, of £875.3m (2021
£835.2m) for the year. Operations have experienced various pressures on expenses in 2022, as a result of severe
storms, unforeseen increases in electricity and chemical costs, and additional provisions for household bad
debts due to the expected increased pressure on household income.

* Net exceptional costs of £6.4m (202): £27.9m) includes costs of £10.5m reloting to o strategic review of our
business processes to identify efficiencies and provide a step change in operational performance; offsat by
£3.0m insurance income relating to extreme weather events in prior years; and £2.0m income relating te
deferred consideration receivable tollowing the final true~up of the sale on the non-household retail customer
business in the year ended 31 March 2020. There are also additional severance costs of £0.9m incurred
following the cessation of the TSA with Business Stream.

+ The above movements result in a decredse in odjusted EBITDA to £601.0m (2021: £610.2m). A reconciliation
between this and the statutory measure can be faund averleaf. in cantrast, loss before taxation increased from
£189.9m te £529.7m.

« The net finance costs have increased to £785.2m (2021 £410.4m). This was predominantly o result of adverse
fair value movements in the current financial year, coupled with an increase in RPL The total tair value
adjustments are a net £368.6m expense (2021. £101.6m expense).
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We are therefore reporting  less for the financial year for 2022 of £563.5m (2021; £149.2m loss). This represents
on adjusted loss for the financial year of £281.5m (2021: £44.2m loss). A reconciliation between this and the
statutory meqsure can be found below.

« We have revalued infrastructure assets as at 31 March 2022 hased on the value in use. The revaluation
increased the asset value by £901.8m (2021: £217.0m uplift) which has besn reflected in the revaluation reserve.
Refer to note N to the Financial Statements for more detail.

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as follows:

2022 2o

£m £m
Loss before taxation (529.7) | (156.7)
Add back net finance costs 785.2 410.4
Add back depreciation and impairment (nate 1) 310.7 3026
Add back amortisation of intangible assets {note 10) 28.4 26.0
EBITDA including exceptional items 594.6 | 5823
Add back exceptlonal items (note 6) 6.4 279
Adjusted EBITDA 601.0 610.2

Adjusted EBITDA is the primary measure used by management and the Board to assess the financial performance
of operations as it provides a more compuarable assessment of trading performance year-on-year. Itis also g key
metric used by investors to assess the performance of our operations.

Adjusted loss is calculated as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m
Loss before taxation {529.7) (156.7)
Add back exceptional items {note 6) 6.4 279
Add back fair value movements {note 20) 369.6 101.6
Total (153.7} (27.2)
Effects of taxation* ’ (127.8) (17.0)
Adjusted loss (281.5) (44.2)

* Effects of taxation represents the total tax charge (current and deferred tax) on adjusted profit. This is calculated by adjusting
the total tox chorge included in the profit and loss account as shown in note 8 to the Financial Statements for the deferred tax
associated with the adjusting items noted above.

Adjusted loss excludes exceptional items and fair value derivative moverments. This excludes volatile balances and
provides a more stable view of profitability to management and is therefore a valuable metric to the business.
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Managing risks and uncertainties

Strong risk management allows Kelda group to consistently meet customer needs whilst keeping our colleagues
safe and well, whatever happens. It is at the heart of our ways of working, improving our ability to predict and
prepare for challenges. It is not about refusing to take risks. We accept the balance of risk that our Board agrses
will alfow us to transform the way we wark and achieve our geals now and fong into the future.

Our risk management framework

Robheiig srategy: efiectivs cantrwees

Araks e Bt ey

Our risk management cycle set out above, promotes operational and strategic resilience through early
identification of what could go wrong and putting controls in place to mitigate the effects before they happen,
Given the life-critical nature of the service we provide we expect a strong control environment with effective
response plans in place if risk escalates or materialises.

The Board sets our purpose, ambition and long-term goals and agrees the nature and extent of risk that it is willing
to take in pursuit of those goals, our risk appetite. it has responsibility for ensuring risks are managed effectively
acress the business, working with the Audit and Risk Committee.

We acknowledge the uncertainty in our operating enviranment and use our subject matter experts to scon and
capture the petential impact of this. Risk identification is embedded in all cur operational systermns dnd a stangard
risk assessment matrix is used to ensure consistent measurement. Risk owners set the tolerable leve! for each risk
and moniter garly warning signs to react if the level of risk becomes intolerabile. If risk is outside the Board's appetite,
risk owners implement focused action plans to further reduce the likelihood of the risk materialising and its
potential impact. Our coordinated assurance programme tests the design and operation of our control framework
and the delivery of plans, recommending improvement actions where needed. The Audit and Risk Committee
maintging oversight of the achievernent of actions as well as the quality of the risk and assurance processes.
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Our principal risks

Cur principal risks are those individual or aggregated risks which have the potential to threaten resilience or take
the business significantly beyond risk appetite. The heat map plots our current risk exposure after controls have
been applied, by impuct and likelihood. To be prudent, for aggregated risks such as cyber security, it shows the
worst-case individual risk score. The table over the foliowing pages describes each of these risks in more detai,
alongside our approach to mitigation and the change over the past year.

k4
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B
x
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Low % -
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very Risk impact very e
Low pa High Rizk has reduced

The impact of Russia and Ukraine

Our strong rigsk ranagement processes enabled us to swiftly map the potential impact of the myriad of potential
threats arising from the Russian invasion of Ukraine, ond shape mitigation, monitering arrangements and triggers
for escalation. There are four key strands to our response:

+ The wellbeing and workforce impacts arising from the humanitarian crisis;

= The impact of economic uncertainty and intlationary pressures on financial resilience and business plans;
» The resilience of the supply for critical operational products, most notably chemicals; and

» Security including cyber-resiiience, as well as protection of water quality and supply.

During the year, an exercise has been performed by management to ensure compliance across the business with
sanctions imposed as a result of the invasion.

We have not identified the situation in Ukraine as o separate principal risk but recognised its potential to accelerate
our principal risks.
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Our principal risks

1. Cybersecurity

we may fail to keep our koy business systems or data socure due to @ malicious

attack or failure of cyber sccurity. Sensitive data could be released in breach of

the Datag Protection Act, GDPR or Environmental information Regulations (EiR).
Qur Security Steering Group monitors the delivery of our information security policy and procedures.
it is committed to the continuous improvement of our cyber contrels and culture. The General IT
Control (GITC) Framewark automates and embeds security controls, particularly over access. We are
improving the resilience of our infrastructure through targeted investment. We regularly test our
back-up and recovery procedures. There is ongaing training, development, and communication for
all colleagues to improve our security culture and compliance. A range of information and cyber
security projects are further improving the control environment, to maintain GDPR compliance,
Network Information Systems Directive and other external standards.

2. Environmental protection and floading
We may harm the water envirornmment through unsafe abstraction or discharge

leading to pollution, or failure to adapt to flood inundation of our assets.

Our pollution incident reduction plan has focused on improving day-to-day compliance with our
1509001 and 8014001 assured cperational procedures. We opeérate a risk-based prioritisation process
for the maintenance and replacement of our assets. We monitor the effectiveness of our asset
management through a number of asset health measure. In 2022, we have improved our proactive
maintenance programme. We are 1ISOS5000 certified demonstrating that we follow best practice. We
have well established business continuity plans and use our corporate incident management
process to respond and recover, We have invested to protect our vuinerable assets from fiooding and
work actively with the EA to reduce the impact of floeding for others where we can.

3. Political, regulatory, or statutory change
We may fail to adapt quickly to externally driven pelitical and regulatory change.

This rise in this risk reflects the increasing regulatory engagernent with the water sector and the real- |
tirme working arrangements. Qur Corporate Affairs and Regutation teams tead our engagement with
policy makers and the water sector to ensure the needs of our custormers are understoed. This
pravides early visibility of regulatory and statutory change allowing a timely response. We have also
enhanced our approdach to scanhing the horizon for early sight of potential change. Our natwork of
legisiotion chompions helps senior manogers ensure business processes are compliont with
statutory and regulatory obligations and allows an agile response to change. A suite of cross-
business training and development promotes awareness of new obligations.

4. financial sustainability and economic uncertainty
We may be unable to access funding of acceptable market rates due te market

uncertainty or a downturn in our credit rating.

This risk has risen due to the increased volatility in cur economic working environment and the impact '
of inflationary pressures. The Board has opproved treasury policies to manage this risk. Financial
restructuring programmes are providing headroom, to support resilience. Our five-year plan
identifies our financing requirements. We are committed to maintaining our credit ratings and we
mandge our expenditure and funding accordingly. The BIC oversees all capital expenditure, and the
annual business plan and budget is set in in line with the plan. We maintain clear financial policies
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and procedures. Arrangements are in place to support customer affordability and managing
customer debt.

5. Customner experience and stakeholder trust
We may not consistently meet the expectations of our customers by failing to

dealiver on our commitments.

We recognise and seek to meet the increasing expectations of customers. Qur customer experience
strategy was created with our customers so that we understand and capture what is important to
them. We continue to capture rnistomer views to inforrn vur plans through cur Customer Forum and
online Customer Panel consultation. Meeting customer expectations is ot the heart of our
transformation plan and our daily performance management and prioritisation processes. Our
operational policies and procedures align to the achievement of customer service objectives. We
continue to improve our support to customers in vulnerable circumstances. We are committed to
eradicating water poverty in Yorkshire. We have reviewed our processes in light of the impact of
Covid-19 on customers’ ahility to pay.

6. Organisational transformation

We may fail to achieve the transformation required tc meet our custormer

expectations and achieve our cbjectives.

We significantly enhanced our Enterprise Change capability in 2022. We have a monthly Change
Board which oversees the successful delivery of the Change portfolio. This is supported by an
Enterprise Change function which has a clear framework to ensure that business design meets our
customer needs, and the totality of the Change programme delivers the expected benefits.

7. Climate change and carbon transition
We may fail to deal with the impacts of chimate change, extreme weather
conditions and population growth on the resilience of our water resources and

the integrity of our assets

We face extreme weather events with increased frequency. We perform extensive modelling to
understand what our weather and climate-related risks are and align our strategy accordingly. In
addition to the steps to improve resilience noted above, we are introducing policies and procedures
compliant with 8865000 (organisational resilience). We are collaborating to develop resilient low
asset solutions and ways of working, mest notably by the Living with Water partnership in Hull and
tast Riding and Connected by Water partnership in South Yorkshire. We have taken steps towards
managing our transition risks by setting out a strategy to achieve net zero operational emissions,
embedding climate at the heart of our PR24 planning, accounting for carbon in our investment
decision making and developing carbon training. We continue to improve our renewable energy
generation through our bio~resources and solar programmes whilst reducing our energy use through
new technology. Mere detail on our response to climate risk can be found in our Climate-related
financial disclosures section.

8. Public and calleague safety and wellbeing
We may fail to protect the safety, health and welibeing of our colleagues,

contract partners and customers leading to harm.

The safety, health and wellbeing of our colleaggues, contractors and customers is our top priority. We
are proud of our safety performance this year and our cutturn against cnnual targets. However, we
are not complacent. We are working hard to improve it further, with a focus on process safety and

learning lessons. Health and Safety matters are prioritised at ali meetings of Yorkshire Water
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Leadership Team (YWLT) and the Boaord. The Health and Safety Committee drives a focus on
continually improving controls. We remain committed to our ten life-saving rules across the business,
improving our safety behaviours. A Covid-18 safe management procedure operated through the
yedar, taking a cautious but flexible approach based on risk assessments. We continue to invest
significantly in collteague wellbeing, including menta! health, with sector leading initiatives including
access to GPs and physiotherapy, diabetes training and mental health first aider training,

9. Enough clean, safe drinking water
A problem with our system could cause o failure to meet the level or quality of
water our customers nced

We undertake detailed water resources planning and carefulty monitor demand, raw water quality
and asset availability to meet our customers’ needs. We use our flexible grid netwark to move woter
across Yorkshire to where it is needed. We operate a risk-based prioritisation process for the
maintenance and replacement of our assets. We monitor the effectiveness of our asset management
through usset heaith measures. We have improved our proactive maintenance programme. We are
ISO55000 (asset management) certified, demonstrating that we follow best practice. We have well
established business continuity plans and use our corporate incident management process to
respond and recover.

10. People: talent, culture, succession, and retention
Our plans may fail to ensure we have the taiont and cuiture to achiove our

objectives both now ond in the future

We put people at the haart of everything we do. We have dermonstrated commitment to our core
behaviours through our response to the pandemic, focusing on clear, regular communication as well
as colleague weltbeing. As part of our broader transformution programme, we are running a suite of
initiatives aimed at reviewing our culture, the embedding of our Big Ambition and developing and
implementing new frarmeworks to support performance and leadership development, capabilities
and tolent. The programme is well under way and will continue throughout AMP7,

Qur HR policies and procedures are published on our Intranet. These will be reviewed and revised
(where necessary) to ensure they both align to appropriate legislation and support our Big Ambition.

1II. Governance, conduct and organisational resilience
We may not achieve tho standard of conduct and reporting expected by our

stakeholdors.

We are committed to reporting clearly, openly, and cccurately te all our stakeholders. Our
coordinated internal and external assurance regime provides confidence to our leaders, customers,
and reguiators that we achieve this. We have re-sstablished our values and expected behaviours to
meet customer needs with integrity. We continue to promote our Speak Up policy and investigate
and learn from all issues raised. We have reviewed our Code of Ethics with the Board and are
cascading the requirements through the bkusiness. We have clarified our risk govermance and
responsibilities, to provide a clear line of sight to the Board. We are aware of the White Paper on the
Corporate Governance Code and the potential for a new regulator. We are mapping the impact and
assessing the risk, including our supply chain. We are confident that we have foundations for a
positive response.

L




Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Strategic Report

for the year ended 31 March 2022

The Strotegic Report was approved by a duly authorised committee of the Board of directers on 15 July 2022 and
was signed on its behalf by:

N e,

Nicola Shaw

Chief Executive Officer
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Principles of Corporate Governance

The Boord has clear obligations to the group shareholders and other stakeholders, including customers, suppliers,
local quthorities, regulators and the environment, on which we are dependent for our water resources now ond in
the future. To ensure we build and maintdin the trust of all of our key stakeholders we seek to operate with
exceptional governance, doing the right thing and remaining open and accountable at all times.

This report describes how the Board of the group discharge their duties in respect of corporate governance. Further
inforration on how Yorkshire Water, as the principal trading subsidiary of the group, approaches corporate
governance can be found in the ARFS of Yorkshire Water.

Group structure

The structure of the group and its principal operoting subsidiaries is transpdrent and expioined in a clear and
simple way on the group’'s website. Details of the group's shareholders and capital structure are also published on
the group's website.

The simplified group structure is set out in the Strategic report.
Leadership
The Board compasition

The Board comprises an Independent Nen-Executive Chair, eight investor non-executive directors and two
executive directors. As reported last year, Vanda Murray jeined the Board as an Independent Non-Executive
Director on 1 July 2021 and then became the Chair on 1 September 2021 when Anthony Rabin retired from the Board.
Three of our investor non-executive directors also resigned from the Board during the year; Svetiana Barthelemy,
Vicky Chan and Mike Osborne and were replaced during the year by Jessie Jin, Mark Lorkin and Russ Houlden
respectively, Foflowing the year end we announced that Liz Barber would be retiring as the Chief Executive of the
company on 6 May 2022 and we welcomed Nicola Shaw to the Board as her replacement on 9 May 2022,

The composition of the Board at 31 March 2022 was therefore as follows:

Independent Non-Executive Chair — vanda Murray
Exacutive directors
Liz Barber - CEO

Chris Johns - CFQ

fnvestor non-executive directars

Simon Beer - SAS Trustee

Andrew Dench - GiC

Jessie Jin - GIC

Russ Houlden - Carsair

Mark Lorkin - Corsair

Hori Rojon - Corsair

Scott Auty - Pan-tEuropean Intrastructure Fund
isabelie Caumette - Pan-turopean infrastructure Fung
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Alternative non-executive directors
Pete Stalley ~ Alternate for Simon Beer (SAS Trustee)

The biographies of the Board can be found in the Directors’ report.

Each of the directors served on the Board of the compoany’s subsidiary, Kelda Eurobend Co Limited, Vanda Murray,
Liz Barber and Chris Johns were aiso members of the Board of Yorkshire Water during the year, along with Scott
Auty, Andrew Dench and Russ Houlden who serve as investor non-executive directors. The appointment of investor
non-executive directors to the Yorkshire Water Board in September 2017 has brought considerabie benefit to the
Board of Yorkshire Water through closer interaction with the shareholder representatives and an increased diversity
of skills and experience, whilst ensuring that the independent non-executive directors remain the largest group on
the Yorkshire Water Board.

Liz Barber and Chris Johns also held directorships within other Kelda group companies during the year,
Vanda Murray is the Independent Chair of Yorkshire Water Services Limited and Kelda Holdings Limited.

The roles of the Chair and CEO are separate and clearly defined. There are clear levels of delegated authority, which
enable management to take decisions in the normal course of business. Statements of their roles and
responsibilities, formally agreed by the Board, are published on the company’s website at www .keldagroup.com.

Board structure and attendance

The Board held three meetings during the year. The table below shows the number of meetings attended by each
director out of possible attendances.

Board Attendance
Attended Qut of

possible

Vanda Murray 3

Anthony Rabin

Scott Auty

Liz Barber

Svetlana Barthelemy

Simon Beer

Isabelle Caumette

Vicky Chan

Andrew Dench

Russ Houlden

Jessie Jin

Chris Johns

Mark Lorkin

Mike Osborne

Hari Rajan
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Board responsibilities
The Board is ultimately accountable to its stakeholders for its activities.

As set out in the ARFS of Yorkshire Water, a number of steps have been taken by Yorkshire Waoter to ensure full
compliance with the Ofwat Principles published in 2019. The Board expects to continue to support Yorkshire Water,
to the extent required and applicable, in complying with the Ofwat Principles.

Conflicts of interest

There is a clear process for the disclosure of any potential conflicts by the directors to the Board and if appropriote
for the authorisation of such conflicts. All of the directors are required to notify the Company Secretary if they
believe a conflict situation might arise and directors are required to consider any confiicts at each Board meeting.
The directors do not consider that during the financial year any actual confficts of interest have arisen between the
roles of the directors os directors of the group and any other roles which they may hold.

Appointment of directors

New directors joining the company are given a broad and comprehensive induction to the business, as
apprepriate, consisting of site visits, meetings with key persennel and detailed information relating to the business,
as well as any training specifically required in relation to the duties of directors and their rofe on the Board.

Directors' training and development

The Board receives reguiar updates on governance-related matters and more farmal training where appropriate.
Training is available to directors on, and dfter, their appointment to meet their requirements. The Chair keeps this
under review and agrees any training and developrment needs with the individual directors.

There is on agreed procedurs for directors to take independent professional advice ot the company's expense in
furtherance of their duties in relation to Board matters.

Directors have access to the Company Secretary who is responsible for ensuring that Board requirements are mat
and procedures are followed in accordance with good governance. She also facilitates the flow of communication
between senicr management and the non-executive directors.

The directors receive full and timely access to all relevant informotion, including o monthly Board pack of
operational and financial reports. Direct access to key executives is encouraged.

The company has directors’ and officers’ fiability insurance in place,

Board diversity

The People and Remuneration Committee of the Yorkshire Water Board continues to leod discussion on the
Yorkshire Water Board's approach and objectives for the company in retation to diversity and inclusion. Yorkshire
Water continues to tocus on the areas of gender and ethnicity, seeking to enhance the balance within its workforce
to progress it towards becoming & more diverse and inclusive employer.

The Board continues to closely moniter its own diversity, particularly in relation to gender and ethnicity. As at 31
March 2022, the Board of Kelda Eurobond Co Limited had a female Board representation of 36.4%.
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Gender, ethnicity and age statistics for the group are provided in the Strategic Report in our Putting People First
section.

Internal control and risk monagement

The Board is responsible for the group’s internal control systermns and for reviewing their effectiveness. The Board
confirms that proceddres providing an ongeing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the group have been in place for the year to 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
approval of the ARFS and are regularly reviewed by the Boord. The group has a comprehensive and well-defined
risk management policy, including control policies, with clear structures, delegated authority levels and
accountabilities, described within the Strategic Report. The process Is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. The process can only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss. The Yorkshire Water Board monitors the overall level of risk, the quality of
control frameworks and the delivery of action plans to bring risk in line with appetite. In relation to financia!
reporting, the systems of risk management and internal control include an accounting policy manual and an
established system of accounting processes, including management monitering and review.

In 2022 the group has reviewed the effectiveness of its risk management process, to ensure that it is
comprehensive, integrated, proactive and based on constant monitoring of business risk. All risks are managed at
the appropriate level through the risk register hierarchy and stoted controls, owners and action plans where
necessary. The key features of the process include the fellowing:

« The key risks facing the group are identified through a clear risk assessment matrix and recorded in the
corporate risk register.

+ The Yorkshire Water Audit and Risk Committee reviews all movements in strategic risk as well as
considering the adequacy of the controis in place to mitigate strategic risks to risk appetite.

+ Risk registers are maintained by individual business units, with clear aflocation of management
responsibility for risk identification, recording, analysis and control.

« Risk assessment is completed with use of strategic risk impact and probability scales and results plotted
to enable prioritised action.

* Key risk indicators are used to monitor changes in risk position.

» The YWLT reviews the group's strategic tisk position.

* A risk review is conducted with the YWLT and the Board using a PESTLE analysis {political, economic, social,
technological, lsgal and environmental) at least annually.

+ The Board reviews and monitors the effectiveness of the risk management process, systems, controis and
resources on behalf the group.

+ Delivery of the risk based Internal Audit pfan provides independent assurance te the Board and senior
leaders. '

The Board has considered the control envircnrment and control activities which the Board can rely on for disclosures
in this report. During the reporting year, the Board has also acted on behalf of the group to review the effectiveness
of risk management, internai audit and external audit.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the system of internal control. It has received the reports from the YWLT
and has conducted a formal review covering all controls including financial, operational, compliance and risk
management. No significant failings of internal control were identified during these reviews, limited weaknesses
were identified, none of which are significant, and all have clear action plans to address them in an appropriate
time frame.
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The directors present their report and the audited consolidated Financial Statements for the group for the year ended
31 March 2022. The Directors’ Report should be read in conjunction with the Strategic Report. The Corporate
Governance Report forms part of this Directors’ Report.

Financial results for the year

The loss for the financial year was £663.5m (2021: loss of £149.2m), driven by high financing costs and fair value
movements.

Dividends
No dividends ware paid during the year (2021 £nif},
Principal activity

The principai activities of the group are to manage the collection, treatment and distribution of water in Yarkshire. At
the same time the group aiso coliects, treats and disposes of wastewater safely back inta the environment. Yorkshire
Water, the group’s regulated utility business in the UK, is responsible for both water and wastewater services.

Other businesses include the UK non-regulated water and wastewdter services business, Loop and Keyland, o
company which primarily develops surpius property assets of Yorkshire wWater.

As noted in our Strategic Report, the sale of the Yorkshire Water non-household retail customer bxase took place on
the 30 September 2019 to Scottish Woter Business Stream Ltd. Under the TSA Business Stream retained TSWG to
continue to support the delivery of NHHR services to their Yorkshire customers until 30 September 2021. At this pointa
six-month migration period to 31 March 2022 saw custormer support services transterred to Business Stream.
Operations within the TSWG have now ceased.

Business review

A review of the development and performance of the group, including strategy, the financial performance during the
year, key performance indicators, heailth and safety policy, forward-looking statements and o description of the
principal risks and uncertainties facing the group are set out in the Strategic report.

The purpose of this annual report is to provide information to the group’s stakeholders and contains certain forward -
looking staterments with respect to the operations, performance and financial condition of the group. By their nature,
these statements involve uncertainty since future events and circumstances can cause results te differ from those
anticipated. Nothing in this report should be construed as a profit forecast.

Directors

The directors who served during the year and up to the date of signing these financial statements, including any
changes, are shown below:

vanda Murray {appointed 1 July 2021, Chait from t September 2021)
Anthony Rabin {resigned 1 September 2021, Chair unitil that date)
Scott Auty

Liz Barber (resigned 6 May 2022}

Svetlana Bartheiemy  (resigned 1 February 2022}

Simon 8eer
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Isabelle Caumette

Vicky Chan (resigned 1 October 2021)
Andrew Dench

Russ Houlden {oppointed 19 January 2022)
Jessie Jin {appointed 1 February 2022)
Chris Johns

Mark Lorkin {appointod 1 October 2021)
Mike Osborne (resigned 27 October 2021)
Hari Rajan

Nicola Shaw {appointed 9 May 2022)

Alternative non-executive directors
Pete Stalley

Biographies of the directors as ot 31 March 2022

Vanda Murray OBE
Vanda was appointed to the Board on 1 July 2021 as an Independent Non-Executive Director and stepped up into the
role of Chair on 1 September 2021, following a handover from Anthony Rabin.

Vanda is a Feillow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing and has extensive experience of corporate leadership in both
executive and non-executive roles. From 2001 to 2004 she was Chief Executive of Blick plc, a FTSE quoted company,
where she doubled the value of the business before it was acquired by The Stanley Works Inc. She was aiso Managing
Director of Ultraframe plc between 2004 and 2006. Vanda was appointed OBE for Services to Industry and to Export in
2002.

Vanda is a Non-Executive Chair of Yorkshire-based Marshalls pic and is the Senior Independent Director and Chair of
the Remuneration Committee ot Bunzl plc. She is alse a Nen-Executive Director at Manchester Airports Group, where
she chairs the Remuneration and Corporate Social Responsibility.

Scott Auty

Scott is a London based Partner in DWS's infrastructure investment business, Europe, and is responsible for the
origination and execution of infrastructure investment opportunities as well as the ongoing management of the
acquired assets. He is a member of the Investment Committee for the three European infrastructure funds managed
by DWS. Prior to Joining DWS's infrastructure business in 2005, Scott started his career at N M Rothschild & Sons’
investment banking division where he was a specialist in the utilities and natural resources sectors.

Scott joined the Board on 10 December 2010 and joined the Board of Yorkshire wWater as an Investor Non-Executive
Director in September 2017.

Liz Barber

Liz was appointed as Director of Finance and Regulation of Yorkshire Water and Group Finance and Regulation Director
of Kelda Holdings Limited in November 2010. She then moved to the role of Chief Executive Officer for both companies
in September 2018. Liz retired from the Board on 6 May 2022.

Liz joined the company from Ernst & Young LLP where she held several Senior Partner roles, inciuding leading the firm's
national water team and the assurance practice across the North region. Liz had been with Ernst & Young since 1987
and in that time worked with some of the largest companies in the UK. Liz specialised in delivery of services to the
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water industry, including several water companies and UK regulators. Liz is o fellow of the institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Liz is @ lay member and Deputy Pro-Chancellor of the University of Leeds, a Non~-Executive Director of Cranswick PLC
and Chair of the Yorkshite and Humberside Climate Commission. Liz was a Non-Executive Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee for KCOM Group PLC from 2015 to 2019.

Simon Beer

Appointed to the Board as g Non-Executive Director on 20 December 2016, Simon is currently a Partner at Stepstone
Infrastructure and Real Assets where he leads the Asset Management function. Prior to joining StepStone, Simon
worked ot Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan in their infrastructure and Naturai Resources team where he focused on
asset management and volue creation across their giobal portfolic.

Simon has aiso been a Partner at KPMG, focused on operational improvement in the Infrastructure and Natural
Resources sectors and before that worked for BP in their upstream major profects division. He started his career at
Keliogg, Brown ond Root a leading engineering and construction company. Simon is also a Directar of Northetn Gas
Networks Limited.

Isabelie Caumette

Isabelle was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 27 January 2020. Isabelle is a Vice President of
DWS Infrastructure. She is responsible for identifying and analysing infrastructure investment opportunities, the
implementation of transactions, and the ongoing management of acquired businesses. Prior to joining DWS, Isabeile
warked as a Consultant at The Boston Consulting Group, advising clients on their strategy, in Paris and New York. She
aisa warked as an internal Auditor and Consultant in “inspection Generaie” at Scciété Générale on projects in France,
Ghana and Indiq.

Andrew Dench

Appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 30 September 2015, Andrew is a Senior Vice President in GIC's
Infrastructure team, based in London. He is responsible for the ongoing management of GIC's global infrastructure
portfolio. Prior to joining GIC, Andrew was Deputy CEO [ CFO of Veclia Water, UK, ireland and Northern Europe, CFO of
Electricity North West and Head of Corporate Finance and Change at London Stock Exchange Group. While ot veolia,
he was a Non-Executive Director of Affinity Water {formerly Veolia Water). Andrew started his career in the investment
banking division of Morgan Stanley where he was focused on project finance, M&sS, utilities and the natural resources
sector.

Andrew is o Non-Executive Director on Boards for Tersga {Gas transportation ond storags, France), Duguesne light
and Power (Electricity transportation and distribution, US), Greenka (Renewal generation, India) and Raffles Infra
Holdings Limited (Infrastructure investment, Asia).

Andrew was appointed to the Board of Yorkshire Water os an Investor Noh-Executive Director in Sebtember 2017,

Russ Houlden

Rusgs was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 18 January 2022. As an Operating Partner at Corsair
Infrastructure, a business unit of Carsair Capital, Russ brings a wealth of financial expertise and water industry
knowledge to the Board, having been the CFO of United Utilities Group PLC for ten years until July 2020. During this time
at United Utilities, he was also Chair of the Financial Reporting Committee of the 100 Group from 2013 to 2020. Prior to
his role at United Utilities, he was the CFO of Telecom New Zealand from 2018 to 2010 and Finance Director of Lovells
fromn 2002 to 2008. Until 2002 he held o variety of divisional Finance Ditector positions in iCl and BT.
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Russ is an Independent Non-Executive Director ot Babcock International Group PLC and on Independent Non-
Executive Director and Chair of the Audit Committee at Grange Polska SA.

Jessie Jin

Jessie was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 1 February 2022, She is a Vice President at GIC,
having joined GIC in August 2018. Prior to her role at GIC, Jessie was an Assistant Director at Rothschild's infrastructure
advisory arm for two years and prior to that worked ot RBS for four years as an analyst and Associate Director.

Jessie is also a Non-Executive Director of Heathrow Airport Hoidings Limited.

Chris Johns

Chris was appointed to the Board as CFO on 1 June 2020. Chris jeined the company from Northumbrian Water, where
he had been the Finance Director singe 2013. Prior to his role at Northumbrian Water, Chris was the Finance Director of
Northern Gas Networks for eight years. Before that he held several senior financial management positions in the
financial services sector, in both Yorkshire and London, including with Provident Financial plc and Morgan Staniey.
Chris is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales,

Chris is the CFO for Yorkshire Water and an Audit Committee member of Market Operator Services Limited.

Mark Lorkin

Mark was originally appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Director from 2009 to 2013 and then from 2017 to 2019.
He was then reappointed to the Board on 1 October 2021. Mark is o Managing Director of Corsair and serves as a
member of the Infrastructure Investment Committee. He joined Corsair in 2015 and is based in Sydney, Austraiio, He is
a Board member of Corsair portfolio companies Itinere Infraestructuras and DP World Australia.

Prior to joining Corsair, Mark served as a Managing Director of Citi for 15 years, which included sight years in London.
while at Citi he held ¢ number of roles across Mergers & Acquisitions, Debt Capital Markets, Acquisition Finance and
Private Equity.

Hari Rajan

Hari was appointed to the Board as a Non-Executive Directer on 25 June 2019. Hari is a Partner of Corsair Capital and
is the Head of Corsait Infrastructure Partners. He is also the Chair of the Investment Committee of Corsair infrastructure
Partners and a member of the Investment Committee of Corsair Capital. Hari joined Corsair Capital in 1898 and is
based in New York.

Post year-end appointment

After the year-end we announced the retirement of our CEQ, Liz Barber with effect from 6 May 2022, and the
appointment of our new CEO, Nicola Shaw, from 9 May 2022. Nicola brings with her extensive expetience in regulated
infrastructure businesses and has an excellent track record in driving efficient delivery whilst also improving customer
service and colleague engagement. Most recently Nicola was the UK Executive Director for National Grid and was
previously the Chief Executive of High Speed 1 and o director of First Group. She is currently o Non-£xecutive Director
of International Airlines Group.
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Shareholders

As at the 31 March 2022, the shareholders of the group were as follows:

«  Wharfedale Hong Kong timited (managed by DWS): 23.37% shareholding.

. Gateway Infrastructure HK Limited, Gateway HK Water Limited and Gateway HK Water 1l Limited, {managed
by Corsair infrastructure Management LP.): 30.32% shareholding.

. GIC: 33.56% shareholding.

. SAS Trustee Corporation: 12.75% shareholding.

Research and development

The group undertakes a programme of research in pursuit of improvements in service and operating efficiency. In
2022 £2.9m (2021: £2.8m) was commitied to research and development. in addition, £3.7m (202t £3.7m) of costs have
been accrued by Yorkshire Water in relation to the Inhovation in Water Challenge schemne operated by Ofwat for AMP7.
These expenses offset revenue recognised during the year. The amounts accrued will either be spent on innovation
projects that the group successfully bids for or will be transferred to other successful water companies in accordance
with the scherne rules.

Fixed assets

The directors are aware that the value of certain land and buildings in the balance sheet may not be representative
of their market value. However, a substantial proportion of land and buildings comprises specialised operational
properties and structures for which there is no ready market, and it is not therefore practicable to provide a full
valuation.

Previous movements in fixed assets have included transfers to Keyland, which were all made on the basis of
independent external valuations obtained specifically for the purpose and approved by Ofwat. With effect from 1 April
1996, only those transfers with a value of over £500,000 have been subject te approval by Ofwat.

Revaluation of assets
Certain classes of the group’s tangible assets were revalued in the year, as detailed in note 11 to the Statutory Financial
Statements, As a result of the valuation carried out at 31 March 2022 the carrying value of the infrastructure assets

has increased by £801.8m (2021: £217.0m increase} and the resulting revaluation adjustment taken to the revaluation
reserve.

Pofitical donations

The group does not support any pofitical party and does not make what are commonly regarded as donations to any
political party or other political organisations. However, the definition of “donations” in the Political Parties Efections
and Referendums Act 2000 covers a humber of activities which form part of the necessary reflationship between the
group and stakeholders. As part of its stakeholder engagement programme the group incurred expenditure of £100
on such activities in 2021 but Yorkshire Water did not attend any such events in 2022 and therefore did not incur any
such expenditure in 2622.
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Annual General Meeting

The shareholders of Kelda Eurobond Co Limited do not require an annual general meeting to be held, given their
representation on the Board and therefore the company has dispensed with the requirement to hoid an annual
general meeting.

Going concern

The directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources to continue in operaticnal
existence over o period of ot least 12 months from the dote of approval of the Financial Statements. For this regson,
they continue to consider it appropriate to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial
Staterments. Please see note 2 of the Financial Statements for full going concern considerations.

Post balance sheet event

Kelda Finance (No.2) Limited raised £65.0m new borrowings on 7 April 2022, Proceeds were used to refinance an
existing loan, within the same entity, that was otherwise due for repayment in December 2022,

Independent auditor

The auditor, Deloitte LLP, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and the Board has passed a resolution
confirming their reappointment.

Disclosure of information to auditors

Each director in office at the date of this repert confirms that:
« Sofar as the director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the group’'s auditor is unaware;
and
+ Eachdirector has token all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as o director in order to make him or
herself aware of any relevant audit information, and to establish that the group’s auditor are aware of that
information,

Statemaent of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for preparing the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations. Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for sach financiai year. Under that
law the directors have elected to prepare the Financial Statements in accerdance with applicable faw and
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. The
Financial Statements are required by law to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the
profit or loss of the company for that period.

However, directors are also required to:

. properly salect and apply accounting policies;

. present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understandable information;

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to

enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's
financial position and financial performance; and

. make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
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The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure that the Finoncial Statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other itregularities.

The Directors’ Report was approved by o duly authorised committee of the Board of directors on 15 July 2022 and
signed on its behalf by:

R e,

Nicola Shaw
Chief Executive Officer

Registered office:
Western House
Halifax Road
Bradford

wast Yorkshire
806 257

Company Secretary: Kathy Smith
Wastern House

Halifax Road

Bradford

Waest Yorkshire

BD6 252
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Note
Revenue 3
Operating costs (including exceptional items of £6.4m (2021
£27.911) (note 8)) 5
Operating profit from continuing operations
Finance income a
Finance costs before fair value movements
Fair value movements
Finance costs 8
Share of associates and joint ventures’ profit
Loss before taxation
Tax {charge)/ credit 9

Loss for the year

The notes on pages 73 to 1466 form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

2022
£m

1,135.7

(8B1.7)
254.0
5.5

(421.2}
(369.6)

(790.8)
15
(529.7)
(33.8)

(563.5)

2021
£m

1116.8

(863.1)
253.7
9.8

(318.6)
(101.8)

(420.2)

(158.7)

7.5

(149.2)
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Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Revaluation of infrastructure assets before taxation
Defarred tax moverment on revaluation of infrastructure assets

Remeasurement of defined benefit pension before taxation
Remeasurement of emplayer funded retirement benefit
scheme before taxation

Deferred tox in relation to retirement benefits

Iterms that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains on hedges taken to equity before taxation
Deferred tax movement in relation to hedges

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Total comprehensive income/(loss) tor the year

Note

20

2022 2021
£Em £m
(563.5) (1a9.)
9018 27.0
(243.4) (41.2)
6568.4 175.8
10.7 (187.5)

0.4 ()
{a.1) 38
7.0 (137.3)
39.9 97
(10.4) (1.8)
295 7.9
684.9 46.4
1314 (102.7)
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Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Property, plant, and equipment

Right of use gssets

Investments in associated undertakings and joint ventures
Loans to associated undertakings and joint ventures
Trade and other receivables

Derivative financial assets

Post-employment benefits surplus

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other recsivables
Tax assets

Derivative financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Deferred grants and contributions on depreciated assets
Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Borrowings

Trade and other payables

Derivative financial liabilities

Deferred grants and contributions on depreciated assets
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

Lease ligbilities

Deferred income tax liabilities

Total liabilities

Net liabilities

Note

i2

20
13

i5

13
4

2022
£m

1,225.7
9,288.9
47.6
2.2

2.8
144.9
172.2
6.3

Nn,000.6

6.8
261.0
2.4
44.3
52.0

366.3
11,366.9
{a58.4)

(12.4)

(2.420.9)
(4.8)

{2,896.5}

(5.149.0)
(2.4)
(2.630.9)
(530.6)
{14.5)
(50.6)
(768.4)

(9,153.4)

(12,049.9)

(683.0)

2021
£m

1206.0
8,250.7
58.5
07

2.2
1418
202.4
95.3

9,857.7

4.8
2724
24
28.6
236.0

5452

10,5029

(414.9)
(n.s)
(5998.0)
(6.0}

(1,031.7)

(6,862.2)
ns)
(2,343.9)
(503.0)
(31}
(85.0)
(476.8)

(10,285.6)

(1,317.3)

(814.4)
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

oas gt 3] March 2022
2022 2021
Note £m £m
Equity shares 19 750.0 760.0
Hedging reserve 18 35.2 5.7
Revaluation reserve 9 2141 255.7
Accumulated losses (2,382.3) (1,825.8)
Total equity (683.0) (814.4)

=

The Financial Statements on pages 66 1o 1466 were approved by a duly autherised committee of the Board of directors
on 15 July 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

N, @QV\/'/'

Nicola Shaw

Chief Executive Officer

15 Jufy 2022

Keida Eurobond Co Llimited
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited
Consolidated statement of changes in equity

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Balance ot 1 April 2020

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the financial ycar

Revaluation of infrastructure assets before
taxation

Deferred tax on revaluation of infrastructure
assets

Remeasurement of defined benefit pension
before taxation

Remeasurement of employer funded
retirement benefit scheme before taxation
Deferred tax on revaiuation of retirement
benefits

Gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity
before taxation

Deferred tox movement in relation to
hedges

Total comprehensive income/{expense) for
the year

Balance at 31 March 2021

Note

20

Equity  Hedging
shares raserve
£m Em
750.0 {2.3)
- 9.8

- {1.8)

- 8.0
750.0 5.7

Revaluation
reserve
£m

79.9

217.0

(41.2)

175.8

255.7

Accumulated
fosses
£m

(1,539.3)

(149.2)

(167.5)

(1.7)

31.9

(286.5)

(1,825.8)

Total
equity
£Em

(m.7)

(149.2)
217.0
(a1.2)
(167.5)
(.7
319
9.8

(1.8)

{102.7)

(814.4)
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Equity Hedging Revaluation Accumulated  Total

Note  shares reserve raserve losses equity
£m £m £m Em &m
Balance at 1 April 202} 750.0 5.7 355.7 {1,825.8) {814.4)
Totat comprehensive incomae for the year
Loss for the financial year - - - (563.5) (563.5)
Revaluation of infrastructure assets before il - - 20108 ~ 2018
taxation
Deferred tax on revaluation of infrastructure g - - (243.4) - (243.4)
assets
Remedsurement of defined benefit pension 18 - - - 0.7 10.7
before taxation
rRemeasurement of employer funded - - - 0.4 0.4
retirement benefit scheme before taxation
Deferrad tox on revaluation of retirement g - - - {4.1) {4.1)
benefits
Gains on cash flow hedges taken to equity 20 - 39.9 - - 39.9
betfore taxation
Deferrad tax movement in refation to 9 - (10.4) - - (10.4)
hedges
Totai comprehensive income/(expense) for - 29.5 668.4 (556.8) 131.4
the year
Batance at 31 March 2022 750.0 352 914.1 (2.382.,3) (683.0})
L =~ e —_— ==
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the year ended 31 March 2022

Cash flow generoted from opserating octivities

Income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

interest received

Increase in loans to associates and joint ventures

Net proceeds frem disposal of operations

Proceeds on disposals of property, plant, and equipment
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Bofrowings raised

Repayments of borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities and hire purchase

agreements

Net cash used in financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the heginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Note 2022
£m

21 601.0

(0.)
(183.8)

9173
2.6
(0.7)
17

5.2
{403.4)
(384.7)
668.9
(835.6)

(39.9)

(206.8)

(184.0)
236.0

52.0

2021
£m

613.5

{o0)
(175.0)

438.4
91
(0J)

33
(472.7)

(460.4)

(5.8)
(55.3)

(a0

(65.2)

(87.2)
323.2

236.0
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Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Authorisation of Financial Statements

The group's Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorised for issue by the Board of directors
on 16 July 2022, and the consolidated statement of financial position was signed on the Board's behalf by Nicolo Show,
CEO. Kelda Eurobond Co Limited is a iimited company incorporated and resident for tax in the UK. The registered office
address of Kelda Eurobond Co Limited is Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford, BD6 2SZ.

2. A inting polici
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated Financial Statemnents are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Basis of accounting

The consolidated Financial Statements of Kelda Eurobond Co Limited have been prepared on the going concern basis
in occordonce with International Fingncie! Reporting Stondards (IFRS), Intemnctional Financiol Reporting
interpretations Committee (IFRIC) interpretations and those parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to

companies reporting under IFRS as they apply to the Financial Statements of the group for the year ended 31 March
2022.

The consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain
cotegories of property, plant and equipment which are held at voluation, and all derivative financial instruments and
those financial assets which have been measured at foir value.

The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRSs raquires the use of certain accounting estimates. it
also requires managemeant to exarcise its judgement in the process of applying the group’s accounting policies. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
signiticant to the Financial Statements, are disclosed later in note 2.

Going concern

The group's husiness activities, together with the factors likely to affect its future development, performance andg
position are described in the Strategic Report.

The directors have considered the business plan ond the cash position of the group, specifically the sufficiency of the
funds available to fund the cperating and capitai investment activitias of the group for the 12 months from the date
of signing the Financial Statements, and the headroom against applicable covenants.

73



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

2. Accounting policies (continued)

Going concern (continued)

In addition, Yorkshire Water, the largest subsidiary of the group, has an indefinite licence to operate ds a water and
sewerage operator terminable with o 25-year notice period. In assessing the group’'s ability to continue as a going
concern, the directors have considered:

+ The group's business activities, including the group’s financial and operational performance and strength of
the year end net asset position. Whilst the consclidated results repert a net liability position, this has not
adversely impocted going concern considerations due to the operating profit position and assessment of
overall company performance;

= The group’s available combination of cash and committed undrawn facilities totalling £745.0m at 31 March
2022 (2021 E726.8m), comprising £693.0m (2021 £490.8m) undrawn committed facilities and £52.0m (2021;
£236.0m) of cash and cash equivalents {note 20);

« The group's securitised financing arrangements include covenants with ‘trigger and ‘defoult’ thresholds,
which are reported bi-annually. The forecast cash flow model, established from the group’s business plan,
shows sufficient liquidity and headroom for debt covenants, when considering trigger’ as well as ‘default
thresholds;

« Historical accuracy of managements forecasts through a comparisen of actuai results to budgets to assess
the accuracy of forecast cash flows; and

» The impact of wider factors on operations and business performance, for example climate change and
macroeconomic chalienges such as the increased pressure on household income.

The forecast cash flow model, combined with the above considerations, allowed the directors to conclude that from
a liquidity perspective the group would have significant liquidity and covenant headroom on facilities available to
manage its business risks over a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the Financial Statements.
For this reason, despite the net ligbility and net current liabflity position, they continue to consider it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated Financlal Statements consolidate the Financial Statements of Kelda Eurobond Co Limited and its
subsidiaries {note 24). The results of undertakings acquired or sold are consolidated for the periods from the date of
acquisition or up to the date of disposal. Acquisitions of subsidiaries are accounted for under the purchase method
of aecounting. Associates and joint ventures are accounted for under the equity methad of accounting. Intra-group
balances, and ony unrealised gains and losses or income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated Financial Statements.

Foreign currencies

On an individual company basis, individual transactions dencminated in foreign currencies are translated into
functional currency at the actual exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into functional currency at the rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. Profits and losses on both individual foreign currency transactions during the year and monetary assets and
liabilities are dealt with in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Revenue
Water charges

This revenue stream comprises charges to customers for water, wastewater and other services excluding value
added tax, and arises only in the United Kingdom.

Revenue is recognised when the performance obligations have been discharged to the customer with respect to the
services detailed above, and the amounts receivable in respect of these services are deemed probable of collection.
Revanue relates to charges due in the year, excluding any amounts paid in advance. Revenue for measured water
charges includes amounts billed plus an estimation of the amounts unbilled at the year end. The accrualis estimated
using o defined methodology based upon daily average water consumption, which is colculated based upon
historical billing information.

No revenue is recognised for unoccupied properties and no bills are raised. If a bill has been issued, and the group
subsequently become aware that the property is unoccupied, the hill and relevant revenus is cancelled. Generally, Q
property is classed as void if it is unoccupied and unfurnished.

Connection and Infrastructure charges

This revenue stream comprises charges to property developers for the connection of new properties to the water and
sewerage network, and charges to property developers to compensate for the additional strain on the infrastructure
system. The associated revenue is recognised over the expected useful life of the network.

Divarsions

This revenue stream comprises income for structural alternations to the network. Revenue from diversions is !
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, with an element of deferred income on the consolidated
statement of financial position, Revenue is recognised cver the time it takes to complete the diversion,

Net operating costs
Net operating costs include the following:
Rental incorne

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term on on-
going leases.

Other operating income

Profit relating to the sale of commercial and residential properties to third parties is included within other operating
income, which is part of operoting costs.

Financeincome

Interest receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial instrument to
its net carrying amount.

Dividends payable
Interim and final dividends payable are recognised once declared.
Research and development expenditure

Research expenditure is written off in the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the year in which it is incurred.
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2.  Accounting policies (continued)
Research and development expenditure {continued)

Development expenditure is charged to the consoclidated statement of profit or loss, except where the expenditure
meets the criteria for recognition as an internaily generated intangible asset as outlined in IAS 38 Intangible Assets.
Where the recognition criteria are met, Intangible assets are capitalised and amortised over their useful economic
lives from the date of commissioning.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consclidated
statement of profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other
comprehensive income or expenseg, in which case it is recognised directly in equity ot other comprehensive incoeme
or expense.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tox payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively-enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
yedrs.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not
provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in
o business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extant that they will probably
not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Goodwill and intangibie assets
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the consideration paid for a business over the fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired after costs incurred directly in relation to the transaction. Goodwill is
capitalised and subject to an impairment review, both annually and when there are indications that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

In reviewing goodwill for impairment, the group applied a discount rate of 5.26% (2021: 5.26%) and long-term inflation
rates of 2.0% RPI / 2.0% CPIH (202% 2.9% RPI / 2.0% CPIH) to the expected future cash flows of the group. The discounted
cash flow inciudes o terminal value representing the sale of infrastructure assets and amounts to an RCY multiple of
1.20x (2021:118x). On this basis, there is sufficient headroom, and no impairment is required.

Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the group ore stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less
agccumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation
Software is amortised on a straight-line basis over its useful life. The useful life of software is estimated to be five years.
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2.  Accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant, and equipment

Residential properties, non-speciolised properties and rural estates held within lend and buildings are held ot
valuation. Infrastructure dssets are held at valuation {note N). Other property, plant, and equipment {(PPE) are included
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Freehold lond is not depreciated. Depreciation is charged on property, plant, and equipment on a straight-line basis
over their estimated useful economic lives, or the estimated useful economic lives of their individual major
components, from the date of commissioning.

Useful economic lives are principally as follows:

Buildings 25 - 100 years
Plant and equipment

Fixed plant 5 - 40 years
vehicles, mobile plant, and computers 3-10years
Infrastructure assets '

Water mains and sewers 40 - 125 years
Earth banked dams and reservoirs 200 years

Assets under the course of censtruction are not depreciated until commissioned.

in the UK regulated water services business, infrastructure assets comprise d network of systems being mains and
sewers, impounding and pumped raw water storage, reservoirs, dams, and sea outfalls.

Intrastructure assets, residential propertiss, non-specialised properties, and rural estates are held at valuation less
depreciation. Gains on revaluation are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
revoluation reserve. However, the increase is recognised in profit or loss to the extent thot it reverses g revolugtion
decrease previously recognised in the consolidated staternent of profit or loss. Losses arising on revaluation are
recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent of any previously recognised revaluation increase

accumulated in equity, in respect of thot asset. Any excess is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

The latest infrastructure valuation was performed at 31 March 2022 An interim valuation for property valuations is
recorded in the intervening years on a periodic basis. Residual values and depreciation rates are reviewed on

revaluation. On sale of a revalued asset, the revaluation reserve is recycled te the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

In respect of borrowing costs reiating to qualifying assets for which the capitalisation date is on or after 1 January
2009, the group capitalises borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a
qualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)

impairment of property, plant and equipment and goodwiil

The carrying values of PPE are reviewed for impairment if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may not be recoverable. Useful lives and residual values are reviewed annuaily. Where adjustments
are required, these are made prospectivaly.

Government grants and contributions

Government grants and contributions in respect of PPE are deferred and credited to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss by instalments over the expected economic lives of the related assets. Government grants are
recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with.

Government grants and contributions received in respect of an item of expense during the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis in line with the cost that it is intended to compensate.

Investments in joint ventures and associates

The group has several contractual arrangements with third parties which represent joint ventures, these take the form
of agreermnents to share control over other companies. The group recognises its interest in the entity's assets and
liabilities using the equity method of accounting.

The group’s interest in its associates, being those entities over which it has significant influence, and which are neither
subsidiaries nor joint ventures, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

Under the equity method, the investment in the joint venture or associate is carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the group's share of its net assets, less distributions
received and less any impairment in value of individual investments. The group consolidated statement of profit or
loss reflects the share of the joint ventures’ and associates’ results after tax.

Financial Statements of joint ventures and asscciates are prepared for the same reporting period as the group. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies used into line with those of the group. The group
ceases to use the equity method on the date from which it no longer has shared control over or significant influence
in the joint venture or associate. Any unredlised gains or losses between the group and its joint ventures and
associotes are eliminated on consolidation.
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2.  Accounting poticies (continued)
inventories

Inventories dre stated at the lower of cost and net realisabie valug less any provision ngcessary to recoghise damage
and obsolescence.

Provisions

Pravision is made for self-insured claims incurred but not reported, contracts which are considered onerous,
accumulated losses related to associated undertakings and other known liabilities which exist at the yeor end as
result of a past event.

Provisions are recognised where:
* Thereis g present obligotion as o result of o past event;
* [tis probable that there will be an economic cutflow to settle; and
« Areliable estimate of this outflow can be made.
Provisions are discounted to present value where the effect is materia.
financial instruments
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances, call deposits and other shart-term highty liquid investments.
Trade and other receivaobles

Trade receivables are initially rocognised at transaction price, and subsequently remeasured at amortised cost, net
of any allowance for impairment. Invoices for unmeasured water charges are due on predetermined dates,
irrespective of date of receipt. Invoices for measured water charges are billed quarterly in arrears and generally have
seven day payment terms.

Bad debt provisions are calculated on trade receivables based on judgement of collection rates and an expected
credit logs model.

Trade and other payables
Trade payables are initially recognised at fair vaiue, and subseguently remeasured at amortised cost.
Interest beoring loans and horrowings

All loans and borrowings are initiclly recognised at fair value less directly attributable transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at either:

¢+ Amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on repurchase, settiement or
otherwise cancellation of liobilities are recognised respectively in finance income and finance costs; or

*  Fair value at the measurement date. The movement in the fair value of the loan or borrowing is recognised in the
consalidated statement of profit or loss. The fair vatues of the borrowings are determined by reference to quoted
prices in active markets for idenitical assets or liabilities that the group can access at the measurement date.

Any gain or loss on a hon-substantial madification of debt is recognised through the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, omortised over the life of the financial liability through the sffective interest rate.
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Ledases

IFRS 16 Leases determines a control modael to distinguish between lease agreements and service contracts on the
basis of whether the use of an identified asset is controlled by the group for o period of time. If the group is deemed
to have control of an identified asset, then a lease is recognised on the consolidated staternent of financial position,
A right of use asset and a cofrespending lease liability are recognised.

The right of use asset is initially measured at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments discounted using the discount
rate that is implicit in the lease, If this discount rate cannot be determined from the agreement, the liability is
discounted using an incremental borrowing rate. The borrowing rate is derived from a series of inputs including
benchmark government bond rates and adjustrnents for credit risk based on publicly traded bonds.

For short-term leases (lease term of twelve months or less) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal
computers and office furniture), the group will opt to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted
by IFRS 16.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at their fair value at the balance sheet date. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss
depends on whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument and, if so, the nature of the itermn being
hedged. The group designates certain derivatives as either (1} hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or
liabilities or {2) cash flow hedges.

The group documents at the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged
iterns, as well as its risk management objective ond strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and on an on-going basis, of whether the derivatives that
are used in hedging transactions are effective in offsetting changes in fair values of hedged items.

Fair value hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the
consolidated staterment of profit or loss, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedge

The porticn of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognised
in equity. Any ineffective portion is immediately recognised in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss. The gains
or losses that are recognised in equity are transferred to the consclidated statement of profit or loss in the same
period in which the hedged cash flows affect the conselidated statement of profit or loss. In the event the hedged
item is no longer expected to occur, or the hedge relationship ceases to be effective, accumulated gains or losses
held in the cash flow hedge reserve are immediately recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain detivative instruments do not qualify for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of any such derivative
are recognised as incurred in the consolidated staterment of profit or loss.
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2.  Accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits

Pension plans

(i) Defined contribution scheme

The group operates a defined contribution {DC) stakeholder scheme for those colleagues who are not members of
its defined benefit scheme and for all new colleagues who are eligible. The DC Scheme has been open to new entrants
since 2007 with emplayer and employee contributions made inte this plan In accordance with the agreed contribution
structures In place. The DC Scheme Is used by the Keldo Group Limited for Auto-enrciment purposes.

Obligations far contributions to the scheme are recognised as an axpense in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss in the year in which they arise.

(ii} Defined benefit scheme

The group operates a defined benefit (DB} scheme. A DB schemae s a pension plan under which the amount of pension
benefit that an employee receives on retirement is defined by reference 1o factors including age, years of service and
compensation.

The DB Scheme is funded by payments, determined by periodic actuarial calculations agreed between the group and
the trustees to trustee administered funds.

A Yiability or asset is recognised in the consolidated statement of tinancial pesition in respect of the group’s net
obligations to the scheme. The liability or asset represents the net of the present value of the OB obligations at the
balance sheet date, less the fair value of the scheme assets and past service costs.

The DB obligation represents the estimated amount of future benefits that employees have earned in retun for their
services in current and pricr years, discounted at a rate representing the yield on a high quality corporate bond at the
balance sheet date, denominated in the same currency as the obligations and having the same terms to maturity as
the related pension liobility, applied to the estimated future cash outflows arising from these obligations. The
calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. Actuarial gains or losses (along
with any deferred tax on them) arg recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,

Share capital
Ordincry shares are classified s equity.

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items which derive from events or transactions that individually or, of a similar type, in
aggregate fall outside the normal activities, or are significant in value. Such items may includs, but are not Imited
to, extremne weather events including related insurance claims, the sale of businesses and significant assst

impairments. Exceptional items, whether debits or credits, are disclosed sepdarately within the relevant statutory
account line item to which they relate.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
Segmental reporting

The group’s prirary reporting format is by business segment. A segment is a component of the group which can be
distinguished separately as providing a product or service within a particular environment which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments. These segments are also indicative of the manner in
which the business is reviewed internally.

{he group has identified three business segments:

* UK Regulated Water Services - Yorkshire Water.
+ UK Service Operations - Kelda Transport Management, Three Sixty Water group and Loop.
+ Property Development - Keyland.

Transfer pricing between business segments is set on an arm’s length basis similar to transactions with third parties.

The group's geographical segments are determined by the location of the group’s assets and operations.

Fair value estimation

The fair vaiue of any financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the balance
sheet date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the group is the current bid price; the
appropriate quoted market price for financial liabilities is the current ask price.

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other techniques, such as
estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining financial instruments. The fair
value of derivatives is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value calculations
have been adjusted to incorporate own and counter-party credit risk and funding risk.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
to their fair values. The fair value of financial liakilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the group for similar financial
instruments. Monagement base their estimate of discount rate on a consideration of the long-term risk free interest
rate for the UK, an industry specific risk factor {beta factor), a market risk premium at the date of valuation and a
group specific risk factor.
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2. Accounting policies (continued)
New standards and interpretations

During the year, in response to an IFRIC agenda decision issued in March 2021, the group has updated its accounting
policy in relation to the treatment of configuration and custornisation costs incurred in implementing Software~-as-
a-Service (S0aS) arrangements. The updated accounting policy is presented below. A detailed review has been
performed on the existing asset base which concluded that prior projects have been accounted for appropriatety
and in line with the latest guidance,

Costs incurred to configure or customise Saas application software are expensed when the costs are incurred. Costs
which relate to the development of software code that enhances or modifies on-~premise software, or costs incurred
for software which meet the recognition criteria for an intangible asset, are capitalised as incurred. Any costs
expensed will be recognised in line with the service provided. Any intangible assets identified will be initially carried at
cost and follow the existing accounting policy for intangible assets.

interest Rate Benchmark Reform

In September 2019, the International Accounting Standards Board (1A5B) issued Phase 1 Amendments to IFRS 9, 1AS 39
and IFRS 7 in relation to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform. The Financial Reperting Council {FRC) issued equivalent
amendments to FRS 102 which are in line with the IASB's changes. This allowed Yorkshire Water to continue hedge
aecounting for its benchmark interest rate exposures during the period of uncertdinty arising from interest rate
benchmark reforms,

In August 2020, the 1ASB issued Phase 2 Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, and IFRS 16 in relation to replacement
issues, The FRC also issued equivalent amendments to FRSI02. During the yeat, the group transitioned all of its external
expostres from GBP London Inter-bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) to Sterling Overnight Index Average Rate (SONIA) as a
direct consequence of the reforms and on an economically equivalent basis. Phase 2 Amendment reliefs have besan
applied, resulting in ¢ continuation of hedge accounting and financial instruments not being derecognised. No gains
or losses have been recognised as a result of the transition. The completion of the transition brings an end to the
period of uncertainty and has not resulted in any changes to the group’s accounting policies. There has been no
change to the group’s risk management strategy as a result of the transition.
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2.  Accounting policies (continued)

New standards and interpretations {(continued)

New standards issued but not yet effective

The group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective and,
in some cases, had not yet been adopted by the UK:

iFrRS 10 {(amended)
IAS 28 (amended)

1A5 16 {(amended)
IAS 37
IFRS 3

Annudl improvements to IFRS Standards

IFRS 17

1AS 1 (amended)
IAS 1 (amended)
145 8 {amended)
1AS 12 (amended)

1AS 12 {amended)

Consolidated Financial Statements
investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011)

Property, Plant and Equipment ~ Proceeds before intended Use
Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Reference to the Conceptudl Framework

2018-2020 Cycle

insurance contracts

Classification of Liabilities as Current and Non-currerit
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Definition of Accounting Estirnates

Deferred Tax related to Assets and tiabilities arising from a
Singte Transaction

income Taxes - Assets and liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the standards listed above will have a material impact on the
Financial Statements of the group in future periods.
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Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

in the applicotion of the group’s aceounting policies, the directors are required to make judgemsents (otner than those
involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimotes and
assumptions about the carrying omounts of assets and ligbilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associoted assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual resuits may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying dssumptions are reviewed on an cngoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimotes are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects oniy that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The directors consider the key scurces of estimation uncertainty in the Financial Statements to be:
a) Assumptions relating to the defined benefit pension scheme

The present value of the pension cbligation depends on a number of factors, determined on an actuarial basis, using
o number of assumptions which include: the discount rote, Inflotion rates, rate of increase in salories, ond life
expectancy. The discount rate is determined by considering the market yields on high quality corporate bonds, at the
reporting date. Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based in part on current market conditions. The
muoin assumptions, relevant sensitivities ond additional information are disclosed in note 18,

b) infrastructure assets voluation

infrastructure assets are held uhder o revaluotion model. Fair value is determined with the suppoert of o third party
using a market value approach, which uses discounted cash flow modeliing to calculate a valuation range for the
Enterprise Value (EV) of Yorkshire Water. Management conclude on the appropriate EV to be used from within this
range using their judgement. Yorkshire Water's working capital balances and existing asset carrying amounts are
then deducted from the setected EV and the remaining EV is attributed by management to the infrastructure assets.

Estimates are made in respect of the key assumptions applied in the valuation model. The key assumptions requiting
estimation are the discount rate (which is based on the regulatory weighted average cost of capital and cost of equity
of Yorkshire Water), retail price index (RP1), the underlying forecast cash flows and the terminal value. The discount
rate applied is 7.50% {(2021: 7.63%). The discount rate apptlied is 7.50% (2021: 7.63%). A long-term RPI rate has been

adopted of 2.90% (2021: 2.90%). See note 1 for the revaluation in the year and total net book vaiue of tangible assets
held as at the year end.

The key judgements inherent within the valuation methodology are the selection of the appropriate point within the
range of Evs calculated by the third party valuation expert, and the attribution of the EV less working capital balances
wholly to the infrastructure assets. The selection within the range is undertaken with due consideration of the
reguiatory capital value of the infrastructure assets.

The key sensitivities to assumptions that would cause a material’ movement in the model's valuation output are: a
0.03% movement in RPI and consumer price index including owner-occupiers’ housing costs (CPIH)% a £1.64m po
movement in the undertying cash flows?; and a 0.04% movement in the discount rate.

¢} Goodwill impairment testing

The group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in accordance with tha accounting policy
stated above.

'Material as defined in the iIndependent Auditor's Report.
2 across ol years of the model,
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2.  Accounting policies {continued)
¢) Goodwill irnpairrent testing (continued)

These calculations include estimates of future cash flows for the cash generating unit, and an estimate of the discount
rate, which is based on consideration of the long-term risk-free interest rate for the UK, an industry specific risk factor,
and a market risk premium at the date of valuation.

In reviewing goodwill for impairment, the group applied a discount rate of 5.26% (2021: 5.26%) long-term inflation rates
of 2.0% RPI { 2.0% CPIH (2021: 2.9% RPI [ 2.0% CPIH) to the expected future cash flows of the group. The discounted cash
flow includes o terminal volue representing the sale of infrastructure assets and amounts to an RCY multiple of 1.20x
(2021: 118x). On this basis, there is sufficient headroom, and no impairment is required.

d} Fair value of financial instruments

The group's accounting policy for financial instruments is detailed earlier in this note. In occordance with IFRS, financial
instruments are recognised in the Financial Statements at fair value. The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded on an active market is determined using a discounted cash flow valuation technique. After taking advice
from external parties, management uses its judgement to determine the derivative valuations. These are subject to
adjustments to ensure they are compliant with IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. A credit valuation adjustment (CVA),
debit valuation adjustment {DvA} and funding valuation adjustment (FVA) is calculated using expected exposures,
probability of default and loss given default. Details of the nature of the assumptions inherent within the financial
instrument fair valuations can be found in note 20. Particular estimation uncertainty exists in relation to counter-party
funding adjustments and own and counter-party credit risk assumptions since these are unobservable inputs to
which the valuation model is materially sensitive.

The fair value of net derivative financial liabilities of £2,414.4m (2021: £2,11.9m) would be £45.1m (2021 £45.1m) higher
or lower were the counterparty funding assumption to change by ten basis points. The fair value of net derivative
financial liabilities of £2,414.4m {2021: £2,11.8m) would be £256.8m (2021 £31.2m) higher or lower were the credit curve
assumption to change by ten basis points. The fair value of net derivative financial liabilities of £2,414.4m (2021
£2,1.9m) would be £890.3m (2021 £87.4m) higher or lower were the recovery rate assumption to change by ten per
cent.

Disclosing an gppropriate sensitivity of fair values could vary based on what is reasonably possible in the market but
a change of ten basis points demonstrates the level of movement in the assumption which results in a material
difference, this can be scaled up and is consistent with sensitivities reported previously.

e) Revenue recognition from household customers where payment is not considered probable and household bad
debt provision

Each year management estimate the revenue attributable to customers who are not deemed probable of paying
and ensure these amounts are excluded from reported revenues. Given the number of customers to whom the group
provides services is significant, the estimate of those household customers who are not likely to pay their bills requires
significant judgement. Management's estimate of revenue receivable that should net be recorded as revenue in the
Financial Statements is based on amounts billed and unbilled relating to:

* household customers who have not paid their bill in over two years; and
+ new household customer accounts where no payments have been received in the first six months.
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e) Revenue recoghition from househald customers where payment is not considered probable ond househoid bad
debt provision {continued)

Management monitors the actual payment profile of household custormers on 6n ongoing basis and adjust the
estimate of those amounts not desmed probable of payment to take account of changes in customer behaviour
and ability to pay. If the period used went from two to three years, it would reduce the provision by £3.4m (2021
£3.0m).

At each reporting date, management also make an estimate regarding future cash collection to form the basis of
the household bad debt provision. Estimates associated with this provision is based on historic, current, and
forward-looking infermation where available. A high leve! of uncertainty remains around how current economic
conditions could impact the recoverability of household debtors, particularty in light of the backdrop of Covid-18,
rising energy prices, and high inflation rates which have adversely impacted typical household's disposable income
affecting some customers’ ability to pay. The bad debt provision is primarily based on reviewing customer payment
profiles over two years. if this were changed te two and a half years, the bad debt provision would decrease by
£12.6m (2021: £9.3m).

a) Capitalisation of iabour costs

Additions made to PPE include £63.3m (2021 £58.4m) of own work capitalised. Judgement is made to ensure these
costs relate to relevant assets and that future economic benefits will flow to the greup.

b) Depreciation

The group's accounting policy for property, plant and equipment is detailed earlier in this note. Estimated useful
economic lives of PPE are based on management’s judgement and experience. When management identifies that
actual useful lives differ materially from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, that charge is adjusted
prospectively. Due to the significance of capital investment to the group, variations between actual and estimated

useful lives could impact operating results both positively and negatively. Historically, only minor changes to
estimated usetul lives have been required.

c) Recognition of a defined benefit pension surplus

A judgement hos been made to recoghise an accounting surplus on the DB Scheme. The provisicns of IFRIC 14 do not
apply and therefore o surplus has been recognised. The Trust Deed provides the sponsoring employer with an
unconaitional right to o refund of surplus assets assuming the full setttement of plan liabilities in the event of a plan
wind-up. Furthermore, in the ordinory course of business the Trustee has no rights to uniloterally wind up, or otherwise

augment the benefits due to members of, the scherme. Based on these rights, any net surplus in the UK scheme is
recognised in full.
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Year ended 31 March 2022

Total revenue
Inter-company revenue

External revenue

Year ended 31 March 2021

Total revenue
Inter-compa Ny revenue

Externai revenue

UK regulated water

and wastewater UK service UK property
services operations davelopment
£m £€m Em
1128.6 34. 55
(28) (29.4) -
1,126.0 9.7 5.5
UK regulated water
and wastewater UK service UK property
services operations development
£m Em £m
1108.3 3958 31
(30} (29.4) -
11063 10.2 31

Other
companies and
consolidation
adjustments
£m

(32.0

320

Other
companies and
consolidation
adjustments
Em

(324}

324

Redllocation to Total operations

Total other operating after

before reallocations income reallocations
Em £Em £m

11412 (5.5) 1135.7

11412 (5.8) 1135.7

Reallocation to Total operations

Total other opsrating after

belore reallocations income reallocations
£m £m £m

a6 (2.8} 11168

1N9.6 (2.8) L1168
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Timing of revenus recognition

Al a pointin time

OQver time

Total revenue from continuing operations

2022
£m
1n3.3
22.4

1,138.7

2021
£€m
10947
221

(RIS
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4, sesgmental infermation

Year ended 31 March 2022

UK regulated Other
water and compunies and Total Reallocationto
wastewater UK service UK property  consolidation before other operating Total after
services operations  development adjustments  reollocations income reallocations
£m £m Em £m £m £m £m
external revenue (note 3) 11260 9.7 5.5 - 11412 (5.5) 11357
Depreciotion and amartisation (3335) (03) - (5.5) (330.0) - (339.1)
Release of deferred income 123 - - - 12.3 - 12.3
Other operating costs {559.3) (8.9) {81} 223 (554.0) 55 (548.5)
Operating costs - exceptional
items {note 6) (5.5) (0.9} - - (6.4) - (6.4)
Group operating profit 240.0 {0.2) {2.8) 16.8 254.0 - 254.0
Finance income (mote 8) . 5.6
Finance costs before fair value
movements {note 8) " (an2)
Fair value movements (note 8) (369.6)
Associates' and joint vantures’
profit 1.5
Loss before taxation (529.7)
Tax credit (note 9) ’ {33.8)
Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the parent (563.5)
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4.  Segmental information (continuod)

Year ended 31 March 2022
Other
companies and
UK regulated water and UK setvice UK property censclidation
wastewater services operaticng dovefopment adjustments Total
£m Em £m Em £m
Assats 9,885.9 1.4 14.8 12,8 L8
Labilidies (22917) (3.8) (15.7) (168.8) (4,480.0)
Net dept (5.411.8) (0.1) - (2)06.2) (7.51.9)
Net liatilities 182.6 (2.5) {0.8) {862.2) (683.0)
Gther information
Tangible asset capitat additions
{nove 11} 4487 o4 - - 445.8

Other companies and consalidation adjustments includes adjustments made to the cansalidated financiai information of subsidiaries (n line with IFRS and £1,788.5m
of loon notes 1ssued by Kelda Eurabond Co Limited.

There are no material assets of the group located outside the UK in the yeor ended 31 March 2022, this being the case the group has one single geographical segmant,
baing the UK.
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4. Segmental information (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

UK ragulated Other
water and companies ond Total Reallocation to
wastewater UK service UK property consolidation before other operating Total after
services operations  development adjustments  reallocations income reallocations
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
External revenue {note 3) 11063 0.2 al - RIERS (28) 6.8
Depreciation and amortisation {3231) (1.8) - (3.9) (328.6) - (328.6)
Release of daeferred income .6 - - - 1.6 - n.e
Other aperating costs (517.5) (9.8) (6.6) 128 (521.0) 28 {518.2)
Operoting costs - exceptional
items {note 6) (28.4} 0.5 - - (27.9) - (27.9)
Group operating profit 2488 {0.5) (3.5) 8.9 2537 - 2537
Finance income {note 8) 9.8
Finance costs bafore fair value
moverments (note 8) (218.6)
Fair value movements {note 8) {101.6)
Loas before taxation (156.7)
Tax charge {note 9) 78
Loss for the year attributable to
owners of the parent (140.2)
mem————
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4. sagmental information (continued)

Yaar ended 3t March 2021
Other
UK regulated water companies and
and wastewater UK service UX property consolidation
satvices operations development adjustments Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Assers 8,864.1 31 12 ' 13878 10,266.9
Liabilities (3862.4) {a.8) (13.2) (175.9) (3.856.1)
Net debt ) (5,205.0) 0.6 az (19310} (7,225.2)
Net
assets/(Hakilities) (83.3) (0.9) (0.9) (n9.3) (814.4)
Other information
Tangible asset
capital additions
{note ) 4483 - - - 4483

Cther componies and consolidation adjustments includes adjustments made 10 the consolidated financial information of subsidiaries in line with IFRS and £1,668.5m
of lean notes issued by Kelda Eurcbonhd Co Limited.

There are no material assets of the group located outside the UK in the year ended 31 March 2025 this being the cose the group has one single geographical segment,
being the UK.

a3



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2022

5. Operating costs before exceptional itams

Operating costs before exceptional items includes the following:

Own work capitalised

Raw materials and consumables

Staff costs {note 7)

Depreciation (note 11)

Amortisation of intangible assets {note 10}

Net impairment of trade receivables

Profit on disposal of property, plant, and equipment

Auditor's remuneration

Services provided by the group’s auditor are analysed as follows:

Fees puyable to the group's auditor for:
Audit of the group pursuant to legisiation
Other assurance services

Other assurance services predominantly relate to regulator reporting obligations.

6. Exceptionalitems

Exceptional operating costs

Exceptional payments to delivery partners

CMA referral costs

Strategic business process review

Extreme weather events

Deferred consideration receivable on business disposal
Severance relating to non-household retgil disposal

Total exceptional items included in operating profit

2022 2021
£m £m
(63.3) {58.4)
46.4 372
216.0 199.1
310.7 3026
28.4 26.0
6.6 0.2
(5.2) (2.4)
2022 2021
£m £m
0.5 0.5
0.2 0.
0.7 06
2022 2021
£m £m
- 7.9

- 3.8

- 10.5
10.5 8.7
{3.0) (2.8)
(2.0) {0.5)
0.9 -
6.4 279
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6. Exceptional items (continued)

Exceptional costs of £6.4m (2021 £27.9m) include £10.5m {202 £8.7m} in relation to a strategic review of our business
processes to identify efficiencies and provide a step change in operationai performance, inciuding associated
severance expenses. This transformation project comrenced in the prior period as o result of a chaflenging Price
Review process in 2019 in which Yorkshire Water referred the Final Determination to the Competitions and Markets
Authority (CMA). In addition, £0.9m of severance costs have been incurred foliowing the cessation of the TSA with
Business Stream in relation to the non-household retall disposal in October 2019.

These costs are offset by the final instalment of insurance income of £3.0m (2021 £2.6m income net of costs), relating
to extreme weather events in previous years, In addition, £2.0m income was received relating ta o finat true-up of the
sale of the non-household retail customer business in the year ended 31 March 2020. This redtment as exceptional is
consistent with previous years.

The 202t exceptional items included £7.9m in relation to discretely identifiable increases in operotional costs as
result of factors such as enhanced cleaning regimes, social distancing requiring additional vehicles, and protective
equipment to keep our coileagues safe and aflow essentiaf working in accordance with government guidance; and
£3.8m in relation to payments made 1o key delivety partners to enable them to continue to employ personnel who
were considered critical responders in the event of cperational emergencies in the business such as leckuge
incidents, and to cover their discretely icentifiabte additional costs of operation in the Covid-19 environment.

The 2021 income on profit on business disposal of £0.5m relates to deferred consideration received fror the sale of o
non-regulatea entity in 2018.

In addition, following the decision to ask Ofwat to tefer the AMP7 Final Determination te the CMA, £10.5m of legal and
advisory relgted costs were classified as exceptional in 2021

7. Diractors and employees

2022 202)

Average monthly number of paople amployad by the group
UK regufated water services 3,931 3,707
Other activities 734 798
4,665 4,506
2022 202
Em £m

Total employment costs:

Woges and salories 182.3 167.0
Sociol security costs 18.8 18
Other pension costs 14.2 4.0
218.0 199.
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7.  Directors and employees (continued)

Directors’' emoluments

2022 202

£m £m

Aggregate emolurments 2.3 22
The amounts in respect of the highest paid director are as follows:

2022 2021

£m £€m

Aggregate emoluments 1.4 13

During 2022, none (202t none) of the executive directors were a contributory member of the Kelda Group Pension
Plan, a DB scheme. The accrued pension benefit of the highest paid director in 2022 was £nil (2021: £nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two (2021 two) directors were incentivised through a long-term incentive plan
which allows them to receive, at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee, o conditional monetary award.
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8. Financeincome and finance costs

Finance income

Interest on bank deposits

Net interest gain on pension scheme liabilities {note 18)
Interest receivable from parent company

Total finance income

Finance costs

Interest payable on fixed rate and inflation guaranteed bonds and notes
Interest payable on fixed rate USD notes

Interest payable on fixed rate AUD bonds

Interest receivable from swaps in hedge relationships

Amortisation of issue costs in respect of bonds and private notes

Tatal finance costs for bands and private notes

Interest payable on bank borrowings

Index accretion on inflation linked borrowings

Interest payable on bonds issued by Keldo Eurcbond Co Limited
Interest payable on leases

Commitment fees and miscelianeous interest

Loss on early redemption of guaranteed bonds

Finance costs bafore interest capitalisation and fair value movements
interest capitalised (note 1)

Finance costs before fair value movements
Fair value movements {note 20)

Total finance cost

For more inforrmation on borrowings refer to note 13,

Fair vafue movements are explained below,

2022 2021
£m em

0.2 06

2.2 8.0

3.2 32

5.6 08
(168.8) (181.3}
(8.9) (10.4)
(2.0) (2.0)
18.6 15.3
(4.8} (5.0}
{167.7} (163.4)
{21.0) {24.5)
(ns.s) (21.8)
(122.6) (h7.4)
0.9 (0.6)
(4.7) (8.3)
(1.0} -
(435.7) (332.8)
4.5 14.2
(421.2) (3188)
(369.6) (1018)
(790.8) (4202)
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8. Finance income and finance costs (continued)

The following table summarises the fair value movements through consolidated statement of profit or loss:

2022 2021
£m £m

Total fair value movements
Movement in fair value of inflation linked swaps (see helow) 368.3 98.9
Movement in fair value of floating to fixed interest rate swaps (3.9) (1.2)
Movement in fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps 26.6 374
Movement in fair value of foreign currency debt {24.5) {35.6)
Movement in fair value of fixed to flogting interest rate swaps 39.5 233
Movement in the fair value of debt associated with fixed to flooting interest rate swaps (36.4) (20.8)
Movement in fair value of energy derivatives - (0.4)
Total fair value movements 369.6 101.6

Movement in falr value of infiation linked swaps of £368.3m (2021 £98.9m) includes a charge of £96.4m (2021 £48.3m)
in relation to the RPI bullet accumulated as at 31 March 2022, interest receivable of £55.8m (2021: £69.0m), interest
payable of £55.4m (2021 £52.3m) and other fair value movements of £272.3m (2021: £67.3m).

Finance costs

Financial liabilities held at fair value through prefit and loss or in

fair value hedge relationships {380.8) (ns.4)
Financlal llabilities held at amortised cost (a10.2) (304.8)
Total finance costs (790.8) (420.2)
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8. Taxcharge/{credit) on continuing operations

Current tax

UK Corporation Tax at 18% (2021: 19%)

Total current tax charge to the consolidated statement of profitor lass
Deterred tax

UK credit for origination and reversal of temporary differences
Under/(over) provision of tax in respect of previous periods

Effect of tax rate changes

Total deferred charge/(credit) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Total tax chargef(credit) to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
Tax relating to items charged to other comprehensive income
Deferred tax:

Actuarial fosses/{(gains) in respect of definad benefit pension schemes
Movement in cash flow hedges

Revaluation of infrastructure assets

Tax charge in the group statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021
£m Em
0. 0.1
0.1 0.1
(740) (6.3)
1.0 (1.3)
106.8 -
337 (78)
33.8 (7.5)
4.1 (31.9)
10.4 18
243.4 4.2
257.9 1.1

The differences between the total current and deferred tax charge shown and the amount calculated by applying the

rate of corporation tax of 18% (2021:19%) te the loss before tax is as follows:

toss before taxation

Current and deferred tax on group loss at the tax rate of 19% (2021:19%)
gttects of:

Expenses not deductibie for tax purposes

Income not taxabile

Super deduction expenditure

Difference in tax rates

Adjustments in relation to prior periods

Movement in deferred tax not recognised

Group current and daferred tax charged/(credited) to the consolidated
statement of profitorloss

2022 2021
£m £m
(529.7) (i56.7)
(100.8) (29.8)
8.8 87
{2.1) (2.4)
(3.0) -
106.8 -
11 (13)

22.8 17.3
33.8 (7.5)
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9. Taxchargef(credit) on continuing operations (continued)

The Provisional Collection of Taxes Act, enacted on 17 March 2020, set the corporation tax rate at 19% from 1 April 2020,
the rate which has been used in prepdring these Financial Statements.

The Finance Bill 2021 introduced an increase to the main rate of corporation tax to 25% from April 20623. This rote was
substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. As a result, deferred tax balances expected to reverse after April 2023 and
calculated at the previous 19% rate have been re-measured using the increased 25% rate.

The group continues to belleve that it has made adeguate provigion for culient tax and deferred tax liabilities, The
ultimate liability for such matters may vary from the amounts provided and is dependent upon HMRC's agreement of
the basis on which the group's tax returns are filed. In assessing these tax uncertainties, management is required to
make judgements, evaluating the circumstances, facts, and other relevant information in respect of the tax position
taken together with estimates of amounts that will be necessary to provide. The nature of the group’s uncertain tax
positions can relate te compiex tax legisiation that can be open to interpretation. Original estimates are always
refined as additional information becomes known,

Any uncertain tax positions are assessed using internal expertise, experience, and judgment together with assistance
and opinions from professional advisors. The deferred tax credit for continuing operations for the year reflected in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss relates to the following:

2022 2021

£m £Em

Property, plant, and equipment 227.6 (1.0)
Financial instruments (198.2) (10.1)
Retirement benefit obligations 4.3 31
Research and development {R&D) expenditure credit - 0.4
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 33.7 (7.8)
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10. Intangible assets

Cost

AL1 April 2021
Additions
Transfers
bisposatls

At 31March 2022
Accumuiated amortisation
At 1 April 202

Amortisation

Disposals

At 31 March 2022

Net book value at 31 March 2022

Cost

At 1 Aprif 2020
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2021
Accumulated amortisation
At April 2020

Amortisation

Disposals

At 31 March 2021

Net book vatue at 31 March 2027

Software Goodwill Total
£m £m £
2278 1,800.3 2,028
42.5 - 426
5.5 - b.B
{10.8} - (10.9)
265.0 1,8003 2,0685.3
721 750.0 8221
28.4 ~ 28.4
(10.9) - {10.9)
89.6 750.0 839.6
175.4 1,050.3 1,225.7
Software  Goodwill Total
£m £m £m
206.2 1800.3 2,006.5
227 - 227
(n - (i
2278 18003 2,028.1
47.2 750.0 797.2
28.0 - 26.0
)] - ()
721 750.0 8221
165.7 1,050.3 1,206.0
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10. Intangible assets {continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill of £1,050.3m {2021 £1,050.3m) is all atiocated to the UK regulated water services business segment. The
recoverable amount of the UK regulated water services segment is determined based on a fair value calculation,
using pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets, Yorkshire Water's final determination and long-term
business modelling covering a 25-year period. The period of cash flows of 25 years is deemed appropriate as it aligns
with the long-term planning of the reguiated business as delermined by Ofwat. The discounted cash flows include
terminal value representing the saie of infrastructure assets, which amounts to an RCY multiple of 1.20x (2021 118x).
The undertying cash flows in the model are aisc a key assumption. The discount and inflation rates applied, and
terminal value have been determined based on risk factors specific to the industry and circumstances of the group.
See note 2 for further detail.

The key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation are as follows:

2022 202
Long-term inflation RP 2.00% 2.80%
Long-term inflation CPIH 2.00% 2.00%
Discount rate 5.26% 5.26%
Terminal value {muitiple of RCV) 120x 118x

A further key gssumption is the cash flow projections included in the calculation, which include planned efficiency
targets. The long~term inflation rate used is based on the CMA redetermingtion finalised in March 2021. The cash flows
have been inflated by RPI/CPIH as appropriate and discounted back using the nominal WACC per the FD, as permitted
under IFRS 13. Managemaeant have considered the sensitivity of the key assumptions; it is believed that no reasonably
possible change would erode the headroom to the stage of needing to impair the balance, therefore no sensitivity
analysis has been disclosed.
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1l. Property, plant, and equipment

Land and Infrastructure Plant and uUnder
Buildings assets equipment  construction Group total
£m £m £m £m £m

Castor valuation
At Aprit 202 2,007.0 51327 27793 578.1 10,4971
Additions at cost 108 124.3 42.6 268.3 4468
Transfers on commissioning 545 49.7 220.G (324.2} -
Other transfers - - (a8) (0.7) (5.5)
Disposals (12.0) {6.5) (184.3) - (202.8)
Revaluation ~ 9018 - - 901.8
At 31 March 2022 2,080 8,202.0 2,852.8 522.5 N,637.4
Accumulated depreciation
At April 2021 428.8 465.5 13521 - 22464
Charge for the year 45.0 982 1817 - 304.¢
Disposals {12.0} (6.5} (184.3) - {202.8)
At 31 March 2022 461.8 557.2 1,329.5 - 2,348.5
Net book value at 31 March 2022 1,598.3 5,644.8 1,523.3 522.5 9,288.9

Duwring the year the group copitolised borrowing costs amounting to £14.5m (2021: £14.2m) on qualifying assets.
Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate on the group’s borrowings of 3.05% (2021 3.)4%).
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. Property, plant, and equipment (continued)

Cost or valuation

At1 April 2020

Additions at cost

Transfers on commissioning
Disposals

Revaluation

At 31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation
At April 2020

Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 March 2021

Net book value at 31 March
201

Right of use assets

Cost

At 1 April 202}
Additions
Disposals

At 31 March 2622

Depreciation and impairment
At1April 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

At31March 2022

Net book value at 31 March 2022

Net book value at 31 March 2021

Land and Infrastructure Plant and Under
Buildings assets equipment construction Group total
£m £m £m £m £m
1,996.5 4,7221 2,819.8 4895 10,037.9
225 470 333 3455 448.3
245 1527 89.7 (268.9) -
(36.5) (6.1) (163.5) - (208.1)
- 217.0 - - 217.0
2,007.0 5,132.7 2,779.3 578. 10,4971
4206 3816 1,351.0 - 2153.2
447 90.0 163.7 - 298.4
(36.5) (81) (162.6) - (205.2)
428.8 4865.5 1,352.1 - 2,246.4
1,578.2 4,667.2 1,427.2 578.1 8,250.7
Land and Infrastructure Piant and
Buildings assets equipment Group total
£m £m £m Em
18.3 373 N6 57.2
10 - 6.4 7.4
(10.1) - (7.5) (17.8)
a.2 37.3 i0.5 g§7.0
_—
2.4 21 42 87
12 11 3.5 58
(1.2) - (3.9) (51)
2.4 3.2 3.8 9.4
6.8 341 6.7 47.6
e e———
15.9 352 7.4 58.5
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1. Property, plant, and equipment (continued)
Revalugtion - Infrastructure assets

The company's infrastructure assets were vaiued by managerment at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021 using the
approach outlined in note 1. These annuai valugtions are petformed on a consistent basis in accordance with FRS 102
which requires that assets subject to o policy of revaluation should be carried at their fair value tess any subsequent
agccumulated depreciation and accumuiated impairment tosses, FRS 102 atlows, where market based evidence of fair
value is not availabie due to the specialised nature of the items of property piant and equipment, an entity to estimate
fair vaiue using an income approach.

The increase in intrastructure assets valuation that results from the annual revaluation has been incorporated into
the Financial Statements and the resulting revaluation adjustments taken to the revaluation reserve. A revaluation
gain of £901.8m, before deferred tax, was recognised in the year ended 31 March 2022 (202t £217.0m gain). The
directors note that the revaluation reserve position may be subject to movements in future periods as key discounted

cash flow {DCF) model assumptions are revised as information regarding future price controls and regulatory policy
becomes available.

Revaluation - Land and buildings

Certain categories of the group's land and buildings are also held under a revaluation model, on the basis of existing
use, and were volued by independent qualified valuers as at 31 Morch 2079,

The valuations were undertaken in accordance with the Appraisal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in the UK by the following surveyors:

+ Non-specialist properties Cushman & Wakefield
s Rural estates Carter Jones LLP
» Residential properties Savills (UK) Limited

External valuations on properties are re-performed on a periodic basis. An Interim valuation is booked in intervening
years bosed on directors’ voluations. The voluations carried out at 31 March 2019 have been considered ot 31 March
2022 by the directors, taking into account indicators such as the impact of Covid-19, the UK economic envirorment,

and climate change, and have concluded that the current book values are not materlally different to current market
values.
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1.  Property, plant, and equipment (continued)

Categorles of assets revalued as at 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Infrastructurc assets
Nen-specialist propetrties
Rural estates

Residential properties

Net book value of assets revalued

Analysis of the net book value of revalued land and building is as follows:

1 April 2020
Additions
Depreciation and impadirment

1 April 2021
Additions

Depreciation and impairment

31 March 2022

Revalued amount
£m

56789
30.2
517

2.4

5,772.2

Historical cost
basis
£m

4,245.5

37.7
0.5

4,283.7

Historical cost

Revalued amount basis
£m £m

6592 13.7

233 233

(0.9} (0.7)

91.6 36.3

2.9 29

(1.2) (1.0)

93.3 38.2
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. Propetty, plant, and equipment {continued)

Analysis of the net book value of revalued infrastructure assets is as follows:

Restated’

Historical cost

Revalued amount basis

£m £m

At valuation/cost 72836 5,861.3
Aggregate depreciation (1.614.7) (1615.9)
Net book value of assets revaiued 5,878.9 4,24%.4

' The amounts reported in the 2021 Annuai Repart and Financial Stataments in raspect of the historical cost, aggregate depreciation
and net value as at 31 March 2021 were misstated due to an error in compilation of the disclosure. Accordingly, the disclosures herein
in relation to 2021 have been updated to reflect the corrected amounts. There has been a £17.4m increase to the historical cost, an
increase in aggregate depreciation of £145.5m and a reduction in net valug on « historical cost basis of £128)m as previously
reported.

12. Trade and other receivables
2022 202
Amounts falling due within
one year: £m £m
Trade receivables 182.5 182.7
Provision for impairment of
trade receivables {36.8) (27.5)
145.7 i66.2
Prepayments 8.3 n.2
Accrued income 84.6 79.2
Other tax and social security 13.3 8.4
Other receivables 9.1 104
261.0 2724
Amounts failing due in more
than one year:
Amounts owed by parent
cormpany 144.9 1419

All receivables dre reviewed regularly to assess any associdted credit risk. There dre no sighificant concentrations of
credit rigk. Ahy impairment cansidered necessary has been made to the amounts inctuded above, See note 20 for
further details of credit risks associated with financial instruments.

Credit control policies and procedures are determined at the individual business unit level. By far the most significant
business unit of the group is Yorkshire Water, which represents 99.1% of group turnover and 88.8% of net trade
receivables. Yorkshire Water has a statutory obligation to provide water and wastewater services to domestic
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12. Trade and other receivabies (continued)

customers within its region and therefore there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to its trade receivabies
from these services and the credit quality of its customer base reflects the wealth and prospetity of all the domestic
households within its region. The expected credit loss rate is 3.2% (2021: 2.5%), calcuiated as the Impairment write off

as a percentage of revenue.

As at 31 March 2022

Trade receivables
Expected credit loss
(em)

txpected credit loss

(%)

As at 31 March 2021

Trade receivables
Expected credit loss
(£m)

Expected credit loss

(%)

Provision at 31 March 2021

Charge in the year
Arnounts written off

Pastdue
Notdue Lessthan Between Between Betwean More Total
1year Tand 2 2and 3 3and4 than 4
overdue yeadars years years years
overdue ovardue overdue overdue
0.3 791 23.7 19.6 6.4 43.4 182.5
- (4.2) (1.4) (5.2) {6.0) (20.0) (36.8)
- 53 5.9 265 36.6 46.1 20.2
Past due
Not due Lessthan  Between Between Between More than Total
1year and 2 2and 3 dand4 4 years
overdue years years years overdue
overdue overdue overdue
0.3 89.6 23.8 18.2 15.3 355 182.7
- (1) (1.8) (3.7) (5.4) (15.5) (27.5)
- 12 7.6 20.3 35.3 437 15.
The movement in the provision for impoirment of trade receivables is as follows:
2022 2021
£m £m
27.%5 306
31.9 19.6
(22.5) (22.7)
36.8 27.5

Provision at 31 March 2022

In ofl cases, the fair value of trade and cther receivables is considered to be the carrying value as stated above.
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13. Finoncing

(i) Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
£m £m
Cash and cash equivalents 51.4 120.9
Short-tetrm deposits 0.6 115.]
52.0 236.0
At 31 March 2022, the group had avaiiable £693.0m (202k £480.8m) of undrawn committed barrowing facilities.
(i) Borrowings
2022 2021
£m £em
Current borrowings:
Bank borrowings 64.8 n0.3
Notes issued by Kelda Eurobond Co Limited 1,788.5 -
Other borrowings 167.0 3200
Fixed rate USD notes - 168.7
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes 410.6 -
2,420.9 599.0
2022 202
£m £m
Non-current borrowings:
Bank botrowings 722.7 768.8
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in less than 5 years 298.8 2170
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in more than & yeors 2,473.1 2,668.8
Inflation linked gucaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in more than 5 years 1,413.7 1,308.5
Floating rate notes due in more than & years 74.4 74.4
Fixed rote USD notes due in less than & yeors 137.0 136.6
Fixed rate AUD bonds due in less than 5 years 29.3 28.7
Notes issued by Kelda turobond Co Limited - 1,668.6
5,149.0 68622

Bank borrowings due in less than one year have been considered current as this demonstrates a reasonable split
between the age of the debt. ‘Other borrowings’ includes the drown portion of Yorkshire Water's Revolving Credit

Faellity,

og



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continueaq)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

13. Financing (continued)
(i) Borrowings {continued)

included within borrowings are:

2022 202
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in less than 1 year are made up £m em
of:
Rnnds repayable on 21 February 2023. Interest is charged ot 6.5876% 212.4 -
Bonds repayable on 22 March 2046. Interest is charged at 3.75%' 198.2 -
Total fixed rate guaranteed steriing bonds and notes due in less than 1year 410.6 -
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in less than 5 years are made up
of:
Bonds repayable on 21 Fepruary 2023. Interest is charged at 6.5876% - 210.9
Bonds repayable on 21 February 2023. interest is charged at 5.375%* - 6.1
Bonds repayable on 26 November 2026. Interest is charged at 1.75% 298.8 -
Totual fixed rate guaranteed steriing bonds and notes dua in iess than 5 years 298.8 27.0
Fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in more than 5 years are made
up of:
Bonds repayable on 26 November 2026. Interest is charged at 1.75% - 288.6
Bonds repayable on 28 May 2027, Interest is charged at 5.5% 6.9 6.8
Bonds repayable on 28 May 2027. Interest is charged at 6.454% 132.9 132.2
Private notas repayable on 22 September 2028. Interest is charged at 2.03% 59.8 59.8
Bonds repayable on 1 August 2029. interest is charged at 3.625% 2455 264.9
Frivate notes repayable on 30 October 2028. Interest is charged at 3.54% 84.1 1024
Bonds repayable on 17 April 2031. interest is charged at 6.6011% 268.5 268.0
Bonds repayable on 17 April 2031. Interest is charged at 6.625%* - 0.8
Private notes repayable on 22 September 2031, Intorest is charged at 2.14% 49.8 49.8
Bonds repayable on 27 October 2032. interest is charged at 1.75% 344.7 -
Private notes repayable on 22 September 2033. Interest is charged at 2.21% 4%.8 49.8
Bonds repayable on 13 June 2033. Interest is charged at 4.965% 96.8 105.3
Private notes repayable on 28 Septermber 2034. Interest is charged at 3.08% 49.8 497
Private notes repayable on 22 September 2036. Interest is charged at 2.30% 39.8 39.8
Private notes repayable on 22 September 2038, Interest is charged at 2.30% 49.8 49.8
Bonds repayable on 28 May 2037. Interest is charged at 5.5% 188.0 187.3
Private notes repayable on 28 September 2038. Interest is charged at 317% 49.7 49.7
Bonds repayable on 18 August 2039. Interest is charged at 6.375% 302.3 302.6
Bonds repayable on 18 April 2041, Interest is charged at 2.75% 444.9 444.9
Bonds repayable on 22 March 2048, Interest is charged at 3.75%' - 196.4
Total fixed rate guaranteed sterling bonds and notes due in more than 5 years 2,4731 2658.6
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2022

13.  Financing (continued)

(ii) Borrowings (continued)

Inflation linked guaranteed sterling bonds due in more than 5 years are made up of:
Bonds repayable on 29 July 2033. interest is charged at 3.3066%*

Bonds repayable on 29 July 2033. Interest is charged at 3.048%*

Bonds repayable on 30 December 2039, interest is charged at 2.718%?
Private notes repayable on 13 December 2041, Interest is charged at 216%2
Bonds repayable an 22 May 2042, tnterest is charged at 1.803%3

Bonds repayable on 1 February 2050. Interest is charged gt 1.8225%2
Bonds repayable on 1 August 2085). Interast is charged ot 1.462%2

Bonds repayable on 1 Februgary 2054, Infersst is charged at 175756%?
Bonds repoyable on 1 August 2056. Interest is charged at 1.46%?

Bonds repayable on ) February 2058. interest is chargad at 1.7085%?

Total inflation linked guaranteed sterling bonts due in more thon 5 years

Fixed rate USD notes are made up of:

$115.0m USD fixed rate private notes repayabie 13 December 2021, Interest is charged
at3.77%

$40.0m USD tixed rate private notes repayable 5 January 2022, Interest is charged at
377%

$75.0r USD fixed rate private notes repayable 5 Janugry 2022. Interest is charged at
5.07%

$150.0m USD fixed rate private notes payable on 13 December 2023. Interest is
charged at 3.87%

$30.0m USD fixed rate private notes repayable on § January 2024, Interest is charged
at 3.87%

Total fixed rate USD notes

Fixed rate AUD bonds are made up of:
$50m AUD bonds repayable on 26 April 2023. Interest is charged at 5.875%.

Total fixed rate AUD bonds

All guaranteed borrowings above are repayable in one instalment unless stoted otherwise.

2022 2021
£m £Em
205.8 159.4
- (0.8)
397.2 359.3
68.5 B17
£5.8 81}
21.4 83.7
168.5 150.9
17.4 107.4
167.4 152.0
135.7 123.8
1,433.7 1,308.5
- 84.3

- 28.4

- 55.0
114.2 M3.8
228 228
137.0 305.3
29.3 297
29.3 29.7

' This bond also has a step-up and call date on 22 March 2023. A deed poll has been signed, which is an enforceable and lagaily
binding pledge, to exercise the optional redemption right on the bond prior to the end of the fixed rate period (22 March 2023).
% Interest is charged on these bonds and notes at the above percentages multiplied by an index ratio and the principal amount is

increased semi-annually in line with the RPI.
? Amortising - repayrments commence 2032,
*0n 16 March 2022 the group exercised options to redeam these bonds.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

13. Financing {continued)
(i) Borrowings (continued)
Non-current bank borrowings

Non-current bank borrowings are made up of:

(i) Bank loans:
- Loan facilities of £nil with maturities between 1 and 2 years.
+  Loan facilities of £ni! with maturities between 2 and 5 years.
+  Loan facilities of £148.1m with maturities in more than 5 years.

(i} Term loans facilities:
+  Aninflation (CPt) linked term facility of £108.0m due March 2029 with interest charged at 0.4745% multiplied
by an index ratio and the principal amount is increased semi-annually in line with CPI.
« A fixed rate term facility of £48.9m due July 2031 with interest charged at 2.881%.
s Aninflation {CP1} linked term facility of £27.Jm due July 2031 with interast charged at 0.8125% multiplied by
an index ratic and the principal amount is increased semi-annually in line with CPI,

{iii} Bank loans held at Keidda Finance (No.2} Limited of £389.6m {£394.9m loan less £5.3m unamortised issue costs).

Notes issued by Kelda Eurobond Co Limited £1,788.5m (2021: £1,668.5m)

These loan notes are issued under a Payment-in-Kind (PIK) facility agreement. The final redemption date under this
PIK facility agreement is 8 February 2023. Semi-annuail interest payments due in the year to 31 March 2022 (interest
rate of 6-month LIBOR plus 7.0%) have been capitalised by adding amounts due to the outstanding notes balance.

14. Lease liabilities

2022 20

£m £m

Current 4.8 : 6.0
Non-current 50.6 85.0
55.4 91.0

The group does not face a sighificant liquidity risk with regard te its lease liabilities.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

15, Trade ond other payables

2022 202
£m £m
Amounts failling duse within one year:

Trade paycbles 158.0 149.6
Caopital payables 122.8 788
Social security and other taxes 4.6 5.4
Receipts in advance 80.9 88.2
Intergst payable 56.6 829
Other payables 4.5 8.0
458.4 414.8

Amounts falling due after more than one yeur:
Other payables 9.4 ns

Trade and other payables principally comprise amounts cutstanding for trade purchases and ongeing costs. The
diractors consiger that the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximote to their fair volue.

16. Deferred grants and contributions on depreciated assets

2022 2021
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Contributions ta depreciated assets 12.4 neg

Amaunts falling due after more than one year:
Contributions to depreciated assets 530.6 5031

ns



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

17. Deferred income tax liabilities

R&D credit PPE Financial Pension Total
instruments obligations

£m £m £m £m £m

At1April 2020 (0.4) 843.9 (411.2) 44.0 473.3
Charge/(credir) to statement of profit

or loss 0.4 (.0} (0.1} 31 (7.8)

Charge/{credit) to equity - M2 18 (31.9) nm

AtV April 2021 - 884.1 (422.5) 15.2 476.8
Charge/(credit) to statement of profit

or loss - 227.6 (198.2) 43 337

Chargef{credit) to equity - 243.4 10.4 41 257.9

At 31 March 2022 - 1,355.1 {610.3) 23.6 768.4

18. Pensions
(i) Characteristics of and risks associated with the group’s plan

Kelda Group Limited sponsors a UK pension plan, called the Kelda Group Pension Plan {KGPP). The KGPP has a number
of benefit categories providing benefits on a defined benefit basis and a defined contribution basis.

The responsibility for the governance and management of the KGPP lies with the Trustee Board (the Trustee) whose
role is to ensure that the KGPP is administered in accordance with its rules and relevant legislation, and to safeguard
the assets in the best interests of all members and beneficiaries. The Trustee is solely responsible for setting
investment policy and for agreeing funding requirements with the employer through the triennial valuation process.
The Trustee Board must be composed of representatives of the group and KGPP participants in accordance with the
KGPP's regulations.

Members of the KGPP Cateer Average section (CARE) paid contributions over the year ended 3t March 2022 at rates
of 7.5%, 9.5% or % of pensionable pay {depending on benefit category). Members of the Mirror Image Section (MIS)
section paid contributions of 7.5% or 8.5%. The majority of members pay contributions through a salary sacrifice
arrangement The group contributed 19.5% of pensionable pay. The group alse paid lump sum deficit contributions of
£1.2m per menth in the year to 31 March 2022.

An accrual for unfunded benefits of £12.8m has been included in the group’s Financial Statements at 31 March 2022
{2021: £12.6m).

Risk exposure of the defined benefit plan

Whilst the group is not exposed to any unusudal, entity specific of plan specific risks in its DB pension plan, it is exposed
to a number of significant risks, detailed below:
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

18. Pensfons {continued)
(i) Characteristics of and Hsks assoclated with the group's plan (continusd)

Inflation rate risk: IAS 19 assumptions are based upon curent market expectations ond will remain subject to market
related inflation rates at future reporting dates. it shouid therefore be noted that any disclosed [AS 18 material
increases to market related inflation expectatiens will continue to negatively impact the disciosed tAS 19 basis
position. This is mitigated in part by inflation hedges held by the KGPP.

Interest rate risk: The DB obligation is determined using a discount rate derived from yields on high quality corporate
bonds. A decrease of increase in corporate bond yields will respectively increase or decrease the KGPP's ligbilities
aithough this will be mainty offset by a high levei of interest rate hedging.

Longevity risk: The majotity of the KGPP's obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the members so increases
in fife expectancy or adverse changes in other demographics may result in an increase in the KGPP's fiabiiities.

Investment risk: KGPP’'s assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of liability-driven investments, debt securities,
equities, and other return-seeking assets. If the assets underperform the discount rate used to calculate the defined
benefit obligation, it will reduce the surplus or increase the deficit. Volatility in asset values and the discount rate will
lead to volatility in the net pension liability on the group's consolidated statement of financial position and in other
comprehensive income. To a lesser extent this will also fead to volatility in the pension expense in the group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Several other asset risks are considered by the Trustee when managing the KGPP's investments. These include
concentration (being too heavily exposed to a specific area of the market), ilquidity {tailing to meet intermediate
liabilities as assets can't be sold), currency and investment managet specific risks. The Trustee also considers
envirenmental, social and governance risks, with a particular recent focus on climate risk. Climate change is
considered a systemic risk with the potential te have an economig, financial, and demographic impact making it o
long-term financial risk to the KGPP's outcomes.

The uitimate cost of the DB obligations te the group will depend upon actual future events rather than the assumptions
made. The assumptions made are uniikely to he borne out in practice and as such the actual cost may be higher or
fower than expected.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

18. Pensions (continued)
(i) Major assumptions

Pension contributions are determined with the advice of independent qualified actuaries, Mercer Limited, on the basis
of annual valuations using the projected unit credit method.

2022 202

% %

Inflation (RPI) 3.85 3.30
Inflation (CP1) 3.25 2.70
Rate of increase in salaries 3.00 200
Discount rate for plan liabilities 2.80 215
Life expectancy for a male pensioner aged 60 (in years) 26.70 26.30
Projected life expectancy at age 60 for male aged 40 (in years) 27.70 27.80
Life expectancy for a female pensioner aged 60 {in years) 29.00 28.90
Projected life expectancy at age B0 for female aged 40 (in years) 30.00 30.50

{iii) Pian assets and liabilities
Plan assets are stated at their mid or net asset value (NAV) values at the respective balance sheet dates.

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, the group considered the current level of
expected returns on risk free investments {primarily government bonds), the historical level of the risk premium
associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolic is invested and the expectations for future returns of
edach asset class. The post-employment benefit net surplus of £116.3m (2021 £95.3m) is presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position under non-current assets.

2022 2021
Em £m

Fair value of plan assets
Equities 104.3 151.3
Bonds nLs 2564
Property - 13.6
Other 1.110.5 11421
Total value of plan assets 1,527.3 1563.4
Present value of plan liabilities {r.41.0) (1,4681)
Post-employment benefits surplus ne.3 95.3

The pension plan has not invested in any of the group’s own financial instruments nor in properties or other assets
used by the group.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

18. Pensions (continued)

(iv} Analysis of the amounts included within the Financial Statements

2022 2021
£m £Em
anclysis of amount charged to operating costs:
Current service cost 13.0 106
Past service cost ~ 02
Net Interest credit an pension plan (2.2) {6.0)
Administrative expenses and taxes 3.5 32
Amounts charged to the consolidated statement of profitorloss 143 8.0
Analysis of amounts recognised in group statement of comprehansive income:
Return on plan assets {excluding interest income) 35.8 (403)
Effect of chonges in demographic assumptions (7.9 (2.4)
Effect of changes in financiaf assumptions (46.4) 210.7
Effect of changes in financial assumptions ) 7.0 -
actuarial {gain)fioss recognised in the group statement of comptehensive
income (10.7) 1875
Total defined benafit cost recognised in the cansclidated statement of profit or
loss and statement of comprehensive income 3.6 175.5

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as they occur in the group statement of comprehensive income.

The total employer contributions to the DB pian for the year ending 31 March 2022 were £24.6rm {2021 £25.1m). The
totat empleyer contributions to the DC plan for the year ending 31 March 2022 were £51m (2021: £3.8m).
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

18. Pensions (continued)

{(v) Reconciliation of bpening and closing retirement benefit liabilities and assets

2022 2021
£m £m
Movements in the defined benefit obligation
AL April (1.468.1) (1,290.85)
Current sefvice cost (13.0) (10.8)
Past service cost - {02)
Interest expense (31.0) (29.5)
Remedsurements:
Actugrial gains - demographic assumptions 7.1 2.4
Actuarial gains/(losses) - financial assumptions 46.4 {210.7)
Experience adjustment (7.0) -
Benefits paid 54.6 711
At 31 March : (1.an.0) (14681)
The total defined benefit obligation comprises:
Amounts owing to active members (293.8} (384.7)
Amounts owing to deferred members (252.0) {(166.8)
Amounts owing to retired members (865.2) (916.6)
Total defined benefit obligation at 21 March {ran.o) (1468.7)
2022 202}
£m £rn
Changes in the fair vaiue of plan assets:
At1April 1,563.4 1,536.3
Return on plan assets {exciuding interest income) (35.8) 40.8
Interest income 33.2 355
Employer contributionhs . 24.6 25.1
Banefits paid (54.6) (7)
Administrative expenses paid from plan assets (3.5) (3.2)
At 31 March 1,527.3 1563.4

(vi) Sensitivity analysis

The effect of reasonably possible changes in key assumptions on the value of plan liabilities and the resulting pension
charge in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and on the net DB pension plan liability is set out below. The
sensitivities provided assume that all other assumptions and the value of the plans’ assets rermain unchanged and
are not intended to represent changes that are at the extremes of possibility.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

18. Pensions (continued)

(vi) sensitivity analysis (continued)

The calcutations arg approximate in nature and full detailed calculations could lead to a different result. it is unlikely
that isolated changes to individual assumptions will be experienced in practice. Due to the ¢orrelation of assumptions,
aggregating the effects of these isclated changes may not be a reasonable estimate of the actual effect of
simuitaneous changes in multipte assumptions,

Analysis of the impuact on the net balance sheet position:

Mortality minus

increase 0.25% Decredase 0.25% one ysar age

Base 2022 discount rate inflation rate rating

£m £m £m £m

Fair value of plan assets 1,627.3 1,527.3 15273 15273

Present value of defined benefit

cbligation 0,41.0) (1,355.0) (1,367.0) (1,470.0)

Surplus in the plan 116.3 172.3 1603 573
Actuarial assumptions used in sensitivity analysis;

Mertality minus

Increase 0.25% Decrease 0.25% one year age

Base 2022 discountrate inflation rate rating

% % % %

Discount rate 2.80 3.05 2.80 2.80

Rate of RPI assumption 3.85 3.85 3.60 3.85

Rate of CPI assumption 325 3.25 3.00 3.25

Rate of salary increqse 3.00 3.00 275 3.00

The inflgtion assumption sensitivity applies to both the assumed rate of increase in CPland RPI and include the impact
on the rate of increases to pensions, both before and after retirement. These pension increases are linked to inflation
{either CP! or RP1) subject to certain minimum and maximurm flimits.

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation:

The following table provides information on the weighted average duration of the DB pension obligation:

2022 202
Years Years
Duration of the defined benetlit obligation 16 8
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022 '

18. Pensions (continued)

(vi) Sensitivity analysis {continued)

The foliowing table provides information on the distribution and timing of benefit payments:

£m
Within 12 months 46.1
Between 1 and 2 years 475
Between 2 and 3 years 491
Between 3 and 4 years 50.7
Belween 4 and 5 years 52.3
Between 5 and 10 years 288.2

Between 10 and 17 years AN2.5

Funding arrangements

The last triennial funding valuation of the KGPP was carried out at 31 March 2021 and agreed in June 2022; the next
valuation is due at 31 March 2024, In the year to 31 March 2022 the group made contributions based on pensionable
pay and also paid lump sum deficit recovery contributions. From 1 April 2022, contributions will be made solely for new
benefits accrued by active members in the future and these contributions will increase from 19.5% to 26.5% of
pensionable pay with effect from 1 July 2022,

(vii) Defined contribution plan

The group ran two DC schernes for its employees. These were closed to new members on 30 September 2007 and
replaced by one DC schame on 1 October 2007.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

19. Equity and other reserves
Allotted, called up and fully paid
As at 31 March 2021 and 2022

Number p shares £1 shares Total
£ £ £
Equity shares 1 001 750,000,600 750,000,000

Alsc included within equity are reserves, the nature of which are as follows:

Consolidated statement of profit or joss: Cumulative profits or losses, net of revaluation of retirement benefits and
dividends paid.

Revaluation reserve; Infrastructure assets, residential properties, speciclised properties, and rural estates are statea
at fair value lass any subseguent accumulated depreciation and impdirment fosses. Gains on revaluation are

recognised in other comprehansive income and accurmnulated in the revaluation reserve. For further details, see note
2 and note 1l

Hedging reserve: Energy derivatives, which hedge the company’s exposure to energy price risk by exchanging the day
ahead index price of enargy for d fixed price, are designated as cash fiow hedges and hedge accounting has been

applied. The hedging gain or toss is recognised in other cornprehensive incomae. For further details, see note 2 and
note 20.

The hedging gain of 108s recognised in OC! is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged itemn is recognised in profit
or loss or when the hedging relationship ends. For further detoils, see note 2 and note 20,
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

20. Financial instruments

The disclosures below exclude short-term receivables and payables which are primarily of a trading nature and
expected (0 be settled within normal commercial terms.

Net debt and associated financial instruments comprise the following:

Derivative financial assets:
Inflation linked swaps

Fixed to floating interest rate
swaps

Cross-currency interest rate
swaps

Energy derivatives

Total derivative financial
assets

Derivative financial liabilities:
Inflation linked swaps

Floating to fixed interest rate
swaps

Cross-currency interest rate
SWaps

Total derivative financial
liabilities
Neat debt:

Cash and short-term deposits
Borrowings

Total net debt

2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Less than More than Less than More than

one yedar one year Total one yedar one year Total

£m £m £Em £m £m £m

- 129.4 129.4 - ng.1 19,

- 17.3 7.3 - 56.8 56.8

- 22.9 22.8 24.9 24.3 49.2

443 2.6 46.9 47 22 6.9

44.3 172.2 216.5 29.6 202.4 2320

- (2,61.5) (2.611.5) - (2,318.8) (2.318.8)

- (14.7) (1a.7) - (210) (211)

- {4.7) (4.7) - (4.0) (4.0)

- (2.630.9) (2.630.9) - (2,343.9) (2,343.9)

52.0 - 52.0 236.0 - 236.0

(2.420.9) {5,149.0) (7.569.9) (598.0) _ (8,862.2) (7,4812)

(2,368.9) (5.149.0) (7.517.9) (363.0) (6,862.2) (7,225.2)
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the yeor ended 31 March 2022

20. Financial instruments (continued)

The following table summarises the fair value movemeants on the derivative instruments:

2022 20
£m £m

inciuded in finance costs .
Movement in fair value of inflation linked swaps 368.3 88.8
Movement in fair value of floating to fixed interest rate swaps (3.9) (1.2
Movement in tair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps 26.6 374
Movement in fair value of foreign currency debt (24.5) {35.6)
Movement in fair value of fixed to floating interest rate swaps 39.5 233
Movement in the foir volue of debt associoted with fixed to flooting interest rate swaps {36.4) {20.8)
Movement in fair value of energy derivatives - (0.4)
Net tair value movement 369.6 101.6

Movement in the fair value of inflation finked swaps

inflation linked swops have been valued at the reparting date at fair value, which at 31 March 2022 resulted in a net
liability of £2,482.1m (2021: £2199.7m liability}, comprising £120.4m assets and £2,61.5m liabilities (2021 £19.1m assets
and £2,318.8m liabilities). Included within the net liability are net assets of £76.Im {202% £88.2m) refating to day cne
deferred gains and losses recognised on the restructuring of certain inflation linked swaps in prior years.
This year has seen the liability on the inflation linked swaps increase by £282.4m {2021 £100.m increase). Of this
amount, £368.3m relates to the fair value movement as disclosed above (2021 £98.9m cost), £0.4m relates to net

interest pdid on inflation linked swaps (2021 £16.7m received) and £85.5m relates to an accretion payment made in
the year (2021 £15.5m expense).

Movement in the fair vaiue of floating to fixed interest rate swaps

The group holds a number of iegacy fioating to fixed rate swaps. The fair value movement of floating to fixed interest
rate swaps has resulted in £3.9m income to the consolidated statement of profit or loss (2021; £1.2m income).

Movement in the fair value of cross-currency interest rate swaps and associated debt

The group holds o number of cross-currency interest rate swaps which have been designoted in foir volue hedge
refationships and have been valued at the reporting date at fair value. The carrying vailue of associated debt
designated in the hedge relationships has been adjusted for the hedged fisk. The movement in the valuation of the
cross-currency interest rate swaps has resulted in £26.6m expense (2021 £37.4m expense) to the consolidated
statement of profit or {oss. This is offsat by the fair value movement in the associated debt of £24.5m income (2021
£35.6m income). The net impact to the consclidated staterment of profit or loss is £21m of expense (2021: £1.8m
expense}. Currency basis has been included in the hedge designation which acts as a source of ineffectiveness.

Movement in the fair value of fixed to flaating interest rate swaps and associated debt

The group holds a number of fixed to floating interest rate swaps which are designated in fair value hedge
relationships and have been valued at the reporting date at fair vaiue. The carrying volue of associoted debt
designated in the hedge relationships has been adjusted for the hedged risk. The fair value movement of fixed to
floating interest rata swaps has resuited in £39.5m expense (202% £23.3m expense) to the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, The fair value movement of associated debt is £36.4m income {2021: £20.8m incoma). This is a total
impact 1o the consolidated statement of profit or loss of £3.0m of expense (202} £2.5m expense). This rapresants
ineffectiveness in the hedge relationships due to factors such as credit risk.

123



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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20. Financial instruments (continued)
{a) Interest rate risk profile of financial assets and liabilities

The following table provides information about the maturity of the nominal amount and interest payable rates
attached to the swaps held by group as of 31 March 2022 to hedge its interest rate risk:

Period of maturity
Firstyear Second tofifth year After five years Total
£m £Em £m
31March 2022 31March 2022 31March 2022 31 March 2022
Notional amount (GBP) - 146.9 430.0 576.9
Average interest rate — fixed to - - 3.9% -
floating interest rate swaps
Average interest rate — cross- - 3.9% - -
currency interest rate swaps
{usD)
Average interest rate — cross- - 3.8% - -
currency interest rate swaps
{AuD)

(b) Financial risks
Capital risk management

The group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the group’s ability to continue as a going concern to
provide benefits to stakehoiders, returns to shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure. In order to do
this, the group will consider the amount of debt and assets held and their liquidity.

When monitering capital risk, the group considers its gearing and the rotio of net debt to Yorkshire Water's RCV.
Maximum exposure relating to financial assets is represented by carrying value as at the balance sheet date.
Credit risi

The group has some exposure to credit risk through the holding of receivables on the year end consolidated
statement of financial position. The credit risk associated with these balances is heightened in the year ended 31
March 2022 due to economic factors affecting household disposal income such as energy prices and high levels of
inflation, this is being closely monitored by the group. These can be split into charges against the provision of water
and wastewater services and other trade receivables.

For trade receivables, the group measures a provision for expected credit losses at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses, estimated by reference to past experience and retevant forward-looking facters.

Risks associated with receivables inciude limits on the group's ability to restrict supply. However, this does not apply
to all receivables. The credit risk is mitigated by introducing payment plans, providing advice and support to
customers where this is viable and where it is considered necessary, using legal procedures to reciaim outstanding
debts.

Other risks associated with trade receivables are mitigated by credit checks performed on customers before they are
supplied, the cessation of supply to customers who are o high credit risk and payment in advance where this is
deemed necassary.
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2p. Financial Instrurents (continued)

(b) Financiai risks (continued)
Credit risk {continued)}

The directors cénsider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximates to their falr vatue. The
amounts prasented in the consolidated statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables,
estimated by the group's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current econamic
gnvirgnment.

The group's objective is to manage risk by minimising the amount of overdue debt at any time. The group manages
the risk by timely review of the ageing profile and employing speacific staff to monitor and callect these debts. The rigk
is measured by monitoring of overdue receivables.

Cash and short-term deposits are invested with o range of counterparties, either AAA rated sterling liquidity funds or
banks with a rating of at least long-term A, short-term AlfP1,in accordance with approved investment guidelines.

At 31 March, the maxirmnum exposure to credit risk for the group represented by the carrying amount of each financial
asset ip the statement of finoncial position is as follows:

2022 2021

£m £m

Cash and short-term deposits {note 13) 52.0 236.0
Trade and other receivables (note 12) 405.9 4143
== ————1] e ————

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will not have the level of liguid funding available to meet its reguirements.
Maintaining an inadequate amount of liquidity ond being unable to access the debt markets when required exposes
the group to the risk of being unable to finance its functions and refinance existing indebtedness, whilst maintaining
excess liquidity potentially exposes the group to the risk of inefficient funding costs.

The group loocks to manage its liquidity by ensuring debt is issued with a range of durations and obtained from a
variety of sources. The maturity profile is actively managed by the group's treasury function. Existing bank covenants
require the group to maintain a combination of available cash balances and banking facllities sutficient to cover
certain requirements for the succeeding 12 months. This is a rolling requirement. Further facilities are not expected to
be required within the next year to comply with the covenants.

At 31 March 2022 the group had £745.0m of availabte quidity (202t £726.8m) which comprised £52.0m in available

cash and short-term deposits (2021 £236.0m) and £6983.0m of undrawn committed borrowing facilities (2021
£490.8m).

The liquidity profile ot the group's financicl assets and liobilities at 31 March 2022 is below. This includes interest

poyable or receivable in the yeor as well as the principal repayments. It is assumed thot SONIA and indexation remain
constant at the year end position.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

(b) Financial risks {continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022

Fixed rate

Bank loans

Guaranteed sterling bonds
and notes

UsD notes

AUD bonds

Fioating rate

Inflation linked guaranteed
sterting bonds and notes
inflation linked bank
borrowings

Other bank borrowings
Notes issued by Kelda
Eurobond

Derivative financial
instruments

Inflation linked swaps

Fixed to floating interest rate
swaps

Cross-currency interest rate
SWapPS

Floating to fixed interest rate
swaps

Non-interest bearing
financial liabilities
Trade payabiles
Other payables

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than
1year years years years yedrs 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 238.0 273.0
534.1 100.4 103.6 102.0 402.0 3,147.9 4,390.0
5.3 141.3 - - - - 146.6
1.7 28.6 - - - - 30.3
548.1 271.3 110.6 109.0 409.0 3,386.9 4,839.9
3.8 31.8 318 31.8 e 2,049.3 2,208.3
2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 2.8 303.2 a17.2
243.9 18.8 n2.2 15.5 39.9 3411 7.4
1,932.2 - - - - - 1,932.2
2,210.7 53.4 146.8 50.1 74.5 2,693.6 5,229.1
(13.9) (n.e) 0.6 81.8 421 1,460.5 1,659.2
(4.6) (%)) (50) (4.6} (4.6) (17.4) (40.4)
(3.0) (20.5) - - - - {23.5)
2.2 2.3 2.2 22 2.3 10.9 221
(19.3) (34.2) (2.3) 79.4 39.8 1,454.0 1,517.4
159.0 - - - - - 169.0
2128 9.4 - - - - 2222
37.8 9.4 - - - - 381.2
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20. Financiatinstruments {continued)

(b) Financial risks {continued)

Liguidity risk (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

Fixed rate

Bank loans

Guaranteed stearling bonds
and notes

USD notas

AUD bonds

Floating rate

inflation linked guaranteed
stetling bonds and nates
inflation linked bank
borrowings

Other bank borrowings
Notes issued by Kelda
Eurobond

Derivative financial
instruments

inflation finked swaps

Fixed to floating interest rate
swaps

Cross-currency interast rate
swaps

Floating to fixed interest rate
swaps

Non-interest bearing
financiali liabifities
Trade payables
Other payables

Within 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5 More than
Tyear years years years yedrs 5 years Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
9.4 48 46 48 46 190.8 218.6
nz.7 535.1 94.3 97.5 95.9 3157.2 4,097.7
1775 5.0 1345 - - - 3N7.0
16 16 277 - ~ - 309
3062 546.3 2611 1021 100.5 3,348.0 4,664.2
29.8 29.8 29.8 298 29.8 1,938.3 2,087.3
26 26 2.7 26 28 287.2 3003
447.3 977 308 1245 27.6 3511 10790
n.e 1782.4 - - - ~ 1,800.2
597.5 191256 633 156.9 60.0 2,576.6 5,366.8
69.9 (1.8} o a.6 70.6 1,444.9 1,593.3
(10.2) (10.2) (9.) m.3) (10.2) (48.0) (97.0)
(29.9) {45) (14.0) - - - (48.4)
25 25 25 25 25 135 26.0
323 (14.0) {20.8) 0.8 62.9 14124 1473.9
1496 - - - - - 148.6
182.4 1.5 - - - - 193.9
3320 5 - - - - 3435
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20. Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risks {continued)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that movements in market conditions, including inflation and interest rates will impact materially
on the group financial performance. The group's exposure to market risks primarily results from its finonciat
arrangements and the economic return which it is allowed on the RCV.

The group uses a variety of financial instruments, including derivatives, in order to manage the exposure to these risks.

The group’s fixed rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in their fair value due to changes in interest rates.
The group’s floating rate borrowings are exposed to a risk of change in interest cash flows due to changes in interest
rates. The group uses interest rate swap contracts to hedge these exposures where appropriate.

The sensitivity of the group's interest and borrowings to the above risks can be summarised as foliows:

2022 2021
£m £m

Impact on profit before tax
1% increase in inflation leading to a decrease in profit s 31.6
1% decrease in inflation leading to an increase in profit () (31.7)
1% increase in SONIA leading to a decrease in profit 14.6 21.6
1% decrease in SCNIA leading to a decrease/{increase) in profit 5.1 (7.3)

In order to manage its exposure to movements in SONIA, the group has entered inte a number of floating rate to
inflation linked swaps and also floating interest rate to fixed interest rate swaps.

The nominal value of inflaticn linked swaps total £1,289.0m and have an average life to the maturity date of 28 years.
The nominal value of the floating interest rate to fixed interest rate swaps is £45.0m with an average remaining life of
8 years.

{¢) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities

The information set out below provides information about how the group determines fair values of various financial
assets and financial liabilities.

Financiail instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Leveis 1to 3
based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

+ level1fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
dssets or liabilities or where the directors consider the carrying amounts of the financial instruments to
approximate to their fair value;
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

{c¢) Fair values of financial assets and financial Habilities {continued)

+  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or licbility, either directly (ie., as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

+ Llevel 3 fair volue measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data (uncbservable inputs).

The fallowing table gives information about how the fair values of financial assets and financlal liabilities that ore
grouped into Level 2 and Level 3 are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) ond inputs used).

The lavel for inflation linked swaps is determined through assessing the percentage of the Debit Value Adjustment
(DVA) end Funding Value Adjustrment (FVA) of the Dirty Mark to Market vaiue of each swap. Valuations that are
classed as level 3 for the inflation linked swaps are detined by the proportion of the funding and counter-party
adjustment being greater than 10% of the total mark to market valuation of the instrument.

Financial assets/ Fair value as at Fair value Valuation technique(s) ahd key input(s)
financial 31 Match lhierarchy
i!iabmties
2022 202
i. Interest rate Assets: Assets: Level 2 swaps: Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows ate
sSwaps, £169.6m E215.7m estimated based on forward interest rates (from
cross-currency | Liabilities; Liabilitias: observable yield curves at the end of the reporting yeor)
swaps, inflation | £1,476.0m £1584.1m and contract interest rates, discounted at a rate that
linked swaps, reflects own or counter-party credit risk.
bonds and notes
Bonds: Quoted prices for identical instruments that can be
accessed ot the meosurernent date.
Notes: Discounted expected future cash flows using
prevaiting rates inciuding credit spreads observable in
publicly traded instruments.
2. Bank loans and| Liabilities: tiabilities: 1 Level 2 Fair values of bank loons and overdrofts are calculated by
overdrafts £793.Im £914.7m discounting expected future cash flows using prevaiiing
rates including credit spreads observabie in publicly
traded instruments.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

{c) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

yield curves at
the end of the
reporting year)
and contract
interast rates,
discounted at
a rate that
reflects the
credit risk of
various
counterparties)

Financial Fair value as at Fair value tluluation tigniﬁcunt unobservable [Relationship of
assets/ 31 March hierarchy technique(s) [input(s) unobservable
financial and Key inputs to fair
kiabilities input(s) value 31 March
2022 2021
3.inflation | Assets: Assets: Level 3 Discounted Infiation linked swaps:  [Unobservabie
linked £nil £9.4m cash flow. + Counterparty inputs contribute
swaps, bank | Liabilities: Liabilities: Future cash cost of funding  fon average to
loans and £1,902.2m £1,709.8m flows are assumption 17.6% of the fair
overdrafts estimated s Assumptions vaiue of level 3
based on relating to long- finstruments,
forward term credit lequaling a total of
interest rates beyond £ 437.5m of the fair
(from observable value included in
observable curves the Financial

Recovery rates

Bank loans and
overdrafts:

Level 3
instrument
valuations relate
to CPl linked
tronsactions
where inputs are
from a less liquid
rmarket.

Statements. A ten
basis point shift in
each of these
assumptions in
leither direction
gives rise to an
aggregate impact
on the valuation
of £145.5m higher
or lower.

The foliowing table provides the fair values of the group's financial assets and liabilities at 31 March 2022.
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20. Fingncial instruments {continued)

{¢) Fair values of financial assets and financio) labilitles ( continued)

2022 2022 2022 2021 2021 2021
Ltevall Level 2 Level3 Levell Leve! 2 Level 3
£m Em £m £m £m £m
Primary financial instruments financing the
group's operations
Finoncial assets held ot omortised cost
Loons to associates/joint ventures - 2.8 - - 21 -
Financlal assets measured at Fair Value
Through Profit and Loss
inflation linked swaps - 129.4 - - 1097 9.4
Fixed to floating interest rate swaps - 17.3 - - 56.8 -
Cross-currency interest rote swops - 22.9 - - 482 -
Energy derivative - - - - - -
Financial labllities measured at Fair value
Through Profit and Loss or in fair value
hecdge relotionships
Floating to fixed interast rate swaps - {14.7} - - {211} -
Cross-currency interest rate swaps - (4.7) - - (4.0) -
inflation linked swaps - (853.9) (1,757.8) - (751.4) (1567.4)
Fixed rate USD bonds and notes - (137.0) - - (2988) -
Fixed rata AUD bonds - (29.3) - - (36.3) -
Fixed rate sterling bonds and notes - (436.4) - - {4725) -
Deasignated as Fair Vaiue Through Other
Comprehensive Income
Energy derivative - 46.8 - - 6.9 -
Financial liabilities held at amortised cost
not in fair value hedge relationships
Fixed rate sterling bonds and notes (2.666.4) (246.4) - (2882))  {2743) -

inflation tinked sterfing bonds (445.3) (1.220.6) - {458.0) (1,278.0) -
Floating rate sterling notes - (76.5) - - {66.0) -
Bank loans and overdrafts (¥57.0) (793.1) (144.8) (330.8) (914.7) (142.4)
Bonds issued by Kelda Eurobond Co Limited - (1,864.1) - - (1802.8) -
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20. Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)

Reconciliation of financial liabilities measured at fair value using levei 3 inputs :

inflation swaps

£m
Balance at 1 April 2021
1558.0
Total urrealised gains or losses:
- included within finance costs in the profit or loss 2997
Transfers from Level 3 to Level 2 (1c0.1)
Balance at 31 March 2022 1,757.6

The following table shows the sensitivity of fair values to reasonably possible alternative assumptions as at 31 March
2022

Reflected in profit or loss

Favourable Unfavourable
change change
£m £m

Level 3 inflation linked swap assurmptions:
Ten basis peint change in counter-party funding assumption 420 (42.0)
Ten basis point change to credit curve assumption 22.9 (22.9)
10% change in recovery rote assumption 801 (80.)

The fair value of net derivative financial liabilities of £2,414.4m would be £45.1m (2021: £45.1m) higher or lower were the
counter-party funding assumption to change by ten basis points, The fair value of net derivative financial liabilities of
£2,414.4m would be £25.8m (2021 £31.2m) higher or lower were the credit curve assumption to change by ten basis
points. The fair value of net derivative financial liabilities of £2,414.4m wouid be £90.1m (2021: £87.4m) higher or lower
were the recovery rate assumption to change by ten per cent. Disclosing an appropriate sensitivity of fair values could
vary based on what is reasonably possible in the market but a change of ten basis points demonstrates the level of
movement in the assumption which results in a material difference, this can be scaled up and is consistent with
sensitivities reported previously.
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

(¢) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
Inflation linked swaps

The group holds o number of inflation linked swaps, with a notisnal vaiue of £1,288.0m. There are three cash flows
associated with these inflation linked swaps:

« six monthly interest receivable linked to SONIA;

= six monthly interest poyable linked to RPY; and

= on RP-linked bullet that is payoble on moturity of the instruments or at certain predetermined dates over the
duration of the swaps.

i addition, @ proportion of the inflation linked swaps alse receives six monthly interest armounts bosed on o fixed rate
(see note 8 for further details).

Interest payments and receipts are accrued in the consalidated statemnent of profit or loss. The RPI buller accumulated
at the batance sheet date has been discounted using an appropriate rate applied to the specitic life of the future
accration paydowns of the infiation inked swaps, this is incorporated into the fair vatue of the darivative. The RPI bullet

accrued to 31 Mareh 2022 was £280.8m (2021 £229.5m) which has been reduced by £83.1m (202t £42.8m) when
discounted to present vaiue.

With higher RPI expectations, and SONIA and applicable discount rates continuing at relatively low levefs, the group's
portiolio of inflation linked swops gave rise to a fair value hability of £2,61.56m and a fair value asset of £129.4m (2021
£2,318.8m liability and £119.1m asset) at the year end date. Included in this amount, £197.8m (2021; £187.0m) reprasents
the discounted value of the RPI bullet accrued to 31 March 2022

The valuation model used by the group to determine the folr volue of the inflation linked swap portfolio as at 31 March
2022 includes a FVA, DVA and Credit Vajuation Adjustment [CVA) to refiect the long-term credit risk of the group's
infiation linked swap portfolio. Al the swops in the portfolio have super-senior status. The FVA, DVA and CVA
adjustments to the valuation represent uncbservable inputs that hove the potentia! to moterially offect the resultant
fair valuation, ond therefere require estimotion technigques to be adopted by management. Monggement uses o third
party expert to odvise on the appropriateness of these assumptions and have preparad sensitivity analysis in order
to evaluote the impact of g regsonably possible range of assumptions on the resultant valuation. The total adjustment

made to the voluation as a result of the assumptions adopted in respect of these key inputs was £456.0m {2021
£5021m).
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20. Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities (continued)
interest rate swaps

The group entered into several multi-currency interest rate swap transactions Involving Fixed USD notes and one AUD
bond, referred to as cross-currency interest rate swaps between 2011 and 2013. As detailed in this note above, the net
impact of the fair value movement on the swaps and associated debt resulted in a net expense of £2.1m (2021: £1.8m
expense) to the consolidated staterment of profit or loss. This impact is split out as follows.

The fair volue of cross-currency interest rate swaps resulted in an expense of £26.6m being recognised in the
consolidated staterment of profit or loss (2021 £37.4m expense). This is offset by the change in fair value of the
ossociated debt resulting in income of £24.5m (2021: £35.6m income). Of the change in fair value of the associated
debt, £24.1Jm income (2021 £37.8m income) relotes to Fixed USD notes and £0.4m income (2021: £2.2m expense)
relates to the AUD bond.

The group holds three fixed to floating interest rate swaps, which mature in 2029 and 2033. The movement in the fair
value of the swaps resulted in an expense of £39.5m recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (2021:
£23.3m expense). There is a change in fair vaiue of the associated bonds of £36.4m income {2021: £20.8m income).
The expense relating to the fair value of the individucl associoted bonds is as follows. £18.7m of income (2021; £8.7m
income) of change in fair value of associated bonds relates to the 3.625% 2029 guaranteed bonds with a fair value of
£2455m (2021 £264.9m) at 31 March 2022. £8.5m increase (2021: £6.5m increase} in fair value of associated bonds
relates to the 4.965% 2033 Class B guaranteed bonds with a fair value of £96.8m {2021: £105.3m) at 31 March 2022. The
remaining £8.3m increase (2021 £4.6m increase) in fair value of associated bonds relates to the 3.54% 2029
guaranteed bond issued during the year with a fair vaiue of £84.1m (2021: £102.4m) at 31 March 2022,

The group holds two floating to fixed interest rate swaps. These have a total nominal value of £45,.0m. The movements
in the fair value of floating to fixed rate swaps resulted in income of £3.9m recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (2021: £1.2m income).

(d) Hedges

The group's policy is to hedge interast rate risk within approved Board policies and guidelines.

Interest rate swaps are used to manage interest rate exposure under a hedging strategy that requires that Yorkshire
Water and its subsidiaries to maintain at all times at least 85% of its total cutstanding debt as inflation linked

obligations or fixed rate obligations either directly or via hedges. At the financial year end the proportion was 108.1%
(2021:104.3%). At the Kelda finance group level, the proportion was 100.9% (2021: 96.3%) at the financial year end.
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20. Finoncial instruments (continued)

(d) Hedges (continuead)
Fair vaiue hedges

Crosg-currancy interest rate swap contracts, exchanging fixed rate interest for floating rate interest on the group's
USD notes, are designated and effective as fair value hedges in respect of interest rates and foreign currency risk. The
group has recoghised an asset of £22.9m (2021 £49.2m) for the mark to market goin in the foir value of the cross-
currency Interest rate swap instruments. The fair value movernent in the year has been recognised in the consofidated
statement of profit or loss. Hedge effectivengss is assessed on an ongoing basis and evaluates whether the hedging
instrument is effective in offsetting chonges in the fair values or cash flows of the hedged item attributable to the
hedged risk, this is done through evaluating the economic refationship between hedged item and instrumient, the
effectiveness of which can be reliably meosured. As, during the yeor and since inception, there was on effective
economic relationship in hedging the fair value expesure to interest rate movements and forgign currency exposure,
the carrying amount of the notes was adjusted in the year for a fair vatue gain of £24.Im (2021 £37.8m gain) which
was included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The accumulated fair value hedge adjustment on the
notes is a liability of £24.0m (202%: £48.1m).

The group has a £33.8m crass-currency interest rate swap contract, exchanging fixed rate interest for floating rate
interest on an AUD bond, which is designated as a fair value hedge with the bond. The hedge was highly effective in
hedging the fair volue exposure to interest rate movemnents in the year. The group hds recognised a liobility of £47m
(2021 £4.0m) for the mark to market loss in fair value of the cross-currency interest rate swap. The fair value
mavement in the year has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. As, during the year and
since inception, the hedge was highly effective in hedging the fair value exposure 1o interest rate movernents and
foreign currency exposure, the carrying amount of the bond was adjusted in the year for o fair value gain of £0.4m
{2021 £2.2m 1oss) which was included in the consolidated staternent of profit or 10ss. The accumulatsd fair valus
hedge adjustment on the bond is a £4.6m asset (2021 £4.2m).

The group has three fixed to floating interest rate swaps with nominal volues of £250m, £80m and £80m. These are
designoted as fair value hedges of fixed rate bonds of the same value. The hedges were highly effective in hedging
the fair value expasure to interest rate movemants. The group has recognised assets of £17.3m (202 £56.8m) for the
rmark to market gain in the fair value of the fixed to floating interest rate swaps. The fair value movement in the year
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit ot loss, As, during the year and since inception, the hedge
was highly effective in hedging the fair volue exposure to interest rote, the carrying omount of the bonds was adjusted
in the year for a fair value gain of £36.4m (2021 £20.8m gain) which was included in the consolidated staterment of
profit ar loss. The accumulated fair value hedge adjustment on the bonds is a liability of £9.1m (2021 £45.6m),

Cash flow hedges

The group holds energy derivatives, which help hedge the group's exposure to energy price risk by exchanging the
average day ahead baseload index price of electricity in a given month for a fixed price. These are designated as
cash fiow hedges and hedge accounting has been applied. The gain of £38.9m (2021 £10.1m gain) on the derivatives
from £6.9rm ossets to £46.9m ossets {202): movement from £3.2m liobiiities to £6.9m ossets) has been recognised in
other comprehensive income (2021: £9.7m recognised in the statement of other comprehensive income and £0.4m
recognised in the statement of profit or loss).
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20. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Hedges (continued)}

Forelgn currency risk management

The group has o number of long-term interest beoring liabilities denominoted in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange
rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters uitilising cross-currency interest rate swaps.

Impact of hedging instruments designated in hedging relationships

The impdct of hedging instrurments designated in hedging relationships as of 31 March 2022 on the group’s consolidated staotement of financiaf position is as follows:

Fair value hedges

Fixed to floating interest rate swaps

Cross-currency interest rate swaps
(usD)

Cross-currency interest rate SWaps
(aun}

Nominal amount
of the hadging
instrument

£m
31 Marech 2022
430.0

LLER]

az.g

Carrying amount of the hedging

instrument

Assets Liabilities

£m £m

31March 2022 31 March 2022
17.3 -

22.9 ~

- (4.7

Line item in the consolidated
stutement of financial position
where the hedging instrument

is reported

31 March2022
Derivative finonciol gssets

Derivative financial assets

Derivative financial liabilities

Fair value changes of the hedging
instrument used as a basis to
calculate hedge effectiveness
Em

31March 2022

(39.5)

(28.3)

(©.7
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20.

{d) Hedges [continuad)

cash Haw hedges

Energy derivatives

Fair value hedges
Fixed to fioating interest rate swops

Cross-curtency INterest rate swaps
(usD)
Cross-currency interest rote swaps
{AuD)

Fingncigkinstruments (continued)

Nominal amount ot the

Line item in the consolidated statermaent of

Carrying amount of the hedging

hadging Instrument instrument
Assots Uabllitles

Mwh Em £m

31 March 2022 31 March 2022 31 March 2022
350,280 48,9 -

Nominal amount
of the hedging
instrument

£m
31 March 2021
430.0

2577

338

Carrying amount of the hedging

instrument,

Assets Liobilities

£Em £m

31 March 2021 3i Marcn 2021
56.8 -

49.2 -

- {4.0)

Line itern in the consolidated
statement of financial position
where the hedging instrument is
reported

31 March 202}

Derivative financial assets

Derivative financial assets

Derivative financiai labilities

financlal position where the hedging

nstrument is repatted

31 March 2022

Derivative financial ossets

Fair value changes of the hedging
instrument used as a basis te
colculote hedge effectivenass

£Em
31 March 20621
()

(39.6}

2.7
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Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

20. Finoncial instrumants (continued)
(d) Hedges (continued}
Nominal armount of the
Carrying amount of the hedging instrurm
hedging instrument ving aging instrument
Assets Liabifities
Mwh £m £m
Cash flow hedges 31 March 2021 31 March 2021 3t March 2021
Energy derivatives 438120 69 -

Line itern in the consolidated staterment of
financial position where the hedging
instrument is reported

31 march 2021

Derivative financiol assets
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20.  Financial instruments (continued}

{d) Heages (continuad)

L i

P of ged fterms

ted In hedging r

P

The impact of hedged itemns assignated in hedging relationshipa as of 31 March 2022, on the groug's consafidated statemaent of financial pesition 15 os follows:

Fair value hedges
nterast rate risk
nedged by fixed

1o floating swaps
Interest rate risk
hedged by cross-
currency interest
rate swaps (USD}
interest rote risk
nedged by cross-
currancy interest
rate swaps (AUD)

Carrying smount of the

Assoty
£m
2022

hedged tem

Labillties
£m
2022

(436.4)

(137.0)

(20.3)

Acscumulated awmount of falr
value hedge odjustments
included in the carrying
amount of the hedged item

Assets
em
2012

4.6

Liabifities
£m
2022

(e1)

(24.0)

Frorn the gecumuloted tins ltem In the Fairvalue
omount of falr valus hedg lidated hanges of the
i pant to vent of hedged item
hedgaed items that ceused  financial position usedasa hasls to
to be ndjusted for hedging where the hadged  calcutate hedge
gaine and (beses it is reported ineflactiveness
Assets tiapilitles
£m £m £m £m
2022 2022 2022 2022
- - Botrowitigs (30.4)
- - Borrowings {24.)
- - Borrowings {0.4)

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

€m
2022
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for the year ended 31 March 2022

20. Financial instruments {continued)

{d) Hedges (continued)

Fair value hedges
Interest rate risk on
fixed to fioating
swaps
Interest rate risk on
cross-currency
interest rate swaps
{usD)
Interest rate risk on
Cross-currency
interest rate swaps
{auD)

Em
2021

Carrying amount of the
hedged item

£Em
202!
(472.5)

(305.4)

{207

Accumulated amount of

tair value hedge

adjustments included in

the carrying amount of
the hedged item

£m £€m
202! 2031
- {45.6)

- (481)
42 -

From the accumulated omount of
fair value hedge adjustments:
part related to hedged items that
ceased to be adjusted for
hedging gains ond losses

2021 2021

Line item in the
consolidated
statement of

financial position
where the
hedged item is
reported

£m

2021

Borrowings

Borrowings

Borrowings

Fair value
changes of the
hedged item
used as a basis to
calculate hedge
ineffectiveness

£m
2021
{208)

(37.8)

22

Cash flow
hedge
reserve

£m
2021
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Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

20. financialinstruments (continued)
e) offsetting financial assets and liabilities

No financial assets have been offset against financial liabilities. Balances which are subject to master netting
agreements or similar are as follows:

Amounts avaiiable to be offset (but not offset on the consolidated statement of
financial position)

Gross and net Master netting  Financial collateral Net balance
amounts reported agreements
on the consolidated
statement ot

financial position

2022 2022 2022 2022
£m £m £m £m
Derivative financial 216.5 (151.4) - 65.1
assets
Derivative financial (2,630.9) 151.4 - (2,479.5)
liabilities
Armounts available to be oftset (but not otfset on the consolidated statement of
financial position)
Gross and net Master netting  Financial collateral Net balance
amaounts reported agreements
on the consolidated
statement of
financial position
2021 202 plepdl 2021
£m £fm £Em £m
Derivative financial 232.0 {179.9) (81) 44.0
assets
Derivative financial {2,343.9) 179.9 - (2164.0)
liabkilities



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

20. Financial instruments (continued)

f) Deferred ‘day one’ (losses)/gains

Several transactions have been completed to restructure inflation linked swaps in prior years. These have resulted
in @ ‘day one’ loss/gain adjustments, which are deferred and amortised over the remaining life of the swaps. The
following table details the moverments and amounts of deferred ‘'day one’ gains (losses) included in the fair value
of the swaps held at the balance sheet date:

Balance at 1 April

Deferred ‘day one’ losses recognised during the year
Deferred ‘day one’ amounts realised during the year

Balance at 21 March

2]. Additional cash flow information

Analysis of movement in net debt from continuing operations

Cash and cash
equivalents

Debt due within cne
year

Finance leases due
within one year

Debt due after one
year

Finance leases due
after one year

Net debt relating to
continuing activities

2022 2021

£m £m

(88.2) (83.7)

- (37.4)

12.1 2.9

{76.1) {88.2)
At At At
31 March Non-cash Cash 31March  Non-cash Cash 31 March
2020 movements movements 2021 movements movements 2022
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
323.2 - (87.2) 236.0 - (184.0) 52.0
(370.8) (268.2) 40.0 (599.0) (2,315.0) 4931  (2,420.9)
(370.8) (268.2) 40.0 (599.0) (2,315.0) 493.1 (2.420.9)
(7.041.4) 173.3 5.9 (6,862.2) 2,125.2 {412.0) (5.149.0)
(7.041.4) 173.3 5.9 (6.862.2) 2,125.2 (a12.0) (5,149.0)
(7,089.0) (94.9) (41.3) (7,225.2) (189.8) (102.9) (7.517.9)

Net debt does not include financlal liabilities which are not considered to be part of the group’s borrowings.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

21. Additional cash flow information {continued]

Cash used as noted In the group {including discontinued operations) cash flow statement can be derived as
follows:

2022 2021
£m £m
Total loss for the year (563.5) (149.2)
Tax charge/{credit) 33.8 (7.5)
Loss before taxation (529.7) (156.7)
Share of associates’ and joint ventures’ profit after tax {1.5) -
Finance income before fair value maovements (5.8) {a8)
Finance costs before fair value movements 421.2 318.6
Net fair vglue mavements (non-cash) on finance income and costs 369.6 1016
Depreciation 310.7 3027
Amortisation of capitalised bid costs and software 28.4 26.0
Profit on disposal of operations (.7 -
Profit on disposal of property, plant, and equipment (5.2) (2.3)
Amortisation of capitol grants {12.3) (n.s)
increqgse in inventories (2.0) (m
Decrease/{increase) in trade and other receivables 9.2 (15.4)
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (15.5) 38.2
Pension contributions in excess of operating costs (8. my
Movements in provisions 1.4 0.5
Other movements 0.1 (2.0)
Capital contributions 32.0 35.9
Cash generated from operating activities 601.0 813.5
22, Commitments

2022 2021
£m Em

Capital and infrastructure renewals expenditure commitments for contracts
placed at 31 March were: 492.9 378.2

The long-term investment programme for the group, which identified substanticd future copital expenditure
caormmmitrments in the period from 2020 to 2025, was agreed as part of the AMP? Price Review process. £24.3m In
2022 {2021: £6.6m) of the above capital commitments relate to intangibles (software}.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

23. Related parties

Group companies have extended finance to several associates and joint ventures on a proportionate basis with
other principal stakeholders.
Loans to related Loans to related

parties parties
2022 2021
£m £m

Joint ventures
whinmoor Limited 0.8 0.3
Templegate Developments Limited 1.0 0.9
Sir Robert Ogden Evans Property Partnership Limited 0.8 0.8
2.8 2.0

Total interest received on loans to associated undertakings and joint ventures was £nil (2021: £nil). All cutstanding
balances are unsecured, Sales and purchases between related parties are made at normat market prices. During
the year ended 31 March 2022 the group made provisions totailing £100 for doubtful debts relating to amounts
owed by related parties (2021: £500) ond released provisions totalling £501,000 {2021; £nii). During the year
dividends received from related parties totalled £nil (2021: £nil).

There were no other material transactions between the group and its associated undertokings and joint ventures
during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel (including directors):

2022 2021
£m £m
Short-term benefits 2.6 3.1
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Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

for the year ended 3! March 2022

24. Subsidiary cempanies

The company, as on individuol entity, has the following investments in subsidiaries, associated and jointly
controlled entities whose registered office, unless otherwise stated, is Western Housg, Halifax Road, Bradford, west

Yorkshire BDS 25Z:

Water services
Yorkshire Water Services Limited
Three Sixty Water Services Limited

Other activities

Keyland Developmaents Limited

Kelda Energy Services {(Old whittington)
Limited

Kelda Water Services Limited

Three Sixty Water Limited

Three Sixty Water Services {Yorkshire) Limited
Kelda Water Services {Projects) Limited
Kelda Transport Management Limited
safe-Move Limited

Loop Customer Management Limited
Southern Pennines Rural Regeneration
Company Limited'

Yorkshire Water Estates Limited
Yorkshire Water Limited

Kelda Limited

Keldd Group Pensicn Trustees Limited
Ridings Insurance Company Limited
Glandwr Cyfyngedig

Saltaire Water Limited

Templegate Developments Limited ¥
Springswood Limited? ¥

Tingley Limited? ¥

Whinmoor Limited? ¥

White Laith Developments Limited?+
Rampart Developments Limited?#

The Sir Robert Qgden Partnership Limited?*
The Sir Robert Ogden-Evans Property
Partnership Limited?#

Country of
incorporation

England & Wales
England & Wales

Country of
incorporation
England & Wales

England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englond & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales

Engiand & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
england & Wales
England & Wales

isle of Man
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
England & Wales
Englond & Wales
England & Wales
England & Woles

England & Wales

Country
of tax
residence

UK
UK

Country
of tax
residence
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
ux
V14
ux

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
Isle of Man
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UKk

UK

Class of Proportion of
shares in class of share
issue held
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Proportion of
Class of classof share
shareinissue held
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
ordinary 100%
Crdinary 100%
ordinary 00%
Limited by
guarantee 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Crdingry 100%
Crdinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 100%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 50%
Ordinary 375%
Ordinary 25%
Ordinary 25%
Ordinary 25%
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Notes to the consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2027

24. Subsidiary companies (continued)

Country Class of Proportion of
Country of of tax sharesin class of share
incorporation residence Issue held

Holding and finance companies
Kelda Group Limited England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%
Yorkshire Water Services Holdings Limited England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%
Kelda Non-Reg Holdco Limited England & Wales UK Qrdinary 100%
Yorkshire Water Services Finance Limited England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%
Yorkshire Water Finance Plc England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%
Kelda Finance (No.) Limited England & Wales UK ordinary 100%
Kelda Finance {No0.2) Limited England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%
Kelda Finance (No.3) Plc England & Wales UK Ordinary 100%

Registered office address:

' Canal & Visitors’ Centre, Butler's Wharfe, New Road, Hebden Bridge HX7 8AF

2 Milishaw Ring Road, Beeston, Leeds, West Yorkshire LSI BEG

=¥ Joint Venture

* associate — All ossociates are property development and investment companies.

25. ultimate controiling party

The company's immediate and ultimate parent company is Kelda Holdings Limited, a company registered in
Jersey and resident for tax in the UK. In the opinion of the directors there is no ultimate controlling party.

Kelda Holdings Limited is the only other company, and largest company, to consolidate the company’s Financial
Statements and copies of the group Financial Statements may be obtained from the Company Secretary, Keida
Eurobond Co Limited, Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford BD6 257.

26. Centingentliabilities

Five claims have been issued at various dates between December 2018 and March 2021 against Yorkshire Water by
personal search companies (PSCs). The claims relate to historical search fees that PSCs have paid to Yorkshire
Water for water and drainage reports cbtained when buying ¢ house. The PSCs state that the historical fees should
not have been paid to Yorkshire Wwater as the information should have been provided for no fee under the
Environmental Information Regulations 2004. Yorkshire Water has adopted the same stance as the rest of the
sector in relation to this claim in disagreeing with the interpretation taken on behalf of the PSCs. Yorkshire Water
denies liability in relation to the claims and thus considers any outflow of economic benefit in relation to these
claims is not probable. Accordingly, no provision has been recognised in this regard (2021: no provision recognised).

Yorkshire Water is subject to ongoing information requests from Ofwat and the EA which were received on 18
Novermber 2021 by the EA and subsequently on 8 March 2022 from Ofwat. The subject of these investigations has
impacted all water and sewerage companies in England and Wales. The outcome of these enquiries and any

potential consequences is not known at this time.

27. Posthalance sheet events

Kelda Finance (No.2) Limited raised £85.0m new borrowings on 7 April 2022. Proceeds were used to refinance an
existing loan, within the same entity, that was otherwise due for repayment in December 2022.
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Company balance sheet
for the year ended 31 March 2022

2022 2021
Notes Em £m
Fixed assets
Investments 3 31722 31722
Debtors 4 144.9 1419
3,317 3,314
Current assets
Debtors 4 3.9 12.0
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 5 (3.026.6) (1,2412)
Net current liabilities (3,022.7) (1,229.2)
Total assets less current liabilities 294.4 2,084.9
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 6 - {1.668.5)
Net assets 294.4 416.4
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital g 750.0 75CQ.0
Profit and loss account (455.6) (333.8)
Total shareholders’' funds 294.4 416.4

The loss generated by the parent company for the year ended 31 March 2022 was £122.0m {2021 £105.0m loss).
Advantage has been taken of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act not to present a
profit and loss account for the company alone.

The Financial Statements on pages 147 to 152 were approved by a duly authorised committee of the Board of
directors on 15 July 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

N Hn”

Nicala Shaw

Chief Executive Officer

Kelda Eurabond Co Limited
Registered in England ne. 06433768
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Company statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2022

Total

Profit and loss shareholders’

Ordinary shares account funds

£m £m £m

At 1 April 2020 750.0 (228.8) 521.4
Loss for the year - (105.0) (105.0)
At1 April 2021 750.0 (3338) 416.4
Loss for the year - (122.0) (122.0)
At31March 2022 750.0 (455.6) 294.4
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the company financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022

1. Company accounting policies
Basis of accounting

The campany’s Financial Statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention
in compliance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework {FRS 101} and, except where
otherwise stated in the notes to the Financial Statements, with the Companies Act 2006,

in preparing these Financial Statements, the company applies the recognition, measurement, and disclosure
requirements of iInternational Financial Reporting Stahdards. but mokes amendments where necessary in order to
comply with Companies Act 2006 ond has set out below where odvontage of the FRS 101 disclosure exemptions
has been taken.

The consolidated Financial Statements of the group headed by the company have been prapared in accordance
with Internationol Financial Reporting Standards and are oveailable to the public and may be obtained from
waeastern House, Halifax Road, Bradford, West Yorkshire, BDE 25Z.

in these Financial Statements, the company has applied the exemptions available under FRS 101 in respect of the
following disclosures:

» 0 Cash Fiow Statement and related notes;

« comparative period reconcifiation for share capital;

« disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

« the impact of certain requirements of IAS 1, 1AS 36, IFRS 7 and IFR3 13;

+ the sffects of new but not yet effective IFRSs; and

= disclosures in respect of the compensation of Key Manogement Personnel.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stoted, been applied consistently to all periods
presanted in these Financial Statements.

The accounting policies shown below have been applied consistently throughout the current and prior year.

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the statement of profit
ar loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income or
expense, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income or expense.

Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable of receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tox rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences between the carrying cmounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are
not provided for: the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other
than in o business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiories to the extent that they will
probabily not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is bused on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tox rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the baiance sheet date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits wiil be available
against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 Murch 2022

1. Company accounting pelicies (continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost and reviewed for impairment if there are indications that the carrying
value may not be recoverable.

Financialinstruments
Debtors

Intercompany canrl other dobtors are recognised at transaction price. Subsequent to initial recognition they are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Creditors
Creditors are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal value.
Interest begring loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised ot fair value less directly attributabile transaction costs. After initial
recognition, interest-bearing foans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amoertised cost using the
effective interest method. Gains and losses arising on repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities
are recognised respectively in investment income and finance costs.

Dividends receivabie

Dividends receivable are recognised when the shareholders' right to receive the revenue is estabiished.

Redemption of preference shares

Instances of redemption of preference shares are recognised on approval from shareholders.,
Interest receivable

Interest receivable is recognised as the interest accrues using the effective interest method.
Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Audit exemption - Parent company guarontee

For the year ended 31 March 2022 the following subsidiaries of the company were entitled to exemption from audit
under s479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies.,

Subsidiary Name Companies House Registration Number
Three Sixty Water (Yorkshire) Limited 09921036

Three Sixty Water Services Limited 05612103

Three Sixty Water Limited 099819580

Soltaire Water Limited 06433802

Kelda Transpart Management Limited 10487343

Kelda Non-reg Holdco Limited 06433788

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of Financiai Statements under FRS 101 requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. [t
dlso requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the company’s accounting policies.
There were no such areas of judgement or estimation uncertainty deemed significant in these Financial
Statements.

2. loss attributable to the parent company

The result of the parent company was d loss of £122.0m (2021: £105.0m loss). Advantage has been taken of the
exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present a profit or loss account for the
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the company financial statements(continued)
for the year ended 3! March 2022

2. Lloss attributable to the parent company (continued)

company alone. The parent company consolidated statement of profit or loss was approved by o duly authorised
committee of the Board of directors on 156 July 2022,

3. Investments

£m
As at 1 April 2021 and 31 March 2022 3,172.2

s

Alist of the subsidiaries of the company can be found in note 24 to the consolidatad accounts, The directors believe
that the corrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

4. Debtors
2022 2021
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by parent undertaking 0.4 03
Amounts owed by group undertakings 35 n7
3.9 12.0
Amounts falling due after more than one year:
Amounts owed by parent company 144.3 141.9

Amounts falling due within one year are unsecured, interest frae, hove no controctual repayment date and ore
repayable on demand.

Amounts due after more than one year are unsecured and have no contractual repayment date. Although the
loans are repayable on demand, there is no expectatian that such a demand will be made in the financial year
ending 31 March 2023. interest on the amounts due was charged at six month LBOR plus 2% margin untit 20 February
2022, and thereafter at an economicaily equivalent SONIA based rate plus 2% margin.

5. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

2022 2021
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one yeor:
Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1.788.5 -
Amounts owed to group undertakings 1,223.2 V2289
Other creditors 14.9 123
3,026.6 12412

Amolints owed to group undertakings are unsecured and repayable on demand. Intgrest charged on the various
tranches transitioned frorm LIBOR plus margins to economically equivalent SONIA based rates plus margins during
the year ending 31 March 2022. The margins applied te the tranches are between 2% and 4.25%.



Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Notes to the company financial statements (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2022

6. Creditors: amounts falling due ofterone year

2022 2021
£m £m

Amounts falling due after one year:
Interest-bedring loans and borrowings - 16685

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings bear interest at 7% obove six month LIBOR.

7. Otherinformation

The company had no employees throughout the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: none).

Details of directors’ emoluments are set out in the directors’ remuneration report of the group. No elements related
specifically to their work in the company.

Disclosure notes relating to share capital, financial instruments and auditor remuneration are included within the
Financial Statemaents of the group.

8. cCalled up share capital

Crdinary shares 1p Ordinary shares £1
Number ip shares Number £1shares
£ £
Issued and fully paid
As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2022 1 0.01 750,000,000 750,000,000

9. Ultimate controlling party

The company's immediate and ultimate parent company is Kelda Holdings Limited, o company registered in
Jersey and resident for tax in the UK. In the opinion of the directors there is no ultimate controlling party.

Kelda Holdings Limited is the only other company, and the largest company, to consolidate the company’s
Financial Statements and copies of the group’s Financial Statements may be obtained from the Company
Secretary, Keldd Eurobond Co Limited, Western House, Halifax Road, Bradford, West Yorkshire, BD6 25Z. The smallest
company to consolidate the company’s Financial Staterments is Kelda Eurobond Co Limited as included earlier in
this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF KELDA EUROBOND CO
LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

1. Opinion

in our opinion:

e the financial statements of Kelda Eurobong Co Limited {the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’’
give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31 March 2022 and
of the group’s loss for the year then ended;

¢ the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom adopted
international accounting standards and International Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs) as issued by the
international Accounting Standards Board {IASB);

e the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 “Reduced Disciosure
Framework”; and

s have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:
* the consolidated statement of profit or loss;
» the consalidated statement of comprehensive income and expense;
* the consclidated and parent company statement of financial position;
s the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
e the consclidated statement of cash flows;
+ the related notes 1 to 27 of the group accounts; and
e the related notes 1 to 9 of the parent company accounts.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group financial statements is
applicable law, United Kingdom adopted international accounting standards and IFRSs as issued by the IASB. The
financial reporting framawork that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company financial statements is
applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

2. Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} {ISAs (UK}] and applicabie law.
Our respensibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, inciuding the Financial Reporting Council’s {the ‘FRC's")
Ethical Standard as applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requiremeants.

We believe that the audit evidence we have cbtained is sufficient and apprepriate to provide a basis for our opinicn.

3. Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:
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« Goodwill impairment;

+ Valuation of household bad debt provisioning;
e Valuation of infrastructure assets; and

« Valuation of derivatives.

within this report, key audit matters are identified as follows:

@ Similar level of risk

Materiality The materiality that we used for the group financial statements was £20.8m which
was determined on the basis of 3.5% of Adjusted earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (“Adjusted EBITDA”) This metric is reconciled within
the Alternative Performance Measures outlined by the group.

Scoping Qur audit scoping covered 99% to 100% of the group’s net operating assets, profit
hefore tax and Adjusted EBITDA.

Significant changes in  We identified revenue recognition from household customers where payment is

our approach not considered probable as a key audit matter in the prior year. We do not consider
this to be a key audit matter in the current year because the adjustment made by
management is not materially different to previous years, and this is not an area in
which considerable audit effort has been expended.

There have been no other significant changes in our audit approach in the year.

4. Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

QOur evaluation of the directors’ assessment of the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting included:

* understanding financing facilities including compliance with interest cover ratio covenants and obtaining
confirmation of undrawn facilities;

s understanding how the going concern model mirrors the business mode! and the forecasts used for
impairment testing;

e testing the accuracy of the model and assessing the historical accuracy of forecasts prepared by management;
challenging the key assumptions used in the forecasts, such as revenue levels and capital expenditure,
including giving consideration to the current and forecast economic environment with high inflation and low
levels of unemployment in the UK;

e assessing the maturity profile of the company’s debt and the available liguidity for the going concern period;

¢ performing sensitivity analysis based on contradictory evidence, including latest third party economic
forecasts and 2023 results to date; and

e assessing the appropriateness of the going concern disclosures made in the financial statements.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or callectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company’s ability to
continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue.

Cur responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the
relevant sections of this report.
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5. Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in aur audit of the

financial statements of the current period and inciude the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement

(whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the

overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the engagement team.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
5.1. Goodwill Impairment @

Key audit matter
description

The group recognises £1.05bn of goodwill (2021 £1.05bn) in relation ta the
nrevious acquisition of the group by the parent company. The goodwill is entirely
attributed to one cash generating unit (CGUj, being Yorkshire Water Services (YWS},
the principal operating company, and management calculates a fair vaiue for YWS
as a whole which it then attributes in part to the tangible and intangible assets of
YWS, leaving the residual value in use amount to support the carrying value of
goodwill.

Management’s fair value model contains several assumptions. Our key audit matter
in relation to the impairment review is focussed on the assumption to which the
model is most sensitive, namely the regulatory WACC rate used in determining the
discount rate applicable to for the future cash flows up to a period of 25 years. The
regulatory WACC impacts the model in two ways as it represents both an input to
the discount rate and an element of the regulatory model used by Ofwat to
determine allowed revenue. The mode! is highly sensitive to changes in the
regulatory WACC value used.

The assumptions used in the impairment review and the valuation of goodwill are
disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements. Further information around the
impairment review and sensitivities in relation to impairment are disclosed in Note
10 to the financial statemenis.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

The precedures we performed were as follows:

®  gbtained an understanding of the relevant controls surrounding the
goodwill impairment review prepared by management;

e audited the fair value calculation prepared by management for
mathematical acturacy, assessed the cash flows for completeness and
tested the completeness and appropriateness of cash flow assumptions;

e challenged the assumptions used in the fair value calculation, including the
WACC used, the infrastructure uplift multiple and the future cash flows
assumptions by benchmarking to available economic data;

s engaged our internal valuation specialists to challenge key assumptions
used in the impairment review including the WACC rate, the infrastructure
assets uplift and consideration of recent transactions in the market;

*  benchmarked the implied RCV multiple used in management’s fair value
sense check calculation to other businesses in the industry or any recent
market transactions;

*«  performed sensitivity analysis over the calculation ta cansider the potential
impact of changes in the assumptions, and assessed management’s
sensitivities applied to the model;

+ evaluated potential contradictory evidence that might suggest a different
pasition to that taken by management is more appropriate, including
consideration of alternative mode’s, discount rate used, WACC rates and
valuation of the business; and
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»  assessed the disclosures included in the accounts to assess whether they
appropriately disclose the rationale for the impairment, the valuation
methodology applied and the sensitivity of changes in the assumptions
made.

Key observations

We considered management’s assumptions in refation to the valuation of the
impairment to be reasonable. We concur with the disclosures made by
management around the impairment valuation and the sensitivity of the
calcuiation.

5.2. Valuation of househnld bad debt provisioning @

Key audit matter
description

A proportion of the group’s household customers do not or cannot pay their bills,
which resuits in the need for provisions to be made for non-payment of the
customer balance. Management make estimates regarding future cash collection
when calculating the bad debt provision. Management’s approach to calculating
the provision involves assessing their experience of subsequent cash collection of
historical debtars, as well as judging how future cash collection may differ from that
experienced historically, as a result of factors such as changes in the wider
economic environment.

In the current year, the increased rate of inflation in the UK is putting pressure an
customers’ ability to pay, leading to greater judgement in assessing whether future
cash collection will differ te historical experience.

The value of the provision for trade receivables at 31 March 2022 is £36.8m {2021:
£27.5m).

This is included as an area of key estimation uncertainty in note 2 to the financial
statements.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

The procedures we performed were as foliows:

* obtained an understanding of the relevant controls established by management
to value household bad debt provisioning. We also tested the effectiveness of
certain controls around the management review of the year end househoid bad
debt provision;

¢ recalculated the baseline bad debt provision based on the year end debtors
balance and management’s policy;

e evaluated the mechanical models used to calculate adjustments to the baseline
bad debt provision and reperformed the model using independent data analytic
techniques;

e challenged management’s estimates in calculating the household bad debt
provision by comparing provisioning percentages to historical cash collection;

» performed an independent review of current economic data, including in
relation ta both inflation and earnings/disposable income to evaluate the
potential impacts of the ongoing cost of living crisis on a custamers’ ability to
pay their bills;

+ performed sensitivity analysis on the provision to assess the impact of changes
in the cash collection rates and provisioning percentages;

+ evaluated potential contradictory evidence, such as historical cash collection, to
assess management’s conclusion regarding the provision; and

= performead benchmarking against other water companies with a similar
provisioning approach.

Key observations

We consider the overall bad debt provision to be reasonable and compliant with
accounting standards.
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5.3, Valuation of infrastructure assets @

Key audit matter
description

At each year end, management engage a third party to determine an enterprise
value for the company. After review and consideration, management uses this
valuation to determine the fair value of infrastructure assets of the company. There
is a significant level of judgement in determining the fair value of these assets. The
fair value of infrastructure assets at the year end was £5,678.9m (2021:
£4,245.5m).

This is included as an area of key estimation uncertainty in note 2 to the financial
statements. The value of the infrastructure assets, and the uplift of £901.8m
recognised on these assets is disclosed in note 11 to the financial statements.

How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

The procedures performed were as foilows;

»  obtained an understanding of relevant controls relating to the asset
revaluation process;

» understood the scope and the key judgements made by the third party
valuer. We also evaluated their competence, capabilities and objectivity;

*  engaged internal valuation specialists to challenge the third party valuation
through benchmarking the valuation against recent market transactions;

+  audited the value in use calculation prepared by management for
mathematical accuracy, assessed the cash flows far completeness and
tested the completeness and appropriateness of cash flow assumptions;

+  held discussions with management to understand the bridge between the
third party’s enterprise vaiuation and the uplift to be applied to the
infrastructure assets, and re-performed management’s calculation;

+  evaluated potential contradictory evidence surrounding the enterprise
valuation, such as forecast economic indicators and market transaction
valuations; and

» avaluated that the uplift required has been accurately recorded in the
accounts.

Key observations

We cansider that the assumptions inherent in the fair value caleulation, and the
valuation methodology applied, are appropriate, and that the fair value of the
infrastructure assets recognised is appropriate.

5.4. Valuation of derivatives@

Key audit matter
description

IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” reguires afl decivatives to be accounted for in the
balance sheet at fair value with movements recognised in profit or loss unless
designated in a hedge relationship. Where possible, management has elected to
apply hedge accounting. We identified a key audit matter in relation to the
valuation of derivatives, including the application of credit, debit and funding
valuation adjustments, as well as in relation to the designation, documentation and
testing the effectiveness of hedge relationships.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments at 31 March 2022 totalted
£216.5m of assets and £2,630.9m of liabilities {2021; £232.0m of assets and
£2,343.9m of liabilities) and the fair value charges recognised in the income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2022 totalled £369.6m (2021: £101.6m).
The valuation of derivatives is included as an area of key estimation uncertainty in
note 2 to the financial statements. The movement in fair value of derivatives in the
year is disclosed in note 20 and the fair value held at year end is disclosed in note
20 to the financial statements.
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How the scope of our
audit responded to the
key audit matter

The procedures we performed were as follows:

obtained an understanding of relevant controls around the valuation
techniques used in determining the fair value of derivatives;

understood the nature and number of derivatives heid at bath the year end
and during the year;

involved internal valuation specialists to perform independent valuations of
derivatives at the balance sheet date, including the calculation of credit and
funding risk adjustments on both derivative assets and liabilities;

tested the accounting for all derivative positions, hoth external to the
group and the intercompany arrangements, to assess whether they are in
accordance with IFRS; and

inspected the disclosures made for the year end derivatives, to assess
whether they are in line with IFRS 9.

Key observations

We consider that the fair values recognised and disclosures made in respect of the
derivatives recorded in the financial statements are appropriate.

6. Our application of materiality

6.1. Materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the
economic decisions of a reasonably knowiedgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both
in planning the scope of cur audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Rased on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Parent company financial statements
Materiality £20.8m (2021: £20.0m) £6.0m (2021: £8.0m)
Basis f°_" _ 3.5% of Adjusted earnings before interest, tax, Materiality represents 3.0% of net assets (2021
deml‘m"‘“ﬂg depreciation, and amortisation {“Adjusted 1.8% of net assets)
materiality EBITDA”). (2021: 3.3% of Adjusted EBITDA}

This metric is reconciled within the Alternative
Performance Measures outlined by the group.

Rationale for the Adjusted EBITDA has been used in order to The parent company does not trade cr exist for
benchmark focus on the group’s underlying trading profit generating purposes, so materiality has
applied performance consistent with the group’s been determined using net assets.

internal and external reporting. Adjusted
EBITDA excludes expenses deemed exceptional.

Adusied EBITDA
£601.0m

ad;usted EBITDA

w Groun matenaliy

 — OV AETONY
: £20.8m

Component
matenality
Maximum £18.8m

N —— Audit Committee
- reportmg threshold
£1.0m
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6.2. Performance materiality

We set performance materiality at a fevel lower than materiality to reduce the prabability that, in aggregate,
uncorrected and undefected misstatements exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

Group financial staterments Parent company financial statements
Performance 70% {2021 70%) of group materiality 70% (2021: 70%) of parent company materiality
materiafity
Basis and in determining performance materiafity, we considered the following factors:
rationaie for +  our risk assessment, including our assessment of the company’s overali control
determining environment and that we consider it appropriate to rely on controls over the
performance baseline household bad debt provision and the General T controfs {*GITCs”) within
materiality the YorBill, YorCash and SAP systems;

*  our consideration of the impact of hybrid working on the cantro! enviranment; and
*  our past experience of the audit, which has indicated a low number of corrected and
uncorrected misstatements identified in prior periods.

6.3. Error reporting threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee alt audit differences in excess of £1.0m
{2021: £1.0m}, as well as differences below that thresheld that, in our view, warranted reperting on qualitative
graunds. We also report to the Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overal)
presentation of the financial statements.

7. An overview of the scope of our audit

7.1. Identification and scoping of components

Our audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of the group and its environment, inciuding key controls
surrounding the financial reporting cycle and identified key audit matters, and assessing the risks of material
misstatement to the group.

Audit work to respond to the risks of material misstatement was performed directly by the group audit engagement
team and resulted in 99% to 100% of the group’s net operating assets, profit before tax and Adjusted EBITDA being
subject to audit testing {2021: 99% to 100%,).

1% 1% 0%
Profit
Revenue before tax Net assets
99% 99% 100%
Full audit scope Full aums scape Full autilsoe
Review at group level .- Review at group leve! Review al grown eve!

7.2. Our consideration of the control environment

Qur planned {T controls are in line with previous years given the maturity of the SAP system. We have considered the
key IT systems that were relevant to the audit to be the SAP system, which is the core [T system used for recording
the financial transactions of the ertity and the “YORBIl” and “YORCash” systems, which are used far billing and cash
collection.

We have placed reliance on all three of these IT systems through testing the General IT controls (“GITCS”) in place.
We involved our [T specialists to assess the relevant GITCs, performing sampie and watkthrough testing of the
controls. We have confirmed that the relevant controls have operated effectively throughout the audit period, and
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where deficiencies have been noted, appropriate mitigations have been identified. Mitigation testing has been
performed and concluded effectively with regard to any findings for the SAP, YORBIll and YORCash systems. This
included verificatian that inappropriale actvity has not been conductad on these systems and the risk of adverse
effects on financial information has been addressed.
We planned to take controls reliance over the valuation and completeness of the baseline household bad debt
provision. We tested these controls by understanding the relevant controls in place for each business process and
testing the effectiveness of controls during the year.
As a result of the above procedures, we have placed reliance on the controls around the valuation and completeness
of the baseline household bad debt provision. We have not piaced reliance on the controls over any manual
adjustments to the baseline household bad debt provision which are outside the scape of the baseline modelling
given the one-off nature of such adjustments.

7.3. Our consideration of ciimate-related risks

In planaing our audit, we have considered the potential impact of climate change on the group’s business and its
financial statements. We have held discussions with the group’s sustainability and finance team to understand the
process of identifying climate-related risks, the determination of mitigating actions and the impact on the financial
statements. Whilst management have acknowledged the risks posed by climate change, they have assessed that there
is no quantitively material impact arising from climate change on the judgements and estimates made in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The group has committed to being net zero by 2030 with a developed strategy in how this is to be achieved.
Management has considered transition and physicai risks when factoring in climate change as part of their risk
assessment process when considering the principal risks and uncertainties facing the cornpany. This is set out in the
strategic report on page 29 and the principal risks on page 30. Management have cancluded that the key risks of
climate change for the business arise from drought, flooding and transitioning the business to net zero.

We performed our own qualitative risk assessment of the potential impact of climate change on the company’s
account balances and classes of transactions and did not identify any additional reasanabiy possible risks of material
misstatement as a result of climate change. We also deemed that climate-related risks have no significant impact on
our key audit matters. Our procedures were performed in line with industry guidance on climate change and
sustainabiiity and included reading disclosures included in the Strategic Report to consider whether they are
materially consistent with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained in the audit.

8. Other information
The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual
report.
Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,
Our responsibifity is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or cur knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
if we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine
whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

9. Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frem materiat
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directers either intend to liguidate the group or the parent company
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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10. Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonabfe assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accardance with
1ISAs [UK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial staterments.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www fre org.uk/auditorscesponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report,
11. Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including
fraud
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibifities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.
111 Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities
In identifying and assassing risks of material misstatement in respect of irregufarities, including fraud and non-
comphance with laws and regulations, we cansidered the following:
= the nature of the industry and secter, control environment and business performance including the design of
the group’s remuneration policies, key drivers for directors’ remuneration, bonus tevels and performance
targets;
s the group’s own assessment of the risks thatirregularities may occur either as a result of fraud or error;
+ resyits of our enquiries of management, internal audit, and the Audit Committee about their own
identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities;
s any matters we identified having obtained and reviewed the group’s documentation of their policies and
pracedures relating to:
o identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and regulations and whether they were aware of any
instances of non-compliance;
o detecting and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected
or aileged fraud,
o the internal controls established to mitigate risks of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regutations;
s the matters discussed among the audit engagement team and relevant internal specialists, including tax,
valuations, iT, financial instruments and industry specialists regarding how and where fraud might occur in the
financial statements and any potential indicators of fraud.

As a result of these procedures, we considered the apportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation
for fraud and identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas:

« valuation of househoid bad debt provisioning;

* revenue recognition from customers where payment is not deemed probable; and

= classification of labour and overhead and repair and maintenance costs as property, plant and equipment.

n common with all audits under 15As (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk
of management override.

We also obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatery framework that the group operates in, focusing on
provisions of those faws and regulations that had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, The key laws and regulations we considered in this context included the UK
Companies Act and tax legislation.

In addition, we considered provisions of ather laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the financial
statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group’s ability to operate or 10 avoid a material
penalty, These fncluded the licence conditions imposed by The Water Services Regulation Autherity {Dfwat).
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11.2. Audit response to risks identified
As a result of performing the above, we identified the valuation of household bad debt provisioning as a key audit
matter refated 1o the potential risk of fraud. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matter in mere
detail and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to that key audit matter.
In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance
with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial
statements;

s enqguiring of management, the Audit Committee and legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation
and claims;

« performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks
af material misstatement due to fraud;

¢ reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and
reviewing correspondence with HMRC, Ofwat and other regulatory authorities;

s in addressing the risk of fraud through classification of labour and averhead and repairs and maintenance
costs as property plant and equipment, reviewed and assessed management’s capitalisation policy,
understood judgements made by management in relation to the allocation of overheads to capital projects
and substantivaly tested a sample of capitalised labour costs and repairs and maintenance costs to evaluate
whether they had been appropriately classified;

* in addressing the risk of fraud through revenue recognition from customers where payment is not deemed
probable, reviewed and assessed management’s methodology for determining the adjustment, performed
sensitivity analysis on the assumptions made by management and substantively tested the inputs into the
adjustment, to assess whether management’s policy was appropriately applied and that only those customers
who met the relevant criteria had been included in the revenue adjustment; and

e inaddressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, testing the appropriateness of
journal entries and other adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting
estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluating the business rationale of any significant
transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

We also communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to ail engagement team
members, including internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws
and regulations throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» theinformation given in the strategic report and the directors’ repart for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

» the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and their environment
obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the
directors’ report.

13. Matters on which we are required to report by exception

13.1. Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or
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* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adeguate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or

s the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
13.2. Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required te report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’
remuneration have not been made.,

We have nothing to report in respect of this matter.

14. Use of our report
This report is made salely to the campany’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are reguired to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company's members as a body, for aur audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

< E%de»«d»v\- :
\__‘ o

Jane Boardman, FCA (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Delaitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Leeds, United Kingdom

15 iuly 2622
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Kelda Eurobond Co Limited

Glossary

AGM
AMP

APR
ARFS
BAME
CCw
CEO
CMA
CMEX
CO2e
CPi
CRI
DEFRA
DMEX
DWMP
DMF
EA
EBITDA
EPA
ESG
EU

FG
GHG
H&S
HSSE
ICR
RC
loT
KPI

Kt
LTIR
MIEX
NGO
ODt

PC

PR
RCF
RCvV
RPI
SDGs
SFF
UN
WACC
WINEP
WRMP
WWTwW
YWLT

Annual general meeting

Asset Management Period: the five~year period over which our reguiatory targets

and budgets are set

Annual Performance Report

Annual report and Financial Statements

Black, Asian and minority ethnic

Consumer Council for Water

Chief Executive Officer

Competition & Markets Authority

Customer Measure of Experience

Carbon dioxide equivalent, is a standard unit for measuring carbon footprints
Consumer Price Index

Compliance Risk Index

Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Developer Services Measure of Experience
Drainoge and Wastewater Management Plans
Decision Making Framework

Environment Agency

Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation
Environmental Performance Assessment
Environmental, social and corporate governance
European Union

AMP7 Final Determination

Greenhouse gas

Health & Safety

Health, Safety, Security & Environment

Interest cover ratio

International Integrated Reporting Council

Internet of Things

Key performance indicator

Kilo tonnes

Lost time injury rate

Magnetic ion exchange

Non-governmental organisation

Outcome delivery incentive: financial reward/penaity from performance
commitment results

Performance commitment: AMP? Ofwat measure for operational performance
Price Review 2018 (relating to AMP7)/ 2024 (relating to AMF8)
Revolving Credit Facility

Regulatory capital value

Retail Price Index

Sustainable development goals

Sustainable Finance Framework

United Nations

weighted Average Cost of Capital

Water Industry National Environment Programime
Water Resource Management plan

Wastewater treatment works

Yorkshire Water Leadership Team
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